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DIRECTOR GENERAL’S FOREWORD 

The past financial year has been a rewarding and successful one for the Department 

of Culture and the Arts and the agencies of the Culture and the Arts portfolio being 

the: 

 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• State Library of Western Australia; 

• Western Australian Museum; 

• Perth Theatre Trust; and 

• ScreenWest Inc. 

 

On late 2002, under the machinery of government review of statutory authorities, 

Cabinet approved the retention of the Art Gallery of Western Australia, Library Board 

of Western Australia and the Western Australian Museum as statutory authorities.   

Cabinet also approved the establishment of the ScreenWest Board, currently an 

Incorporated Association, as a statutory authority.  Cabinet approved the abolition of 

the Perth Theatre Trust and the transfer of its functions and assets to the Department 

of Culture and the Arts at the end of this financial year.    

 

The completion of the review of statutory authorities provides greater certainty and 

clarity to the structure of the Culture and the Arts portfolio and the working 

relationships between the agencies.  The decision also confirms the leadership and 

advocacy function of the Department for the portfolio and sets the scene for a much 

more strategic focus for culture and the arts in Western Australia and greater 

accountability for the delivery of government priorities.  Moreover, it is consistent with 

the guiding principles relating to the structure of the Department set at the 

commencement of the review, which were: 

• Unifying the portfolio; 

• Respecting the independence, uniqueness and heritage of portfolio agencies; 

• Acknowledging interdependencies; and 

• Allowing people to grow and develop to their full potential. 

 

I would like to thank the Chairs of the Boards and Chief Executive Officers of each 

statutory authority for their cooperation and support during the review process. 
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The outcome of the review of statutory authorities provides the platform for exciting 

opportunities for the Department and the portfolio over the next financial year to 

ensure we provide the best outcome for all members of the arts and cultural 

community and to our broader community as well. 

 

I am pleased to report that the Department has been working tirelessly over the past 

financial year to raise awareness of the valuable contribution arts and culture can 

make in creating a society that is culturally rich, artistically inspired and intellectually 

stimulated.  I would like to acknowledge the leadership and support provided by the 

Minister for Culture and the Arts during the year and the Government’s budget 

commitment of $97.1million over the next four years for capital works in the portfolio. 

 

Considerable work has been done over the past twelve months to develop a number 

of policies, which support the Government’s election commitments and articulate the 

principles of access and equity.  Consultation and development of policies on arts 

development, regional arts and culture, capital works, arts in education, cultural 

tourism, and contemporary music will help ensure access to and participation in arts 

and culture for all West Australians and encourage the future vitality of the sector, 

and are examples of the excellent work being done by the staff of the Department. 

 

Throughout this annual report, there is evidence of the advocacy role the Department 

has played in many different arenas, from across Government, to the private sector, 

to the media and of course, through the arts and cultural sector.   

 

I am confident that the important contribution arts and culture can make to all aspects 

of our society – from health, justice and education to tourism, the economy and 

multiculturalism – will become further evident.  

 

I would like to thank all staff of the Department for their effort and performance in 

2002-2003.  Their dedication, passion and hard work have created a very solid 

foundation for the Department to go forth and achieve its goals.   

 
 
 

Alastair Bryant 
Director General 
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

 

To the Hon Sheila McHale MLA, Minister responsible for the Department of 
Culture and the Arts. 
 

In accordance with Section 62 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, I 

am pleased to submit, for your information and presentation to Parliament, the 

annual report of the Department of Culture and the Arts for the year ending 30 June 

2003. 

 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial 

Administration and Audit Act 1985. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alastair Bryant 
Director General 
Department of Culture and the Arts 
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CORPORATE IDENTITY 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts (The Department) was formally established 

on 20 May 1997 under section 35 of the Public Sector Management Act and forms 

part of the Culture and the Arts portfolio with the agencies of the portfolio being the: 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• State Library of Western Australia; 

• Western Australian Museum; 

• Perth Theatre Trust; and 

• ScreenWest Inc. 

 

Mission 

The Department’s mission is to provide leadership, support and services to ensure 

that current and future Western Australians are informed and have access to a 

diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 

 

Vision  

The Department of Culture and the Arts has a vision of a Western Australian society 

which is culturally rich, artistically inspired and intellectually stimulated. 

 

Guiding Principles 

Underpinning the mission and vision of the Department are the following principles: 

 

1. Access and equity 
Access to and participation in the arts are basic rights and cultural programs 

should be underpinned by the principles of access and equity. In particular 

this principle focuses on the needs of people in regional Western Australia 

and the multicultural arts sector. In addition the principle raises the need for 

West Australians to access a fair share of federal funding. All of these issues 

are addressed in specific policy documents or actions being undertaken by 

the Department.  

 

2. Participation for all people 
This principle is underpinned by the statement that arts and culture contribute 

to a vibrant community and that developing creative talents is crucial across 
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all art forms. The principle, for example, strongly underpins both the 

Contemporary Music Policy and the Regional Arts Policy. 

 

3. The pursuit of creativity and innovation 
A vibrant and creative local environment is supported by access and 

exposure to ideas, products and debates. This principle firmly acknowledges 

the research and development needed for a vibrant arts and cultural life and 

is expanded in the Arts Development Policy and in the Department’s work on 

contributing to the Government’s sustainability strategy. 

 

4. The pursuit of artistic excellence 
This principle commits to the pursuit and recognition of artistic excellence.  It 

ensures that we value the work of West Australian artists and performers and 

build into all strategies excellent artistic qualities. It is a basic tenet of the Arts 

Development Policy.  

 

5. The preservation and development of Indigenous cultures 
It is fundamentally important to support the preservation and development of 

Indigenous art and culture as an integral part of Western Australia’s cultural 

heritage and contemporary arts activity. The policy commits to involving and 

working with Indigenous communities in all stages of the development of 

policies and projects. This principle is fundamental to each major policy 

document.  

 

6. The preservation, development and expression of Western Australia’s 
unique identity 
This principle draws on a number of the other principles and firmly states that 

Western Australia has a unique cultural and artistic life and the work of the 

arts policy is to promote, preserve, and develop this. For example, export 

strategies are embedded in the Contemporary Music Policy and the Arts 

Development Policy. 

 

Government strategic objective 

The operations and outcomes of the Department are linked to safe, healthy and 

supportive communities. 
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Outcome 

All agencies within the Culture and the Arts portfolio contribute towards an outcome 

for culture and the arts of a community that is informed of, and has access to, a 

diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences.  

 

Outputs 

The outputs for the agencies of the Culture and Arts portfolio are listed in the budget 

papers for the Department of Culture and the Arts.  The budget papers show that the 

funding for these outputs is primarily provided by Parliament through the Department, 

although some agencies within the portfolio also receive part of the appropriation 

directly.  All agencies of the portfolio have the same outcome statement.    

 

The listed outputs under the budget papers are: 

1. Art Gallery Services; 

2. Library and Information Services; 

3. Museum Services; 

4. Arts Industry Support; 

5. Screen Production Industry Support; 

6. Venue Management Services; and 

7. Record Keeping and Archival Services. 

 

Notwithstanding the clustering of outputs under the budget papers for the 

Department, the Department is only responsible for producing outputs 4 and 7, the 

rest being the responsibility of the Art Gallery of Western Australia (1), State Library 

of Western Australia (2), Western Australian Museum (3), ScreenWest Inc. (5) and 

the Perth Theatre Trust (6).  Each of these agencies will separately report on their 

performance with respect to these outputs under their own annual report. 

 

The functions of the Department of Culture and the Arts 

The Department has identified four major functions, each with a number of strategies, 

to help it achieve its outcome.    

 

1. Leadership and advocacy – assisting the Minister with setting the strategic 

direction for culture and the arts in the State and promoting the value and 

benefit to the community. 
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• Undertaking research, developing and implementing arts and culture 

policy and aligning the functions of the agencies in the Culture and the 

Arts portfolio with government priorities and outcomes and the arts 

and culture principles. 

• Setting up strategic partnerships to explore the potential for arts and 

culture in the community. 

• Capital planning and provision of arts facilities. 

2. Records Management – providing access to the State’s official records and 

the State archives collection. 

• Identifying, collecting, processing and preserving the State’s official 

records and archives collection. 

• Providing access to the State archives collection. 

3. Funding and Development – supporting the development of the arts sector in 

Western Australia. 

• Administration of an arts grants program for the provision of funding 

for arts projects, programs, and the base funding for the operations of 

key arts organisations. 

• Arts policy development, advocacy, publications and partnerships. 

• Business development support including the development, publication 

and implementation of good practice management guidelines and the 

conduct of operational, financial and artistic reviews. 

4. Resourcing and Administrative Support – to the agencies of the Culture and 

the Arts portfolio in the delivery of their outputs and outcomes. 

• Provision of shared corporate services to the agencies of the Culture 

and the Arts portfolio enabling them to access expert advice and 

benefit from shared resourcing. 

• To act as the main contact point to and from the Minister, adding value 

to Ministerial communications, and providing a main point of contact 

for the Minister through the Director General. 

• Providing issues management and strategic communications advice 

and services. 

• Coordinating and implementing machinery of government reforms 

across the Culture and the Arts portfolio and assisting all portfolio 

agencies with effective corporate governance. 
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STRUCTURE OF THE CULTURE AND THE ARTS PORTFOLIO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Department of Culture and the 
Arts 

Statutory Authorities 

Portfolio Management 
Units 

ArtsWA Division 

Shared Services Units 

Art Gallery of Western 
Australia 

Western Australian 
Museum  

ScreenWest * 

State Library of 
Western Australia 

State Records 
Commission 
(Reports to 
Parliament) 

Perth Theatre Trust 
State Records Office  

Minister for Culture & the 
Arts 

Culture and the Arts 
Portfolio 

 

*Whilst ScreenWest is an Incorporated Association, it has been listed above as a statutory authority by 

virtue of its inclusion in Schedule 1 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, which lists 

ScreenWest as a statutory authority. 

 

The Culture and the Arts portfolio comprises of a Department of State and five 

statutory authorities each accountable to the Minister for Culture and the Arts.   

Whilst the portfolio has no legal standing, i.e. it is not an organisation or an institution 

in its own right, it represents a coalition of agencies sharing a common outcome of “A 

community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of innovative 

ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences”.  The agencies within the portfolio also 

share resources (corporate services).   
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The Department coordinates, integrates and oversees the activities of the portfolio 

and acts as the main contact point to and from the Minister and for the central 

government agencies including the Auditor General, Department of Premier and 

Cabinet and Department of Treasury and Finance.    

 

STRUCTURE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Director General’s Secretariat 
Executive Officer: Jackie Lipiec

Agencies Portfolio Management 
Units 

ArtsWA 
Director:  
Allanah Lucas 

State Records Office 
Director:  
Tony Caravella 

Planning & Policy Division 
Director:  
Ellis Griffiths 

Procurement and 
Facilities Management 
A/Manager: Joe Marino 

Corporate Affairs 
Director:  
Margaret Butcher 

Organisational 
Performance 
A/Director: Phil D’Adamo 

Financial Services 
A/Chief Financial Officer: 
Alan Ferris 

Information Services 
Chief Information Officer: 
Graham Hilton 

Human Resources 
Director:  
Eric Isailovic 

Shared Services Units 

Director General 
Alastair Bryant 

 

ArtsWA supports the development of the arts sector whilst the State Records Office 

administers the State Records Act 2000 and provides access to the State’s official 

records and the State archives.   

 

The work of the portfolio management units centres on the leadership and advocacy 

role of the Department.  



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
12 

 

The shared services units provide corporate and procurement services to the 

Department and each of the statutory authorities within the Culture and the Arts 

portfolio.   

 

The Director General’s Secretariat provides administrative support to the Director 

General and the Directors of the Department and manages the processes for 

ministerial liaison. 

 

ACHIEVEMENTS AND HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The key achievements and highlights of the Department for the year were:   

• Completed the Machinery of Government review of statutory authorities with 

Cabinet approving the retention of the Art Gallery of Western Australia, 

Library Board of Western Australia and the Western Australian Museum as 

statutory authorities.  Cabinet also approved the establishment of the 

ScreenWest Board as a statutory authority (from an Incorporated Association) 

and the abolition of the Perth Theatre Trust and the transfer of its functions 

and assets to the Department.  The completion of the review clarifies the 

structure and working relationship between the agencies of the Culture and 

the Arts portfolio and confirms the functions of the Department; 

• Increased by 10 per cent from the previous year, the perceived effectiveness 

of the Department in delivering its outcome of a community that is informed 

of, and has access to, a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and 

cultural experiences; 

• Increased the perceived effectiveness of ArtsWA in developing, funding and 

promoting the arts by seven per cent from the previous year; 

• Achieved a budget commitment of $97.1million over the next four years for 

capital works in the Culture and the Arts portfolio; 

• Development of a regional policy entitled Cultural Signposts – Directions for 

Arts and Culture in Regional Western Australia that aims to improve access 

for arts and culture in regional, rural and remote Western Australian 

communities.  The policy will be launched in July 2003; 

• Development of a 10-year Capital Works Policy; 
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• Extensive community consultation and participation in relation to the drafting 

and release of a draft Arts Development Policy that will articulate the 

Government’s priorities and philosophical framework for the arts sector 

development; 

• The two-day Theatre Conference in July 2002 provided opportunity for 

discussion of a wide range of issues pertinent to this sector and the 

performing arts, which will lead to the development of some alternative 

models for the support of theatre; 

• Commencement in January 2003 of a strategic partnership between ArtsWA 

and the Artists’ Foundation of Western Australia aimed at professional 

development and employment opportunities to Indigenous artists living in 

regional Western Australia; 

• Establishment of a Pilbara Arts Development Officer position in Newman 

jointly funded by the Australia Council’s Audience Development and 

Marketing Division and ArtsWA for the purpose of establishing a strong 

network for arts development throughout the region; 

• Continued progress on the implementation of the State Records Act 2000 

including information workshops and meetings with senior staff from 

government agencies; 

• Implementing the Contemporary Music Taskforce findings and launch of the 

new contemporary music grants program; 

• Staging of the inaugural Western Australian Indigenous Arts Showcase in 

February 2003 (in collaboration with the Office of Aboriginal Economic 

Development and the Perth International Arts Festival); 

• Commenced the joint development, with the Department of Education and 

Training, of an Arts in Education Policy entitled Creative Connections that will 

articulate the Government’s commitment to promoting excellence and access 

in arts learning.  The policy is expected to be finalised by December 2003; 

• Developed a discussion paper with the Western Australian Tourism 

Commission for release in 2003, entitled Journey Further: A Cultural Tourism 

Strategy for Western Australia 2003-2007, that articulates a coordinated 

approach to the marketing of Western Australian culture; 

• Finalised a service delivery arrangement in May 2003 with the Department of 

Territories and Regional Services – Perth for the provision of arts and cultural 

services to the Indian Ocean Territories, including Christmas and Cocos 

(Keeling) Islands; 
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• Received an Action on Access Award for achieving excellence in access 

improvements and initiatives across the Culture and the Arts portfolio; 

• Launched an enhanced website for the Department in October 2002 which 

utilises a content management system to allow all staff the ability to create 

and maintain information; 

• Attracted a record number of nominations in the 2002 State Arts Sponsorship 

Scheme Awards worth in excess of $5.3million in cash and in-kind support; 

• Established an Internal Audit and Risk Management section to improve 

corporate governance across the agencies of the Culture and the Arts 

portfolio; 

• In conjunction with the Department of Consumer and Employment Protection, 

implemented new Enterprise Bargaining Agreements for five of the six 

industrial awards operating within the Department; and 

• Established Information Services as a shared services unit for the agencies of 

the Culture and the Arts portfolio on 1 July 2002. 

 

ACTIVITIES OF THE AGENCIES AND BUSINESS SUPPORT UNITS  

 

The activities and achievements of the agencies and business units of the 

Department are detailed below and in the following sequence: 

 

Agencies of the Department 
1. ArtsWA 

2. State Records Office 

 

Portfolio Management Units 
1. Director General’s Secretariat 

2. Planning and Policy 

3. Corporate Affairs 

4. Organisational Performance 

 

Shared Services Units 
1. Human Resources 

2. Financial Services 

3. Information Services 

4. Procurement and Facilities Management Services 
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AGENCIES OF THE DEPARTMENT 

 

1. ARTSWA 

 

DIRECTOR 

Allanah Lucas 

 
NUMBER OF STAFF 

17 FTEs, 19 people 

 
Mission 

ArtsWA’s mission is to facilitate for the diverse Western Australia community, a 

vibrant and viable environment for the arts through advocacy, grants, arts 

development initiatives and policy development. 

 

Objectives 

In reporting against the performance measures for agreed outputs, ArtsWA has 

identified three key strategic areas in which it operates to achieve its mission. These 

are: 

 

1. Increasing Participation 
Participation in arts and cultural activities by the people of Western Australia 

is a major element of ArtsWA strategies. The challenge is to make arts and 

culture accessible and relevant to everyone in the State. 

 

2. Engaging in Best Practice 
ArtsWA recognises that building better systems is fundamental to the longer-

term growth, vitality and viability of the arts. Skills, information and 

organisational systems, as well as physical resources, are needed to provide 

world-class services. 

 

These strategies will ensure structures are in place to deliver effective and 

relevant practice. 
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3. Forming Strategic Alliances 
Greater independence for arts organisations from ArtsWA funds will be 

encouraged. Strategic alliances will be developed to increase available 

revenue from other sources, including sponsorship.  

 

‘Change’ and ‘renewal’ have been the twin hallmarks of much of ArtsWA’s policy and 

strategic planning activities over the course of the last financial year.  From the 

extensive state wide consultations involved with the drafting of our new Arts 

Development Policy and the 2002 Theatre Conference, to the launch of the new 

contemporary music grants program, our involvement with the Commonwealth 

Government’s Contemporary Visual Arts and Crafts Inquiry and beyond, ArtsWA has 

taken some important steps towards creating new and inclusive arts funding 

programs for Western Australia. 

 

ArtsWA has not only reaffirmed the primary importance of the artist in the 

development of arts activity and practice in recent months, but has also sought to 

cultivate more effective skills amongst artists and administrators, ranging from the 

creative to better governance and financial acumen.  

 

By devising a forward-looking policy and financial framework for the next three to five 

years, through which creativity and innovation can flourish, we will see ArtsWA 

financial support becoming more than just a core source of funding. Instead, to cite 

the inaugural Indigenous Arts Showcase as one recent example, we increasingly see 

ArtsWA funds as being a catalyst capable of bringing together all key stakeholders – 

all levels of Government, artists, the business sector and the wider community – in 

celebrating a ‘culture of creativity’ which can inform all aspects of what it means to 

live and work Western Australia. 

 

Overview Of Major Events, Achievements and Highlights for the 2002-

2003 Financial Year 

• Extensive community and arts sector consultation on ArtsWA’s draft Arts 

Development Policy. 

• Facilitation of a two-day Theatre Conference in July 2002, providing the 

opportunity for discussion of a wide range of issues pertinent to this sector of 

the performing arts. 
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• Staging of the inaugural Western Australian Indigenous Arts Showcase in 

February 2003 (in collaboration with the Office of Aboriginal Economic 

Development and the Perth International Arts Festival). 

• A review of the Fremantle Arts Centre by consultant Peter Alexander. 

• A review of the Artists’ Foundation of Western Australia by consultant 

Deborah Mills. 

• Implementation of the Contemporary Music Taskforce findings and launch of 

the new contemporary music grants program. 

• Secretariat role for the West Australian Ballet/West Australian Opera Merger 

Working Party (headed by independent Chairman David Young). 

• Contributing to the Inquiry into the Contemporary Visual Arts and Crafts by 

Rupert Myer and negotiating with the Commonwealth Government regarding 

the report’s outcomes. 

• Co-ordinating, in consultation with the Australia Council and other 

State/Territory arts funding agencies, the participation of six Western 

Australian companies in the Cultural Ministers’ Council's (CMC) National 

Business Development Program for medium size performing arts companies - 

a key result of the CMC's examination of the Small to Medium Performing 

Arts Sector. 

• Conducting governance seminars, designed by Dr Margaret Seares, for 

triennially funded arts organisations. 

• Overseeing the endorsement of applications from arts and cultural 

organisations to the Insurance Commission of Western Australia’s new 

Community Insurance Fund. 

• Further development of strategic partnerships across government and with 

private sector organisations to maximise the resources available to the arts. 

 

STRATEGIC AREAS 

 

Increasing Participation 

 

Young People and the Arts 
ArtsWA, through its draft Arts Development Policy, has reaffirmed its commitment to 

Young People & the Arts (YPA) as a continuing strategy for 2003-2005 for the 

development of arts activities by, for and with young people. 
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ArtsWA will include representation of, and provide appropriate opportunities for input 

from, young artists (25 years and under) on all consultative, policy development and 

relevant peer assessment panels and/or committees, as well as: 

 

• Continue assessment of applications from young people or for activities 

involving young people, by a specific multi-artform panel representative of 

young artists.  Applications involving young people to other ArtsWA panels 

will be referred to the YPA Panel for comment prior to final assessment; 

• Continue to provide project officer support for the needs of young people and 

management of the Young People & the Arts panel; 

• Extend business planning consultation and support programs to multi-year 

Young People and the Arts organisations in 2004; 

• Increase the annual budget for the Young People and the Arts Panel by 

$60,000 from 2003-2004; 

• Establish an annual, high-profile award of up to $30,000 in 2003-2004, to be 

presented to an outstanding young artist to study at a prestigious overseas 

arts training institution.  Depending on the length of the course, partnership 

and/or sponsorship opportunities could enable this program to support the 

young artist training for over several years; 

• Increase annual scholarships to members of Young People and the Arts 

organisations to $3,000 across all artforms commencing from January in 

2003; 

• Confirm funding status for the AWESOME International Arts Festival for 

Young People; 

• Monitor and review the Youth Arts Network (Propelarts) program to determine 

its long-term viability; 

• Seek partnerships to facilitate a seminar on Children and the Arts to further 

consider strategies for development of arts activities for this sector; 

• Work with the Department of Culture and the Arts, where relevant, to 

implement the Department’s Arts and Education policy; 

• Review the RAMMPAAGE program, with the aim of establishing this program 

in support of contemporary music; 

• Liaise with ScreenWest to develop partnership programs to extend support 

for young people for new media and multi-art form projects for young people; 

• Include the promotion of successful Young People and the Arts projects, 

artists and fellowship recipients as part of its arts promotional strategies; and 
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• Research and investigate existing national programs to establish support 

mechanisms for emerging and ‘second tier’ young artists to be mentored with 

established companies and/or individuals. 
 
Indigenous Arts Development 

 

Western Australian Indigenous Arts Showcase 
The inaugural Western Australian Indigenous Arts Showcase, held over three days 

during the 2003 Perth International Arts Festival, was an audience development 

project co-presented by ArtsWA, the Perth Festival and the Office of Aboriginal 

Economic Development.  Comprising the performance-based component held in 

February – which included appearances by Indigenous performers from throughout 

Western Australia, including such notables as The Pigram Brothers, Kerrianne Cox, 

Richard Walley and Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre – the Showcase has extended its 

promotional reach via a specially commissioned CD-ROM and website 

(www.waindigenousshowcase.com) in marketing Western Australia’s Indigenous 

performing arts talent to festivals and promoters throughout the world.  

 

Indigenous and Regional Artist Development Officer at the Artists’ Foundation 
of Western Australia 
This strategic partnership between ArtsWA and the Artists’ Foundation of Western 

Australia (AFWA), with funding support from the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 

Arts Board (ATSIAB), began in January 2003 and is the initial stage of a five-year 

plan to bring professional development and employment opportunities to Indigenous 

artists living in regional Western Australia. The Indigenous and Regional Artist 

Development Officer will work to improve access and equity for Indigenous artists 

living in the regions and develop the arts industry generally in regional Western 

Australia.  The position, which commenced in February 2003, will increase the 

capacity of Indigenous artists to tender and/or develop and coordinate community 

and public art projects involving key stakeholders such as individual artists, the 

Indigenous community, State and local government, private enterprise, AFWA and its 

artists’ referral agency, ArtSource. 
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Regional & Community Arts Development 
Community Arts Network WA, Art on the Move and Country Arts WA continue to 

manage devolved funds of $1,167,450 for regional and community arts development 

on behalf of ArtsWA. 

 

Approximately $278,730 in funding was provided during 2002-2003 through ArtsWA’s 

panels to support professional arts activities in regional Western Australia. 

 

ArtsWA allocated a further $50,000 to base funding for the five ‘Category A’ regional 

arts organisations devolved through Country Arts WA, with the Arts and Cultural 

Development Council (Geraldton), Avon Valley Arts Society (Northam), Vancouver 

Arts Centre (Albany), Esperance Community Arts and Denmark Arts each receiving 

an increase of $10,000. 

 

Magabala Books in Broome ($146,775) and Southern Edge Arts in Albany ($45,500) 

also received funding support. 

 

ArtsWA's Community and Regional Arts Project Officer has travelled to the Indian 

Ocean Territories, Kalgoorlie-Boulder, Menzies, Newman, Narrogin, Geraldton, and 

Bunbury and attended the Groundswell Regional Arts Australia national conference 

in Albury-Wodonga. 

 

Funding applications from the Indian Ocean Territories continue to be assessed by 

ArtsWA's Arts Development and Young People and the Arts Panels as a result of the 

Indian Ocean Territories agreement signed in May 2003. 

 

October 2002 saw the establishment of the Pilbara Arts Development Officer position 

in Newman.  This full-time position is jointly funded by the Australia Council’s 

Audience Development and Marketing Division and ArtsWA.  Working closely with 

the East Pilbara Shire, arts councils and the communities of the Western Desert, the 

Officer is establishing a strong network for arts development throughout the region.  

The appointment of an Arts Development Officer for the Gascoyne region will 

similarly be pursued during the 2003-2004 financial year. 

 

ArtsWA worked in partnership with the Education Department and Kimberley College 

of TAFE to support the Arts Edge Officer based in Broome.  ArtsWA and the 



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
21 

Department of Local Government and Regional Development funded this part-time 

position for eighteen months, until March 2003. 

 

Visual Arts, Craft and Writing 

 

Myer Report: Contemporary Visual Arts and Craft Inquiry 
On 23 July 2001, the then Federal Minister for the Arts, the Hon. Peter McGauran 

MP, appointed Rupert Myer to conduct an independent inquiry into the contemporary 

visual arts and craft sector.  The inquiry made 20 recommendations to build on the 

sector’s achievements and provide opportunities for its potential to be realised.  Six 

of the recommendations concerned legislative issues for the Federal Government.  

Five involved funding recommendations for the Federal Government only.  The 

remaining nine recommendations involved new joint funding arrangements between 

the State and Federal Government.   

 

In May 2003, the Federal Government announced it would provide $19.5million over 

four years towards the funding recommendations of the Myer report.  ArtsWA and the 

Federal Government have commenced meetings to discuss the funding strategy in 

allocating and jointly funding the recommendations of the Inquiry. ArtsWA has been 

keen to establish the principles for distributing the funding, especially given that the 

Federal Government has moved away from Myer’s recommended funding formulas 

whereby the States and Territories now must provide matching funding on a dollar-

for-dollar basis. Intense negotiations are expected to continue into 2003-2004, with 

tangible results expected for the sector within the same period. 

 

Venice and Sydney Biennale Emerging Curators Program 
In March 2003, ArtsWA and the Biennale of Sydney announced a placement 

opportunity for an emerging curator, commencing in July 2003.  To be based at the 

Biennale in Sydney, the selected curator will assist Biennale staff with artist research, 

site visits, image collection and publicity copywriting. 

 

Also in March, a local curator was selected by Melbourne-based arts management 

company Global Arts (in collaboration with ArtsWA) to be a pavilion attendant at this 

year’s Venice Biennale, providing invaluable experience at what is arguably the most 

prestigious event on the international visual arts calendar.  Additionally, ArtsWA also 
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funded two local curators to visit the Venice Biennale in a private capacity in order to 

further their research and development work. 

 

Partnership with the Association of Western Australian Art Galleries 
During 2002-2003, ArtsWA continued its partnership with the Association of Western 

Australian Art Galleries by supporting seven galleries to attend the Melbourne 

Contemporary Artfair in 2002 and for the organisation of Art03.  The Western 

Australian Contemporary Artfair staged at the Fremantle Passenger Terminal, in May 

2003. 

 

Writing 
In response to the ever-broadening scope of writing projects being submitted to 

ArtsWA in 2002, ArtsWA expanded the title of ‘Literature’ to become ‘Writing’ to 

reflect this sector’s cross-artform/media potentials.  

 

Over the course of this financial year, ArtsWA has: 

• Provided support to the Katherine Susannah Pritchard Writers Centre, which 

enabled the Centre to begin a desktop publishing and editing course. 

• Investigated crossovers amongst web-based databases for literary research 

in Western Australia.  Discussions between university representatives, State 

Literature Centre, State Library and the newly formed WA Writers Centre 

explored ways in which cooperative projects could assist research.  Early 

discussions looked at upgrading the State Literature Centre website and 

providing clear links to other database sites.  Discussions of publishing and 

writing exercises led to the development of Marginata, a quarterly newsletter 

published by the State Literature Centre in partnership with the WA Writers 

Centre. 

• Assisted the new State Literature Officer, Rob Finlayson, to begin a review 

process of the organisation and its role in Western Australia.  This review, co-

funded with the Australia Council, will begin in August 2003.   

Also, in line with this review, the new WA Writers Centre is beginning a 

rationalisation process to examine opportunities offered across all Perth-

based writers’ centres, particularly with respect to duplication of services, 

specialisations and joint membership programs. 
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Arts Development 

 

New Draft Arts Development Policy 
The recently released draft Arts Development Policy reaffirms not only the State 

Government’s commitment to the arts but, through ArtsWA, provides a platform for 

ArtsWA’s funding and creative arts sector development work within an agreed 

framework and principles for the period 2003-2005.  Copies of the draft Arts 

Development Policy can be downloaded from the ArtsWA website at 

www.artswa.wa.gov.au. 

 

2002 Theatre Conference 
As part of the consultation process for the Arts Development Policy, ArtsWA 

facilitated a two-day theatre conference in July 2002 to provide a forum for the 

discussion of a range of significant issues, including a new theatre venue, future 

structures for the delivery of theatre and audience development. Conference 

Chairman Peter Alexander prepared an outcomes paper from the conference 

(available at www.artswa.wa.gov.au).  A representative body, the Theatre Advocacy 

Group, has been formed and has met with the Minister for Culture and the Arts to 

discuss the Conference recommendations as well as other significant issues for the 

sector.  

 

West Australian Ballet/West Australian Opera Merger Working Party 
In 2002, in response to the recommendations of the Federal Government’s Major 

Performing Arts Inquiry, and as part of an agreement between the previous State 

Government and the Federal Government regarding increased recurrent funding, a 

working party of representatives from the boards of both the West Australian Ballet 

and West Australian Opera was formed.  Headed by independent chairman David 

Young, the working party determined that combining the administrative and 

management functions of the companies could foster the long-term viability of both 

artforms in Western Australia.  Extensive discussions continue to take place with 

both the West Australian Ballet and West Australian Opera, with further work 

currently being done by the funding agencies and the companies to finalise the 

matter.  The decision to merge or not will be a matter for the Companies to 

determine. 

 



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
24 

Fremantle Arts Centre Review 
ArtsWA commissioned a review of the operational and financial activities of the 

Fremantle Arts Centre in 2002. Consultant Peter Alexander examined the impact of 

the Centre’s mission statement and objectives to date, as well as its arts-related 

programs.  

 

Mr Alexander’s final report was delivered in September 2002 and provided eight 

recommendations for a future ArtsWA and Fremantle Arts Centre partnership, 

referring to future programming, partnership and development strategies. 

 

In 2003, the recommendations are being developed through a new business plan 

and a future triennial agreement for Fremantle Arts Centre. 

 

Short Term Artist In Residence (S.T.A.R.) 
The State Government’s Rebuilding the Arts Policy made provision for the 

introduction of the Short Term Artist In Residence (S.T.A.R.) funding program.  

S.T.A.R. provides community groups, schools and the like with the opportunity to 

employ the services of professional artists on various arts projects.  Since its 

inception in February 2002, ArtsWA has received 22 applications with 14 of those 

being successful.  This represents a 64% success rate that delivered $65,167.00 into 

mainly regional areas.   

 

Arts Development Panel Changes 
Changes to the way in which ArtsWA’s panel members are appointed were 

implemented in late 2001.  These changes have had significant benefits for the 

operation of all panels.  No longer a panel with reserves but instead reconfigured as 

a large pool of qualified individuals from which peer assessors can be recruited for 

each grant round (in response to the types of funding applications received by 

ArtsWA), these changes have delivered increased efficiencies for this important peer 

assessment process.  

 

The Arts Development Panel’s primary focus is on the artistic merit of an application 

and every attempt is made to fully fund successful applications.  In the April - May 

2003 funding round, the Panel funded 74% of its final round applicants for the full 

amount of their submissions.  
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During the financial year 2002-2003, the Arts Development Panel assessed 210 

funding applications valued at $2,298,278.00.  Funding support was provided to 106 

of these applications, totalling $1,093,214.00. 

 

Contemporary Music  
The Contemporary Music Taskforce, convened by Minister for Culture and the Arts, 

Sheila McHale, to make recommendations in relation to the State Government’s 

provision of $5million for the development of contemporary music, delivered its report 

in September 2002.  Recommendations included that an Industry Development Grant 

Program be implemented by ArtsWA.  The following initiatives were implemented by 

ArtsWA over the past year: 

• In July 2002, ArtsWA assisted with the management of a Pilot Contemporary 

Music Industry Development Grant Program, through which $100,000 was 

distributed to fund 13 projects. 

• The Western Australian Music Industry Association (WAMIA) recently signed 

a triennial contract with ArtsWA, which provides for an allocation of $240,000 

annually.  The increase in funding of $200,000 per annum to WAMIA, is 

through the Contemporary Music Budget. 

• The Pilot All Ages Alcohol and Drug Free Events Funding Program - also 

known as RAMMPAAGE - is in progress, with 11 communities each receiving 

$18,000 to stage events in their areas.  This program received an allocation 

of $174,000 during the 2001-2002 financial year from ArtsWA funds. 

Evaluation of the administration of the pilot program is underway and will be 

completed in 2004. 

• In December 2002, ArtsWA called for applications to the Contemporary Music 

Industry Development Program. The first round closed on 7 February 2003.  

70 applications were received and $149,721 was distributed to 19 successful 

applicants.  A second round of applications was also advertised, with the 

closing date being 13 June 2003.  

 

The Contemporary Music Taskforce report also recommended the allocation of 

$500,000 for the development of Indigenous Western Australian music.  On 29 and 

30 April 2003, an Indigenous Music Working Group met to assess priorities for this 

funding and to make recommendations for its implementation.  ArtsWA is currently 

developing business cases to support the group’s recommended strategies. 
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International 
ArtsWA continued to participate in the International Arts Development Coordinating 

Committee, a cross-government committee to facilitate the exporting of art. These 

meetings are facilitated by the Planning and Policy Division of the Department of 

Culture and the Arts and involve the Department of Industry and Technology and the 

Western Australian Tourism Commission, as well as the Commonwealth agencies 

Austrade and the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade. The work of the 

Committee has resulted in increased funding and general assistance to the arts 

across government. 

 

ArtsWA’s Artflight program provided $60,218 in funding for artists’ involvement in 29 

different international art events and projects. 

 

Two databases were updated. The first details Western Australia’s involvement in 

international arts activity and the second records useful contacts for international arts 

activity and is distributed to artists on request. 

 

On behalf of ArtsWA, the Artists’ Foundation of Western Australia (AFWA) continues 

to manage an artists’ exchange program with Basle, Switzerland. 

 

ENGAGING IN BEST PRACTICE 
 

Improving Arts Agency Practices (Business Development) 
 

Governance 
Dr Margaret Seares was engaged by ArtsWA to undertake a series of governance 

seminars for the management and board members of triennially funded organisations 

during 2002-2003.  The seminars have been followed with one-on-one governance 

workshops for the boards of organisations. Further seminars for multi-year funded 

organisations are planned for 2003-2004. 

 

National Business Development Program 
In May 2003, six Western Australian companies participated in the Cultural Ministers’ 

Council's (CMC) National Business Development Program for medium-size 

performing arts companies.  The program was coordinated by the Australia Council, 

in partnership with State/Territory arts funding agencies, and was a key result of the 

CMC's examination of the Small to Medium Performing Arts Sector. 
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Consultant Duncan Peppercorn ran the workshops nationally.  Each company was 

able to bring up to four senior staff to the full-day seminars.  The Australia Council 

and State/Territory arts agencies continue to work on improved coordination of 

application, reporting and acquittal requirements for medium-size performing arts 

companies jointly funded by the Australia Council and a State/Territory agency. 

 

Community Insurance Fund 
The Civil Liability Act 2002, the Insurance Commission of Western Australia 

(Amendment) Act 2002 and the Protection of Volunteers (from liability) Act 2002 were 

given Royal Assent on 20 November 2002, allowing the Insurance Commission of 

Western Australia (ICWA) to establish the Community Insurance Fund.  The Fund 

provides not-for-profit organisations with support for the ever-increasing cost of 

obtaining insurance. 

 

The Fund is managed by ICWA on behalf of the Department of Treasury and 

Finance, with Government agencies having a responsibility in the process of 

assessing whether an organisation is suitable to be considered to join the Fund and 

in the ongoing monitoring of the risk management of insured organisations. 

ArtsWA is the nominated Government agency for the endorsement of applications 

from arts and cultural organisations and has to date received 19 applications and 

requests for advice in completing applications.  Four applications have been 

completed and endorsed for consideration by the Insurance Commission. 

 

FORMING STRATEGIC ALLIANCES 

 

Strategic Partnerships 
ArtsWA continues to develop strategic partnerships across government and with 

private sector organisations in order to maximise the resources available to the arts 

sector throughout Western Australia. 

Lotterywest continues to be a key partner for ArtsWA, contributing $9million to the 

Arts Grants Program in 2002-2003, as well as sponsoring the RAMMPAGE all-ages 

music program. 

 

Healthway also continues to be a valuable partner in sponsoring arts events 

throughout Western Australia. 
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October 2002 saw the establishment of the Pilbara Arts Development Officer position 

in Newman.  The full-time position is jointly funded by the Australia Council's 

Audience Development and Marketing Division and ArtsWA.  Working closely with 

the East Pilbara Shire, arts councils and the communities of the Western Desert, the 

Officer is establishing a strong network for arts development in the region. 

 

ArtsWA worked in partnership with the Education Department and Kimberley College 

of TAFE to support the Arts Edge Officer based in Broome.  The part-time position 

was funded for eighteen months by ArtsWA and the Department of Local 

Government and Regional Development.  

 

Through the mechanism of the International Arts Development Coordinating 

Committee, ArtsWA worked closely with the Department of Foreign Affairs and 

Trade, Austrade, Western Australian Tourism Commission, Department of Industry 

and Technology and the Planning and Policy Division of the Department of Culture 

and the Arts to facilitate export opportunities for Western Australian cultural product. 
 

ArtsWA’s Management Initiatives 
In the exercise of good management practice, and in compliance with the 

Government’s efficiency measures, ArtsWA has met savings targets across budgets, 

including travel and advertising. 

 
External Reviews 
ArtsWA expended $51,757 on conducting external reviews as follows: 

• June Moorhouse - $4,000.00 for facilitation and consultation regarding 

ArtsWA’s draft Arts Development Policy. 

• Peter Alexander - $17,988.50 for a review of the Fremantle Arts Centre. 

• Peter Alexander - $25,200.00 for chairing and reporting on the 2002 Theatre 

Conference. 

• Rosita Stangl Publicity - $1,818.00 for the promotion of ArtsWA grant round 

results. 

• Market Equity - $2,750.00 for the evaluation of the 2003 Western Australian 

Indigenous Arts Showcase. 
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ARTSWA PANEL MEMBERS, 2002-2003 

 

Young People & The Arts Panel 
Ms Bec Dean (Joint Chair) 

Mr Nigel Bird 

Ms Hannah Clemen 

Ms Kristy Costello 

Ms Tania Doropoulos 

Ms Emma Grant 

Mr Ean Grieve 

Ms Beth Ladwig 

Ms Christel Mathelot 

Ms Danielle Micich 

Ms Elysia Murphy 

Ms Jane Neville (Joint Chair) 

Mr Luke Rinaldi 

Ms Heather Webb 

 

Indigenous Arts Panel 
Ms Collene Castle (Chair) 

Ms Samantha Cook 

Mr Arthur Gear 

Mr Fred Gesha 

Mr Arnhem Hunter  

Ms Debra-Lee Miller 

Ms Jilalaga (Chantelle) Murray 

Ms Doris Pilkington 

Ms Penelope Williams 

Ms Gina Williams 
 

Contemporary Music Panel 
Mr Richard John  (Chair) 

Ms Lorrae Coffin 

Mr Howard Shawcross 

Ms Sue Hamersley 
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Arts Development Panel 
Mr Richard John  (Chair) 

Ms Connie Anderson 

Ms Linda Banazis 

Mr James Boyd 

Mr Marcus Canning 

Ms Elaine Forrestal 

Mr Arnhem Hunter 

Ms Trish Little 

Mr Bill McClusky 

Ms Christina McGuinness 

Ms Caroline O’Neill 

Mr Tony Pankiw 

Ms Sue Peacock 

Ms Elizabeth Spencer 

Dr Ken Spillman 

Mr Neville Talbot 

Mr Paul Thompson 

Mr Rick Vermey 
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ARTSWA GRANTS FUNDING 2002-2003 

Short Term Artist in Residence 
Albany Senior High School  

Engagement of Teresa Hughes to work with performing arts students on the 

production of an original piece of music theatre $5,280 

Arts & Cultural Development Council of Geraldton  

A four-week artist in residency by sound artist Catherine Hope  $5,060 

City of Joondalup  

Engagement of Junkadelic to hold workshops leading to participation in the 

Joondalup Festival street parade $3,300 

Kerry Street Community School Inc  

A series of workshops in puppet making and performance for primary school 

children conducted by artist Jane Davies $2,090 

Marble Bar Primary School  

Artist in residency program in jewellery making with training in the associated 

skills  $1,440 

Newman Senior High School  

Employment of an Indigenous artist in residence to foster dance, music and 

theatre in the East Pilbara region  $9,759 

Oombulgurri Remote Community School  

Provide workshops in learning how to make and play recyclable wind percussion 

instruments in a remote Aboriginal community $6,875 

Printmakers Association of WA (Inc)  

Provision of opportunities for a West Australian printmaker to showcase work  $7,200 

Rockingham Regional Environment Centre (Inc)  

David Giles as artist-in-residence at Naragebup Environment Centre, 

Rockingham.  $2,000 

Serpentine Primary School   

Install a mosaic water feature at the serpentine primary school as a celebration of 

the opening of new classrooms and library resource facility $2,140 

Victoria Park Centre for the Arts  

An artist in residence project incorporating performance, installation, and 

experimental sound  $6,303 

Total Short-Term Artist In Residence Projects $51,447
  

MUSIC  

Australian Youth Orchestra  

Conduct a National Music Camp for young musicians at the University of Western 

Australia, culminating in two major public concerts $10,000 

Boyup Brook Country Music Club  

Employment of a consultant to design and implement a marketing strategy $12,000 

Club Zho  

Monthly new music events $18,000 
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Elandra Ensemble  

Production of four Elandra concerts  $15,000 

Gigantic Entertainment  

Recording, promotion and marketing of the West Australian band Gigantic's 

second EP  $8,000 

Ms Natalie Gillespie  

Music development and distribution. $15,000 

The Giovanni Consort  

A series of classical concerts, with the aim of increasing community and youth 

interest in classical music and encouraging young performers   $9,000 

Mr Dominik Karski  

Composition of two new works for the Elision Ensemble   $4,000 

Mr Robert Griffin Morgan  

Composition of a new work for seven period instruments   $4,000 

Nova Ensemble Incorporated  

Annual program of creative development, performances, workshops residencies 

and touring  $28,000 

Pipe Organ Plus  

Commission a new work for the solo pipe organ $3,000 

Sambanistas Incorporated  

Introduction of a music and facilitation training and mentoring project within the 

existing Sambanistas structure     $4,912

Total Music $130,912 
  

DANCE  
Ms Claudia Alessi  

Development and production of three new solo works entitled Point Of Entry $15,240 

Ms Shannon Bott  

Five-week research and development of a dance/theatre work titled 'so...do you 

come here often?' $18,000 

Development and production of the final stage of a dance work entitled WILT $18,950 

Kompany Kido  

Re-development of the dance theatre work Pivot & Enter for a season at the 

2003 Perth International Arts Festival $15,493 

An eight-week intensive acquisition of aerial skills under the guidance of Helen 

Embling $13,120 

Ms Rachel Ogle  

A secondment with Melbourne dance company BalletLab under the mentorship of 

Artistic Director Phillip Adams  $5,692 

Mr Paul O'Sullivan  

Production of a full-length promotional video on CD-Rom, and a media pack to 

promote and sell the applicant's work to the Cape Town Festival  $5,830 
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Ms Susan Peacock  

The realisation and integration of the technical components (video and set) of a 

new dance work $16,500 

STRUT   

Program of activities for independent Western Australian dance $30,000 

Assist up to five independent WEST AUSTRALIAN dance artists to participate in 

Time_Place_Space 2 at Wagga Wagga  $3,450 

Total Dance  $142,275 
  

WRITING  

The Westerly Centre, UWA  

Publication of Westerly $23,500 

Mr Brett D'Arcy  

Research and development of a new novel, tentatively titled, 'Convergence' $12,000 

Mr Nigel Gray  

Travel to research background for literary fiction  $3,250 

Mr Geoffrey Havel  

Visit to the Czech Republic as part of research for a new book  $3,250 

Ms Sarah Hay  

Research towards the development of a second novel  $4,000 

Ms Sue Isle  

Completion of a science fiction novel set in Western Australia  $2,032 

Ms Erica Jacobson  

Creation of a manuscript dealing with cultural differences and drug use.  $4,000 

Katharine Susannah Prichard Foundation Inc  

A comprehensive community based program of literary events. $45,000 

Ms Julia Lawrinson  

Completion and editing of a novel entitled Suburban Freak Show  $6,000 

Ms Suzanne Ross  

Research and development for a new collection of poetry  $6,000 

Trash & Vaudeville Pty Ltd  

Write the first draft of a new comic book-styled novel about obsession, body 

image and militant anorexics entitled 'binge + purge'.  $6,000 

University of Western Australia Press  

Publication of a critical study of the novels of WEST AUSTRALIAN writer Xavier 

Herbert  $5,000 

Walking On Water  

Provision of a venue for established and emerging writers & musicians to perform 

their original work.  $2,660 

Total Writing $122,692 
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VISUAL ARTS & CRAFTS 
Art Monthly Australia  

Employment of Western Australian writers on the visual arts  $5,000 

Ausglass WA  

The hosting and management of Isolation: Collaboration - the 13th Biennial 

Ausglass  

International Conference  $20,000 

Australian Centre for Concrete Art  

Public gallery wall project in Fremantle  $4,900 

Mr Ivan Bannon  

International residency and participation in the Art Trail Festival in Cork, Ireland  $4,495 

Ms Christine Barker-Malcolm  

Explore and develop a new artistic direction leading to a solo exhibition  $4,800 

Mr Walter Dawes  

Exhibition of paintings by Nicola Samori at Central TAFE Art Gallery, display at   

the Concert Hall and workshops conducted as artist in residence.  $4,000 

Mr Ashley de Prazer  

Research and development of a photographic book on youth culture and dance  $9,050 

Ms Pippin Drysdale  

Freight, travel and catalogue for solo exhibition: installation of porcelain vessels   

entitled 'Red Earth' at Galerie Marianne Heller, Germany. $10,000 

Ms Susan Flavell  

Research and develop methods and processes within the artist's sculptural 

practice leading to an exhibition at Artplace  $8,500 

Gallery East  

Participation in the Sydney Art On Paper Fair, Sydney, NSW   $5,600 

Ms Holly Grace  

Undertake 2 international glass residencies at the Glasmuseet Ebeltoft, Denmark 

and with Neil Wilkin, a master glass blower in the UK.  $8,750 

Ms Roxanne Grant  

Research and development of new concepts regarding 'The Manufactured Smile' 

in liaison with dental care professionals and clients  $3,000 

Gravity Discovery Centre Foundation Inc.  

Commission of eight major artworks linked to concepts of gravity, cosmology and 

the universe, for permanent exhibition at the Gravity Discovery Centre $24,000 

Mr Paul Hinchcliffe  

Production and exhibition of new work in Melbourne, Victoria  $8,000 

International Art Space Kellerberrin  

The From Space to Space project consisting of exhibitions, residencies and 

community projects, forming the core of IASKA's program  $25,000 

Lake Grace Development Association  

Commission an artist to make life-size sheep sculptures to be installed in the town 

centre of Lake Grace; residencies and workshops with local artists will also be 

included. $10,000 
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Ms Kate McMillan  

Undertake a residency in Beijing, and exhibit in Hong Kong as part of the artists 

collective, Urban Anxiety  $7,550 

Mrs Angela Mellor  

A solo exhibition of ceramics at Craftwest Gallery  $8,000 

Object Magazine - Aust Centre for Craft & Design  

Publish a minimum of four pages of writing in each of 3 issues of Object magazine  $4,000 

Photography Gallery of WA Inc,   

Promotion and exhibition of photography as an artform $20,000 

PIXEL Enterprises Pty Ltd  

Extension of art practice into the area of robotics and computer controlled physical 

systems.  $6,000 

Mr Garry Pumfrey  

An exhibition looking at the relationship between retail outlets - corner shops, 

delis, supermarkets etc.  $4,000 

Mr Trevor Richards  

Showcasing three prominent Western Australian artists through exhibitions in 

Sydney $13,175 

Mr Neale Ricketts  

Sculptural installation encompassing new media for the Fremantle Art Centre's 

exhibitions program  $2,125 

Mr Michael Singe  

Development and production of new sculptural work for a solo exhibition at 

Galerie Dusseldorf  $4,850 

Soroptimist International of Fremantle  

A group exhibition involving 50 women artists living and working in Western 

Australia, entitled 'Remembering'  $4,500 

Ms Cynthia Verspaget  

Undertake research and development for the production of an artistic cell line that 

deals with the aesthetics and politics of biology and art  $6,000 

Ms Lynnette Voevodin  

Develop a line of short performance based video/8mm installation artworks to be 

exhibited at Goddard de Fiddes Gallery   $6,000 

Total Visual Arts and Crafts $241,295 
  

THEATRE  

Mr John Aitken  

Production of a season of short plays under the generic title Storyboards 2003 $16,595 

Ms Zoe Atkinson  

Rehearsal, production and a 2-week performance season of a solo puppetry 

based performance based on Lewis Carol's Hunting of the Snark. $20,000 

Australian Dance Council  

A high profile street theatre show with 7 West Australian performers in 

collaboration with Friches Theatre Urbain from Paris, produced by Agnes Michelet $22,500 
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(auspiced grant) 

Australian National Playwrights' Centre  

Annual Program of Activities  $9,840 

Australian Script Centre Inc  

Annual Program of Activities  $5,000 

Mr Alan Becher  

Create a stage play entitled 'Rottnest Dreams'  $6,500 

Bizircus Association Inc.  

Production of a promotional video  $4,080 

Mr David Buchanan  

Workshop a new multi-media play written by David Buchanan and featuring the 

photography of Nick Djordjevic $7,741 

Mr Robert Farmer  

Performances of a one-man show at the Edinburgh Fringe Festival.  $8,693 

Greg McNeill Enterprises  

Direction of the Australian premiere of the play Talk About The Passion by 

Graham Farrow $20,000 

Handzon Theatre Company Inc  

Remount of Breast Stroke at the Rechabites Hall, followed by a tour of the play to 

the Magdalena Australia Festival in Brisbane $17,000 

Present quality lunchtime theatre of 30 minutes duration, which includes a lunch 

of soup and bread roll for $6. $9,750 

Jedda Productions Pty Ltd  

A play with original songs and music, based on the true and tall stories of Western 

Australian farmers and other people of the land. $11,335 

Mr Tom Jeffcote  

Stage a play about the clash of cultures that drug use causes between parents 

and children and explore the themes that emerge as a basis to combat drug use $13,577 

Mr Ben Laden  

Stage an installation performance production of 'Under Milk Wood' by Dylan 

Thomas in collaboration with Deckchair Theatre $20,087 

Mr Sam Longley  

Perform a two week season of the play 'The Stones'  $9,436 

LRF Productions Inc.  

A joint production with Black Swan Theatre Company, of On Our Selection at 

Tranby House $24,313 

Ms Isobel Lyall  

A creative development project including clowning, physical theatre, circus aerials 

and interactive performance using digital video   $8,340 

Ms Monica Main  

Creation of a one-woman play about the intrepid 19th-century Australian 

adventurer, May Vivienne $8,855 

One World Centre  

Development and staging of a theatrical production, devised and performed by $10,000 
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refugees 

Ms Sally Richardson  

Remount of Savage Grace at the Subiaco Theatre Centre $18,000 

Shakespearience  

A theatrical production of Dogs Barking at the Rechabites Hall $24,243 

Total Theatre $295,885 
  

MULTI-ARTFORMS  

Arts Law Centre of Australia  

Annual program of the Centre $10,000 

Asialink  

Residencies for writers, visual artists, performing artists and arts managers in Asia $14,000 

City of Swan  

Production and presentation of the National Review of Live Art, Midland  $10,000 

Mr Mark Cypher  

Research and development of programmable computer code that can be used to 

drive a three-dimensional virtual ecosystem within an electronic art installation  $5,100 

Earthwise Community Association  

Multi-discipline community arts workshops with basis in junk percussion $10,000 

Fairbridge Festival Inc.  

A series of concerts and performances by Broome based artists as part of the 

Fairbridge Festival $15,000 

Mr Rodney Glick  

Post-production and CD-rom production for 'LIFE plus TV' - a digitally manipulated 

video panorama/installation to be exhibited at the Museum of Contemporary Art, 

Sydney  $8,000 

John Curtin Gallery  

A program of five conferences exploring the five themes of the BEAP 2004 event $15,000 

Leederville Community Action Group  

Produce a street festival showcasing local performers and artists  $5,000 

pvi partners  

Undertake a period of site-specific research in four Australian cities, mapping the 

terrain for the future development of the mobile live artwork 'tts'. $21,000 

Mr Arif Satar  

A collaborative, hybrid artwork entitled Are You Talking to Me? In Conversation 

With...,.  $8,500 

Shinju Matsuri Incorporated  

Performance piece at Festival Finale incorporating dance, costume, light and 

sound with a fireworks display. $8,000 

Shire of Cue  

Development and presentation of four Queens of the Murchison performances at 

the QFest (Cue Outback Festival), October 2003  $8,415 
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SymbioticA - Art & Science Collaborative Research Laboratory  

MEART - The Semi living Artist - in the ARTBOTS show.  A robotic/artificial 

intelligence art exhibition in the EYEBEAM Gallery, New York, USA $19,895 

Town of Kwinana  

Drumming and costume making workshops in preparation for the Kwinana 

Festival  $5,990 

Total Multi-Artform Projects $163,900 
  

YOUNG PEOPLE & THE ARTS 
Awesome Arts Australia Ltd  

Publish a second collection of 'Square One' magazine; original artworks, stories 

and poetry showcasing young peoples work (auspiced grant)  $3,000 

Ms Jodie Bartlett  

Market and promote the debut release 'Too Cold' by the band Josivac via an 

Eastern States tour  $5,500 

Carclew Youth Arts Centre  

Produce 6 issues of Lowdown, the national youth performing arts magazine and 1 

issue of Directions, the national guide to tertiary education in the performing arts.  $5,000 

Ms Amanda Chesterton  

Participate in the Washington University & Globe Education 2003 Summer 

Programme at Shakespeare's Globe Theatre in London.  $4,550 

City of Joondalup  

Creation of a theatre/puppetry/dance performance with young people for the 

Joondalup Festival Finale  $8,000 

Ms Samara Cunningham  

Create a performance of dance and live music as the result of a collaboration 

between a choreographer, musician, historian and graphic designer.  $5,000 

Jazz Co-ordination Association of W.A.  

Development, organisation and running of a jazz camp for young musicians aged 

10-18 including improvisation workshops, masterclasses and big band sessions.  $4,650 

Karratha Youth Theatre 

Placement of two emerging artists in professional theatre / dance companies.  $5,000

Katharine Susannah Prichard Foundation Inc  

Run two summer holiday writing 'Writeramas' for young people.  $1,000 

Ms Paea Leach  

Commission two choreographers to create two new dance works to be performed 

at the Bread Box  $7,000 

Ms Frane Lessac  

Research and development for a new book, Monday on the Mississippi.  $6,486 

Local Drug Action Group Inc.  

Production of the free press youth magazine REVERB  $5,360 

Mr Matthew Lutton  

Theatrical experiment into the use of chorus, choreography, and staging using the 

absurdist text, 'The Bald Prima Donna'.  $6,102 
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Ms Serena McLauchlan  

Exhibition of Serena McLauchlan and Emily Mabee's paintings at The Church 

Gallery  $3,500 

Men of the Trees - Planetary Action Network  

Graffiti art workshops and festival exhibition and performance  $5,000 

Nedlands Early Learning Centre  

Study tour to the Reggio Emilia Municipal schools in Italy for research and 

development.  $3,000 

North Fremantle Community Association Inc.  

Youth string instrument ensemble incorporating chamber music , solo 

performance and coaching.  $2,660 

Redroom Promotions  

East Coast tour by the band, 'Headshot' to promote their CD and promotion of the 

Western Australian rock compilation CD, 'Left Of Centre 2'.  $5,000 

Rollerskates  

Production and marketing of a full length album  $6,420 

Miss Tatjana Seserko  

A solo exhibition of paintings at the Freerange Gallery, Subiaco  $2,996 

South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre  

A six-month project of community based art workshops for at-risk, Aboriginal, and 

Non-English speaking youth $5,000 

Mr Leigh Speicher  

Breakdancing workshops and events for young people  $4,500 

Spencer Tracy  

Invitation for the band Spencer Tracy to perform several showcase gigs in the 

Eastern States to support the release of their new single and forthcoming album.  $5,680 

STEPS, Youth Dance Company  

Dance Scholarship for Young People  $2,500 

STRUT  

Establish a professional development foundation for young and emerging Western 

Australian contemporary dancers (auspiced grant)  $4,760 

Ms Molly Tipping  

Creative development of a solo work in collaboration with experienced 

professional artists  $7,088 

Town of Victoria Park  

Junkadelic to stage a series of multi-art workshops for young people in the 

Victoria Park area in junk percussion, costume making, circus and performance 

skills.  $3,000 

Town of Vincent  

Mural project with a business development and artistic component.  $6,500 

Visual Arts Foundation of WA Inc  

Placement of professional artists in West Australian rural schools and 

communities  $8,000 
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West Australian Youth Jazz Orchestra  

Music Scholarship for Young People  $2,500 

Western Australian Youth Orchestra Association (Inc)  

Music Scholarship for Young People  $2,500 

Youth Performing Arts Australia   

One member of the WA YPAA National Board to attend two national board 

meetings in 2003.  $856 

Ms Lauren Brede  

Attend a six day country music workshop in Tamworth to further skills and 

knowledge  $1,963 

Ms Tamara Camilleri  

Undertake a period of intensive study in traditional middle-eastern percussion with 

master percussionist Hossam Ramzy.  $3,000 

Ms Erin Coates  

Produce two large-scale photographic works as part of the Mnemotech group 

show to be held at PICA.  $1,200 

Ms Thea Costantino  

Exhibition of children's photography to be installed on Perth trains.  $2,000 

Mr Christian de Vietri  

Participation in an international exhibition of contemporary art in the Grande Halle 

de la Villette, Paris  $3,000 

Downsyde  

East coast tour to take advantage of major  festival opportunities and to promote a 

nationally distributed single   $3,000 

Miss Lara Hatch  

Undertake a mentorship with the artistic director of New Trails Dance Theatre in 

the USA.  $3,000 

Ms Paea Leach  

Undertake a two-week residency at NORPA in NSW with Shannon Bott and two 

other artists.  $2,563 

Ms Jennifer Lowe  

Love Tester - a group exhibition of contemporary site based art located 

throughout the Northbridge area, exploring the themes surrounding amusement 

culture.  $3,000 

Mr Matthew Lutton  

A mentorship with Black Swan Theatre Company on their production of Merry-Go-

Round in the Sea.  $1,600 

Mr Andrew Nicholls  

'Spooked', an exhibition of site-specific installation by six Perth-based artists at 

Clinch's Mill in Greenough, to coincide with the 'Greenough Bites' Heritage 

weekend.  $1,240 

Ms Rebecca Reid  

Attendance by invitation to perform at the 'Boiler Room', a national improvisation 

summit in Hobart.  $644 
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Ms Melanie Robinson  

Tour of Europe (Italy, France, Germany) to showcase, promote and attempt to 

licence the new Gatanegra album, 'Saint Dymphnae'  $2,000 

Mr Ben Waters  

Produce new work for participation at the Inaugural Hatched exhibition at PICA   $2,999 

Ms Heather Webb  

A project entitled Hotel16151  utilising a closed motor hotel in South Perth as a 

site for artistic inquiry.  $2,700 

Total Young People & the Arts  $182,017 
  

INDIGENOUS ARTS 
Broome Musicians Aboriginal Corporation  

Stage two free family concerts at open public venues in Broome during the tourist 

season to assist in promoting Indigenous performing arts $19,000 

Bushwa Indigenous Designs  

Develop a promotional/marketing package of visual designs and fabric swatches 

to be used in international marketing to fashion designers and art galleries.  $3,000 

Participation and promotion of Aboriginal culture within the wheatbelt area 

(auspiced grant for Billinue Community Aboriginal Corporation)  $6,996 

Mr Lance Chadd  

A trip to study the Kimberley landscape resulting in an exhibition.  $5,000 

Ms Leeola Chulung  

Recording and production of a CD and tape of  original songs  $7,000 

'Wadjup Danjoo', an event celebrating Indigenous culture including sport, art, 

education, and health elements to be held at Clontarf Campus as part of the City 

of South Perth Fiesta   $9,000 

Coalition of Peoples Inc  

'Survival 2003'  an Indigenous community event featuring through dance, music, 

theatre and visual arts $16,196 

Ms Theona Councillor  

Recording of original songs onto CD or tape  $5,000 

Ms Billie Court  

Production of a CD of six original songs, for presentation to the recording and 

publishing industry  $6,000 

Ms Colleen Glass  

Research and write historical fiction based on personal experience, oral histories 

and archival information  $8,400 

Ms Alice Haines  

Production of a quality demonstration CD to be used for promotion and as a basis 

for the future production of a commercial CD  $9,300 

Mr Eric Hedley Hayward  

Conversion of a Master Of Arts thesis entitled No Free Kicks into a book. $10,000 

Irrunytju Community Inc  

Irrunytju Cultural Heritage Project $10,000 
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Jilalga Designs  

Development of 16 large new works for exhibition in Port Hedland and Perth.  $7,000 

Jiriki Management  

Development of a troupe and development of new material including song, music 

and dance. $15,000 

Kadadjiny Mia - Walyalup Writers' Group  

Provide opportunities for new and emerging Indigenous writers in the form of 

creative writing workshops and a bush camp, and employ Indigenous guest 

writers for 3-hour workshops and readings.  $4,500 

Kellerberrin Aboriginal Progress Association  

Noongar Cultural Festival, Kellerberrin, March 2003  $7,000 

Kundat Djaru Aboriginal Community  

An exhibition of paintings at the Kidogo Art House, Bathers Beach, Fremantle $10,000 

Mrs Norma MacDonald  

Intensive technical research in the use of the oil medium in European 

renaissance, baroque, Greek and Roman, and how these techniques may be 

employed in contemporary Aboriginal art.  $5,000 

Mangkaja Arts Resource Agency Aboriginal Corporation  

Skudda Arts Powerhouse to run a series of mobile workshops for youth in a 

number of locations around Fitzroy Crossing township  $5,196 

Mr Mark Mourambine  

Attendance at the Tamworth Music Festival 2003, Indigenous Talent Quest.  $3,280 

Mowanjum Aboriginal Corporation  

Delivery by ANKAAA and artsMARK of a series of arts marketing workshops in 

Kimberley art and craft centres  $7,500 

Mr Mervyn Mulardy  

Produce an audio recording of original works.  $5,000 

Development of marketing and promotional material for the applicant's recently 

released CD  $2,000 

Pilbara Arts Craft & Design Aboriginal Corporation  

Creation of a mosaic sundial in the new town park situated on the foreshore. $10,000 

Ms Valerie Takao  

A major solo exhibition about childhood perspectives of institutional life in the 

1950s  $9,250 

Warlayirti Artists  

Produce a full colour catalogue to accompany an exhibition of paintings and glass 

to be held at the Warlayirti Art and Culture Centre $10,000 

Yowarliny Singers  

Production of the group's first CD  $6,000 

Total Indigenous Arts $221,618 
  

CREATIVE DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Mr Ingle Knight 
Creative Development Fellowship $10,000 
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Mr Richie Kuhaupt 
Creative Development Fellowship $30,000 

Ms Olivia Millard 
Creative Development Fellowship $30,000 

Mr Steve Pease 
Creative Development Fellowship $30,000 

Ms Holly Story 
Creative Development Fellowship $30,000 

Ms Kate Larsen 
Youth Creative Development Fellowship $10,000 

Mr Andrew Nicholls 
Youth Creative Development Fellowship $10,000 

Ms Melanie Robinson 
Youth Creative Development Fellowship $10,000 

Total Creative Development Fellowships  $160,000 
  

ARTFLIGHT  

Ms Bernadette Anderson  

Attendance at the Horizons State Regional Arts Conference in Karratha  $1,300 

Artists' Foundation of WA  

Attendance by Jenny Wright at the AIAM Conference in Canberra.  $800 

Ms Zoe Atkinson  

Participation as a speaker in the National Puppet Summit to be held in Melbourne.  $550 

Australian Dance Council  

Agnes Michelet's attendance at Dance in the Landscape - National Forum for 

Community Dance, Brisbane, 2002. (auspiced grant)  $1,000 

Mr Alan Banks  

Present two performances at Sonorites Contemporary Music Festival, Belfast, 

Northern Ireland.  $2,035 

Mr Michael Barlow  

Attendance at the National Puppetry and Animatronics Summit in Melbourne to 

participate in the 'Connecting the Collaborator' forum  $550 

Ms Claire Beauseine  

Participation in a group exhibition of emerging West Australian artists.  $850 

Ms Jeanette Beckett  

Attendant at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha.  $968 

Mr Troy Bennell  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha  $1,300 

Ms Felicity Bott  

Attend the 'Dance in the Landscape' - National Forum for Community Dance, 

Brisbane, 2002.  $500 

Ms Julie Bouffler  

Attendance at Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha  $944 
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Mr Alan Boyd  

Participate in the National Young Writers Festival 2002 in Newcastle, NSW  $750 

Bunbury Art Collection Committee  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha on behalf of the 

Collection Committee and the City of Bunbury.  $450 

Bunbury Regional Arts Management Board  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference on behalf of the Regional 

Arts Development Office and the South West Arts and Cultural Sector (auspiced 

grant).  $419 

Mr Eloy Cardenas  

Travel to Perth to record the song Day Oh, winner of the 2003 World / 

Multicultural WAM song of the year  $800 

Mr Oron Catts  

Participation in the 4th annual international symposium, 'ArtSci2002, in New York   $2,000 

Mr Jeff Chand  

Creation of an installation/exhibition by Jeff Chand and Elspeth Averill at the 

Dynaas Gallery in Singapore, March-April 2003  $1,600 

Mr Gary Chard  

Attendance at the Tokyo Arts Market to promote West Australian companies and 

artists  $1,000 

Clay Feet Exhibiting Group Inc.  

Representation in Bendigo, Victoria to facilitate a ceramic exhibition as part of the 

10th National Ceramic Conference.  $2,800 

Ms Sue Codee  

Transport work and attend NOMAD, a solo exhibition by Sue Codee at the 

Fremantle Arts Centre.  $900 

Mr Steve Collett  

Promotional tour of Melbourne by electronic band 'Moriarty'.  $2,000 

Ms Barbara Cotter  

Presentation of a research table titled 'Language of Metal' at the  Hawaii 

International Conference on Arts and Humanities.  $1,750 

Mr Reg Cribb  

Attend the Edinburgh Fringe Festival to help in artistic and directing decisions for 

the client’s  play The Return.  $2,500 

Ms Eleanor Davies  

Attendance by invitation at the National Circus Festival, Tasmania  $648 

Mr Jack de Vos  

Conduct wood turning seminars for Canadian wood turning guilds.  $1,500 

Ms Margot Edwards  

Attendance at the Playworks/ABC Regional Radio Drama Workshop held in 

Lismore, Tasmania.  $1,277 

Mr Peter Ellis  

Attendance at the opening of the exhibition 'Intervention: Contemporary Art from 

the Pilbara.'  $586 
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Ms Louise Elscot  

festival, culminating in a solo exhibition for the duration of the festival. Three 

month artist-in-residency in Cork, Ireland, participating in the annual Cork Art Trail  $2,000 

Mr Lyndon Fernandez  

Participation in the 2nd National Forum for Community Dance, Brisbane, 

Queensland  $500 

Ms Joanne Foley  

Participation  in the National Puppetry and Animatronics Summit at the Victorian 

Arts Centre, Melbourne.  $650 

Mrs Elaine Forrestal  

Promotion of West Australian writing and illustration to a national and international 

audience.  $725 

Fremantle Children's Literature Centre  

Attendance at the National Children's Book Council conference Island Journeys, 

Hobart, Tasmania  $1,000 

Ms Indra Geidans  

Undertake a two-month residency in Germany followed by a solo art exhibition.  $3,000 

Ms Janet Gillingham  

Invitation to perform with the Festival Orchestra at the Perth Mandolin Festival   $464 

Ms Michelle Glaser  

Represent the art work 'Juvenate' at the launch of 'Play Engines',  and participate 

in the Digital Arts and Culture Conference in Melbourne  $500 

Goddard de Fiddes Gallery  

Participation at ARCO 03, the Madrid Artfair  $1,500 

Mr Walter Gomes  

Attend 'Connection Visual II' at the College of Fine Arts, Shanghai University as 

an exhibiting artist and lecturer.  $1,335 

Mr Mark Greenwood  

Invitation to attend the launch of my new book at the National Children's Book 

Council conference and participate in the Island Journeys Literature Festival  $915 

Ms Paula Hart  

Attendance at the Titerias Puppet Festival involving the creation and exhibition of 

an artwork.  $2,600 

Mr David Hay  

Attend an exhibition opening of my latest glass works in the Glass Gallery, 

Leerdam, Holland.  $1,750 

Mr Renond Indich  

Performance at the Tamworth Country Music Festival, NSW  $800 

Jiriki Management  

Participate in International Dance Day and attend a forum on development of 

Indigenous dance   

in Western Australia (project auspiced for Robert Dann)  $1,000 

Mr Dominik Karski  

Participate in the Gaudeamus Music Week in Amsterdam and the Warsaw  $2,410 
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Autumn Festival in Poland. 

Ms Desmonda Kearney  

Participation in the National Young Writers Festival 2002 in Newcastle, NSW.  $693 

Kin Music  

Attendance by the band 'Kin' at the 'Metal for the Brain' heavy metal festival in 

Canberra.  $1,860 

Mr Jeremy Kirwan-Ward  

Attendance at the opening of a first solo exhibition of paintings at Solander 

Gallery, Canberra.  $710 

Knotwork  

Performances and participation in the emerging artist program at the Woodford 

Folk Festival, QLD.  $2,000 

Krazie Kraze Productionz  

Attendance at the Sound Summit in Newcastle, NSW, to perform in several 

events.  $700 

Ms Gundie Kuchling  

Attendance at the Ipswich Festival of Children's Literature including giving talks, 

workshops and exhibiting at the Ipswich Art Gallery  $663 

Mr Gregory Lawrence  

Attendance at the 'Sound Summit' conference in NSW as the West Australian 

State Coordinator.  $544 

Ms Julia Lawrinson  

Attendance at the Island Journeys Conference held by the Children's Book 

Council in Tasmania.  $800 

Ms Frane Lessac  

Attend the launch of  an exhibition in Antigua, conduct workshops in schools and 

research a new children’s book.  $2,000 

Mrs Heather Locke  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha.  $465 

Ms Isobel Lyall  

Attendance by invitation at the National Circus Festival, Tasmania  $648 

Maku Basketball Association (Aboriginal Corporation)  

Attendance at the Archibald Prize announcements and functions in Sydney 

(auspiced grant for Sue Wyatt).  $1,500 

Mangkaja Arts Resource Agency Aboriginal Corporation  

Artist's Alwin Reamillo and Roselin Eaton to assemble and install the sculpture 

project 'Jandamarra Crossing' at the National Sculpture Prize and Exhibition in 

Canberra (auspiced grant).  $3,000 

Ms Minaxi May  

Attend and give a presentation/gallery talk at the 'Frisson Contemporary Textiles 

Forum' at the Canberra School of Art and the Canberra Museum/Art Gallery  $800 

Ms Monica McGhie  

Invitation to exhibit mouth-painted artworks in London and conduct ability 

awareness programs at UK universities and educational institutions  $3,000 
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Ms Megan McKinlay  

Participation in the Varuna/Hodder Headline Masterclass: Writing Fiction for 

Younger Readers.  $302 

Ms Bianca McNeair  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha.  $465 

Mr Alexander Mickle  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha  $990 

Ms Sandra-Lee Murphy  

Participation in an exhibition program with eight other Australian women artists as 

part of a cultural exchange with the City of Hangzhou, China, and Shanghai 

University.  $1,393 

Mr Stephen Nova  

Participation in an all-Australian group exhibition to be held at the Agora Gallery in 

Soho, New York.  $3,000 

Mr Ron Nyisztor  

Exhibition of oil paintings at Gallery Plos, Vienna  $2,500 

Pilbara Arts Craft & Design Aboriginal Corporation  

Rose Murray to deliver a paper at the Groundswell conference in Albury 

Wodonga.  $1,427 

Ms Doris Pilkington  

Participation in panels, reading and events associated with the Brisbane Writers 

Festival.  $880 

Ms Joanna Pollitt  

Presentation of work the Dance Curator of 'Boiler Room', a national improvisation 

festival  $880 

Prawns with Horns  

Assistance with airfares for a European tour  $3,000 

Mr Holly Ralph  

Performance in Raradada Circus Theatre's, 'A Fine Line' at Tasmania's 10 Days 

on the Island Festival.  $668 

Mr Trevor Richards  

Attendance at the Melbourne Art Fair to  promote the Australian Centre For 

Concrete Art and establish links with other artists  $448 

Ripe Fruit Arts Management  

Invitation to act as Musical Director for three new musicals being presented as 

part of the Global Search Showcase at the International Festival of Music Theatre 

in Cardiff, Wales  $2,000 

Royal Flying Doctor Service (Eastern Goldfields WA Section) Inc  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha  $968 

Ms Pauline Scott  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha.  $465 

Ms Nalda Searles  

Attendance at the 'Fusion' seminar at ANU in Canberra  $950 
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Mr Philip Shelton  

Attendance at the Horizons Regional Arts Conference in Karratha.  $944 

Short St Gallery  

An exhibition of moon paintings by 12 regional Indigenous artists from around 

Australia.  $3,000 

Mrs Heather Smedley  

Attend INSEA conference in New York and undertake intensive research and 

development to foster community arts projects for adults and youth groups  $1,000 

Ms Helen Smith  

Invitation to hold a solo exhibition at the Chiellerie gallery in Amsterdam.  $2,595 

Ms Jan Teagle Kapetas  

Participation in a poetry workshop in Wollongong  $875 

Tetrafide Percussion  

Attendance and performances at festivals and schools in London, North 

Yorkshire, Dublin and Cork.  $3,000 

Mr Paul Thomas  

Promote and develop links with Ars Electronica in Linz, Austria for the Biennale of 

Electronic Arts Perth.  $1,500 

University of Western Australia Press  

Market Western Australian books in North America by attendance of Dr Jenny 

Gregory at the annual meeting of the Association of American University Presses 

in St Louis  $3,000 

Ms Rebikah Von Ziarno  

Attendance at the Hallamasch Festival in Vienna  $2,000 

WA State Literature Officer Inc.  

Attendance at the AIAM conference in Canberra  $800 

Walkington Theatre  

Travel to Perth for the duo 'Afterglow' to compete in the Next Big Thing original 

music competition (auspiced grant)  $1,000 

Ms Jane Whiteley  

Attendance at the opening of 'From Within' at Manly Art Gallery and the Frisson 

Textiles Forum  $880 

Miss Rachael Whitworth  

Attendance at the National Puppetry and Animatronics Summit in Melbourne to 

participate in the emerging artists forum.  $550 

Who? What? Why? Where?  

Attendance at the Tasmanian Circus Festival to hold juggling and manipulation 

workshops  $1,500 

Ms Pauline Williams  

Present a paper at the Hawaii International Conference on Arts and Humanities  $1,750 

Mrs Gosia Wlodarczak-Sarnecka  

Performance and installation of art work at SPAN Galleries in Melbourne and 

attendance at the Sydney Works on Paper Fair  $1,668 
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Mrs Dianne Wolfer  

Presentation of a paper at the Island Journeys Conference in Tasmania.  $800 

X-Events  

Development of international markets for live art, performance art and new media 

through participation in the National Review of Live Art in Glasgow, Scotland  $1,500 

Total Artflight $121,007 
  

PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVES 
Artists' Foundation of WA  

Engagement of a Regional Indigenous Arts Skills Development Officer, 2003 - 

2005 $30,000 

Association of Western Australian Art Galleries Inc  

Organisation and presentation of the 3rd Western Australian Art Fair $45,000 

Awesome Arts Australia Ltd  

The Awesome Children's Festival 2001 and 2002, and devolution of Minifestivals 

funding for 2002 $215,000 

Black Swan Theatre Company  

Assistance with relocation expenses $10,000 

Ms Felicity Bott  

Attendance at AD 2002 - Artistic Director Training at the Victorian College of the 

Arts  $1,980 

Ms Shannon Bott  

Support towards rehearsal costs of The Morning After, The Night Before, in 

preparation for performances in WA and NSW  $3,000 

Community Arts Network WA Inc  

A transitional review of the WA Music Industry Association  $4,800 

Country Arts (WA) Inc  

Financial support towards the Regional Arts Development Conference, Karratha $10,000 

Deckchair Theatre Inc  

Support for internal refit  $7,702 

Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade  

Contribution towards Australia Week in Shanghai $20,000 

Disability in the Arts, Disadvantage in the Arts Australia  

Internal review leading to an organizational restructure  $3,500 

Equity Benevolent Guild of WA Inc  

Marketing, promotion and sponsorship development costs for the Equity Guild 

Theatre Awards, 2003 - 2004  $3,000 

Festival Fringe Society of Perth  

Contribution towards four youth focussed projects to be presented at the festival $12,093 

Fly By Night Musicians' Club Ltd  

Rental assistance for 2003 $20,000 

Stabilisation funding for the organisation to continue to develop its artistic 

outcomes for the State of Western Australia $20,000 
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Fremantle Arts Centre Press  

Establishment of a Reserves Fund, 2002-2005 $50,000 

Global Art Projects  

Provision for a Western Australian emerging curator to work as an exhibition 

attendant at the Venice Biennale Australian Pavilion, for eight weeks $20,000 

Goolarri Media Enterprises Pty Ltd  

Assistance towards costs of the Stompem Festival, 2002 $40,000 

Ms Jennifer Lowe  

Internship for an emerging Western Australian curator at the Biennale of Sydney  $3,000 

Manifest Productions  

Development of a number of strategies to benefit arts practitioners and 

organisations $42,550 

Market Equity Pty Ltd  

Indigenous Performance Arts Showcase Evaluation  $6,818 

Musicians' Guild of Western Australia Incorporated  

Support for the Pilot Western Australian Drug & Alcohol-free All-ages Events 

Funding Program $99,367 

Over The Fence Comedy Film Festival  

Guarantee against loss for the Over The Fence  comedy film festival  $7,000 

Pen & Paint Pty Ltd  

Dido Fellowship 2003 $10,000 

Perth International Arts Festival   

Indigenous Arts Showcase - Project Manager salary and costs $62,000 

Dr Margaret Seares  

Provision of seminars and workshops on corporate governance for WA's Arts 

Agencies' boards and managers $6,370 

WA Music Industry Association Inc  

Rental assistance for 2003 $8,400 

Support for Pilot Western Australian Drug and Alcohol free All-ages Events 

Funding Program - Pilot Industry Support Organisation $50,000 

West Australian Ballet Company  

Attendance at the Australian Institute of Arts Management Conference in 

Canberra by Peter Gibson, Business Development Manager  $750 

Total Partnership Initiatives $812,330 
  

MAJOR ORGANISATIONS FUNDING 
Art On The Move  

Program Funding $244,400 

Touring Funds Initiative $100,000 

Artists' Foundation of WA  

Program Funding $303,260 

Australian Dance Council  

Program Funding $131,250 
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Barking Gecko Theatre Company  

Program Funding $354,000 

Black Swan Theatre Company  

Program Funding $504,765 

Project Funding Initiatives $352,000 

Buzz Dance Theatre Limited  

Program Funding $223,200 

Community Arts Network WA Inc  

Program and Devolved Funding $460,525 

Country Arts (WA) Inc  

Program and Devolved Funding $1,124,350 

Establishment of the Youth Arts Network  $67,500 

Craftwest Centre for Contemporary Craft Inc  

Program Funding $211,666 

Deckchair Theatre Inc  

Program Funding $254,750 

Festival Fringe Society of Perth  

Program and Devolved Funding $229,020 

Fremantle Arts Centre  

Program Funding $554,500 

Fremantle Arts Centre Press  

Program Funding $243,750 

Kulcha Multicultural Arts of WA Inc  

Program Funding $145,600 

Magabala Books Aboriginal Corporation  

Program Funding $146,776 

Performing Arts Centre Society Inc  

Program Funding $140,000 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts  

Program and Devolved Funding $464,800 

Perth Theatre Company  

Program Funding $390,000 

Spare Parts Theatre (Inc.)  

Program Funding $295,400 

West Australian Ballet Company  

Program Funding $1,187,757 

Project Funding Initiatives $700,000 

West Australian Opera Company  

Program Funding $1,238,033 

Project Funding Initiatives $320,000 

Reserves Incentive Scheme $100,000 

West Australian Symphony Orchestra  

Program Funding $1,583,782 

Stabilisation Funding $400,000 



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
52 

Project Funding Initiatives  $50,000 

Western Australian Youth Orchestra Association (Inc)  

Program Funding $103,650 

Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre  

Program Funding $254,751 

Rental Assistance  $33,900 

Total Major Organisations $12,913,385 
  

OTHER TRIENNIALLY FUNDED ORGANISATIONS 
Australian Writers Guild (WA)  

Program Funding  $12,000 

Children's Book Council Of Australia (WA Branch) Inc.  

Program Funding  $20,000 

Disability in the Arts, Disadvantage in the Arts Australia  

Program Funding  $60,000 

Effie Crump Theatre  

Program Funding $110,000 

Fremantle Children's Literature Centre  

Program Funding  $35,000 

Hole in the Wall Theatre Company  

Program Funding  $86,000 

Jazz Co-ordination Association of W.A.  

Program Funding  $22,000 

Musica Viva Australia  

Program Funding  $25,000 

Perth Jazz Society  

Program Funding  $15,000 

Skadada  

Program Funding  $40,000 

Southern Edge Arts Inc.  

Program Funding  $45,500 

STEPS, Youth Dance Company  

Program Funding  $65,000 

Tura Events Co Ltd  

Program Funding $140,000 

Stabilisation Funding  $60,000 

WA Music Industry Association Inc  

Program Funding $230,834 

All Ages Events Program  $50,000 

WA Playwrights' Consortium Inc.  

Program Funding  $44,000 

WA State Literature Officer Inc.  

Program Funding  $64,676 
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West Australian Youth Jazz Orchestra  

Program Funding  $30,000 

Western Australian Youth Theatre  

Program Funding  $25,000 

Total Multi-Year Funded Organisations $1,180,010 
  

CONTEMPORARY MUSIC 
Music Managers' Forum (Aust)  

Seven managers of musical acts in WA to attend the annual Music Managers 

Forum short course in Sydney in October  $4,361 

Naked Ape Management  

Establishment of Naked Ape Management to value-add to opportunities offered to 

West Australian acts, to improve their career plans from a national and 

international perspective  $7,231 

Northern Suburbs Career Options Inc.  

Increase and diversify the audience for Western Australian contemporary music 

by using local music in the soundtrack of a Skate Parks Guide of WA video 

project. (Auspiced for Chris Yow)  $5,000 

Mr Leon Ewing  

Funding for a mentorship of Leon Ewing by country music producer Roger Corbert  $7,700 

Mr Tomas Ford  

Contemporary Music Mentoring Program  $7,300 

Mr Ryan Grieve  

Contemporary Music Mentoring Program  $7,500 

Mr Adam Maiolo  

Contemporary Music Mentoring Program  $7,500 

Mundaring Arts Centre Inc.  

Weekly music workshops for young people, leading to the launch of a 

contemporary music CD. (Project auspiced for Rip It Up) $22,000 

Ms Connie Kis Anderson  

Recording of two original songs in Nashville, Tennessee, followed by the release 

of these and two existing songs in Australia, USA and Canada $10,000 

Ms Catherine Hope  

To record and master a full CD for Gata Negra to be licensed to Italian label 

KATHODIK for European distribution  $7,720 

Mr Steven Makse  

Production and distribution of a compilation CD (W) A.grade to promote and raise 

the profile of Western Australia’s thriving punk / hardcore bands  $4,761 

Marvelle Pty Ltd  

Recording and production of a CD titled Graeme Lyall meets the Joe Chindamo 

Trio  $9,060 

Ms Keike Scantlebury  

Professionally record, mix, master and manufacture a 6 song EP to be the focus 

of a CD launch at the Rosemount Corner Bar  $5,765 
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Mr Pete Stone  

Record a follow up release to Pete Stone and the Assistance debut release 

'Home'.  $4,680 

Mr Michael Whitby  

Record, mix and master an album for the band The Volcanics, produce a 

promotional video clip for one song, create an interactive DVD and a professional 

media release package.  $6,444 

The Chevelles  

A 22-day promotional tour to the USA and Brazil in support of the group's newly 

released album Girl God $19,268 

Fuzz Music  

A showcase tour of the east coast by The Fuzz for audience development and CD 

promotion.  $6,387 

Ikey Mo Music  

An East Coast tour by the WA band Ikey Mo, including recording at Sony Studios 

in Sydney.  $4,000 

Mr Adam Keane  

Hypercenter industry showcase in Los Angeles, USA. $15,000 

Mr Sonny Morgan 

Travel to the UK and Europe to promote the new album 'Architect'.  $4,371

Mr Sandman  

A tour to Victoria and New South Wales to build the profile of the group after the 

release of its second CD  $2,723 

Last Years Hero  

Two week tour of Sydney and NSW which will include one week tour with Sydney 

act 'Best Kept Secret' and a week of headlining showcase for 'Last Years Hero'.  $4,100 

Superscope  

Attend the annual Lost Weekend Festival in Sydney and Melbourne and utilise the 

festival as a catalyst to lift the national profile of the band Superscope.  $4,940 

Sweet Mate Promotions  

A tour by band Capital City to Adelaide, Melbourne and Sydney to perform shows 

with Australian rock legends The Stems as part of their 2003 reunion tour.  $5,000 

Total Contemporary Music Program $182,811 
  

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDING $16,921,584
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1. STATE RECORDS OFFICE 

 
DIRECTOR 

Tony Caravella 

 
NUMBER OF STAFF 

19.53 FTEs, 22 people 

 

Overview 

The Offices of Director of State Records and the State Records Office (SRO) are 

established under Part 9 of the State Records Act 2000. The Director of State 

Records reports to the State Records Commission on all matters relating to the 

operation of this legislation. For administrative purposes, the Director reports to the 

Director General, Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 

The inaugural Director of State Records, Chris Coggin, retired in November 2002 

after working with Western Australian government archives for 24 years.  Isabel 

Smith and Maureen Robinson served as A/Director until the appointment of Tony 

Caravella as the Director of State Records on 24 March 2003. Prior to his 

appointment, Mr Caravella was State Director of the National Archives’ Perth Office, 

and through his work in that position also had a close working relationship with the 

State Records Office.  

  

Mission Statement 

The SRO aims to achieve an excellent collection of State archives that can easily be 

accessed by the community, because it is through collections of this nature that the 

people of Western Australia can gain a sense of who we are, where we have been 

and where we are going. The work that the SRO does in implementing the State 

Records Act 2000 not only supports efficient, effective and accountable open 

government, but also contributes towards ensuring that future generations have 

access to accurate and well preserved archives. 
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Issues 

1. Archival storage 
Since July 2001, the SRO has been unable to accept custody of new archival 

transfers due to a lack of storage space. Without appropriate accommodation the 

SRO cannot fulfil its responsibilities under section 32 of the State Records Act 2000, 

which requires agencies to transfer their records to the Director’s custody after 25 

years. The Director and the State Records Commission are aware that government 

agencies are required to resource appropriate storage for these records for an 

indefinite period until the SRO is able to provide archival storage. During the year, 

research was undertaken into the probable future storage needs for the SRO for the 

next 10-15 years. The research also took into account storage capacity in other 

Australian state government archives. Through this research, the SRO has identified 

its storage needs and will work in the coming year to acquire that storage.  

 
2. Record Keeping Plans 
Part 3 of the State Records Act 2000 requires all government agencies that were in 

existence on 30 November 2001 to submit a draft record keeping plan to the 

Commission within two years of the publication of the Standards, that is, before 7 

March 2004. Only 29 draft plans were lodged with the SRO by 30 June 2003. Based 

on the number of agencies covered by the Act (approximately 400) and the 

submission deadline, the SRO expects a considerable workload during the 2003-04 

financial year. The Director formally sought the assistance of the Strategic 

Management Council in June 2003 with the implementation of a plan to ensure 

compliance with the record keeping provisions of the State Records Act 2000.  

 
3. Electronic records 
The records management community worldwide is facing the challenge to find the 

best way to collect, preserve and provide access to digital records including emails, 

databases and websites. Currently the SRO requires agencies to manage current 

and long-term digital records. However, such a devolved digital record management 

arrangement is no longer desirable for several reasons, including the risk of data loss 

through the competing pressures and priorities within agencies, the periodic 

restructure and reorganisation of agencies (with the associated disruption that occurs 

to information systems) and even possible oversight, unintentional neglect and 

technological failure or failure to manage the technology (for example failure to 

migrate digital records to new digital formats). The SRO therefore intends to resource 
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the development of a revised policy and arrangements for the long-term 

management of digital records. 

 
Major Achievements & Events  

 

The year’s activities are described below in accordance with the five broad 

objectives, which have governed SRO operations during the past year. 

 
1. Establish a framework for the development of good records 

management practices within the Western Australian public sector.     
This year, 13 one-day courses were presented to the Western Australian 

public sector, including training on a range of record keeping issues at 

Karratha, Port Hedland, Wyalkatchem, Bunbury and Kalgoorlie.  Three of the 

Perth-based courses provided advice on the use of a Keyword AAA and 

Keyword for Councils. SRO staff presented another six seminars to advise 

agencies (including Ministers’ offices) about the preparation of their record 

keeping plans. 

 

A General Disposal Authority for Administrative Records was completed, and 

following endorsement by the State Records Commission (SRC) was posted 

on the SRO website. SRO staff also compiled two SRC Guidelines which 

were posted on the website, SRC Guideline No.1 (Managing Local 

Government Elected members Records), and SRC Guideline No.2, (Storage 

of State Archives retained by Government agencies).   
    

2. Cultivate a positive attitude to records management practices within the 
Western Australian public sector. 
Staff continued to participate in the meetings of the Records and Information 

Management Liaison Group, the metropolitan based Local Government 

Records Management Group and its Southwest and Midwest local 

government equivalents. Staff also gave 14 formal information 

sessions/presentations at meetings organised by other government agencies 

or professional associations. 

 

The SRO (on behalf of State Records NSW) continues to licence the use of 

Keyword AAA by Western Australian Government agencies. Four training 

courses were presented this year to assist agencies that have purchased this 



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
58 

product. The SRO also administers the licensing and distribution in Western 

Australia of ‘Keyword for Councils’, a State Records NSW initiative. 

 

In response to some opposition to the inclusion of records held by local 

government elected members within the scope of the State Records Act, the 

Director met with major stakeholders in September 2002 to clarify the 

appropriate status and disposal arrangements for these records. 

 

The following month, SRO staff gave a presentation on the record keeping 

duties of councillors to senior management from 15 local authorities in the 

Avon region. The Director further met with the Western Australia Local 

Government Association in May 2003 to progress the development of 

guidelines to assist elected members with the management and disposal of 

these records. These Guidelines were later posted on the SRO website. 

  
3. Ensure that State records are identified, collected and processed in 

such a way that the appropriate records are archived. 
The State Records Advisory Committee makes recommendations to the State 

Records Commission on the records disposal component of government 

agencies’ record keeping plans.  The Advisory Committee met seven times 

this year and recommended the approval by the Commission of 23 disposal 

authorities (that is, records disposal plans for individual agencies).  The 

Commission’s endorsement of the Committee’s recommendations ensures 

that government records will be disposed of (a term which can mean 

archived) in a timely and accountable way.  

 
In November 2002, the SRO commenced a 12 month project to organise and 

make accessible all records of the Royal Commission into WA Inc that were 

transferred to the SRO’s custody after that Commission ceased operations in 

December 1992. The majority of these records were transferred to the SRO in 

1999, following the cessation of legal proceedings by the Director of Public 

Prosecutions. 

 

Prior to February 2001, the SRO took custody of records (designated as 

archives) from almost every Minister of the Crown who served with the Court 

Government between 1993 and 2001.  During the past year SRO staff 
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completed the processing of these ministerial records, an activity which 

involved the sorting, listing and boxing of 50 shelf metres of State archives.  

 

4. Improve access to records in the State archives collection 
The State Records Office has commenced a project to upgrade and expand 

the existing in-house archives database that documents the records held in 

the State Archives collection. The project will also encompass a web search 

engine to enable this resource to be searched by agencies and the general 

public. It will also facilitate the creation of a register of all State archives as 

required under Section 73 of the State Records Act 2000. 

   

Six lunchtime seminars (called Sandwich Seminars) were held to promote the 

State archives collection and describe methods of access to archival records. 

The seminars discussed records of interest to researchers of native title 

research, convict ancestors, government schools and former government 

employees. In addition, SRO staff gave eight talks to client groups on access 

to and use of records in the State archives collection.  

 

The SRO and the Perth Office of the National Archives of Australia continued 

to jointly promote their public access services, the main collaborative venture 

being a promotional visit to Carnarvon in August 2002. These joint visits are 

very effective from a cost benefit perspective and also provide a 

comprehensive picture to the public of the range of archives that originate 

from Australia’s three tiers of government. 

 

Work commenced on the conservation and microfilming of the earliest series 

of Western Australian criminal case files.  Dating from 1832 to 1861, these 

files were transferred from the Supreme Court in the late 1980s.  The filming 

of these records will allow improved access to ensure the ongoing 

preservation of records vital to the State’s legal history.  Other records filmed 

include record of service cards of Western Australian Government Railways 

Commission (WAGR) employees who worked at the Midland workshops; 

selected drawings of locomotives built at the same workshops (these are 

frequently used by railway enthusiasts and modellers); and the early Council 

minutes and letter books of Wanneroo Shire. 
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In December 2002, the Commission launched the Margaret Medcalf Award, 

an award to be presented annually for the best work utilising records held in 

the State archives collection. About 80 nominations for the award were 

received by the 31st March 2003 closure date. The inaugural presentation of 

the Award  is scheduled to take place on 18 August 2003, when the Minister 

for Culture and the Arts will present a cash prize and certificate to the winner.  
 

5. Progress the implementation of the State Records Act 2000 
Activities undertaken this year by the SRO to implement the new archives 

legislation included:  

• Six information workshops to assist government agencies with the 

compilation and submission of record keeping plans and the 

compilation of guidelines and checklists to assist agencies with their 

plans; 

• Regular meetings with senior staff from government agencies; 

• Meetings with senior management of eight major State Government 

agencies to progress the development of their record keeping plans; 

• The Director addressing members of the Strategic Management 

Council in June 2003 and asking for their help in implementing his 

plan to assist State and local government agencies in meeting the 

March 2004 deadline to submit record keeping plans. 

 

The State Records Commission standards and guidelines were published on 

the SRO website (www.sro.wa.gov.au). Further advice to agencies and the 

general public on Commission and SRO publications and activities was 

provided in the SRO online newsletter, State of the Record. 
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PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT UNITS 

 

1. DIRECTOR GENERAL’S SECRETARIAT 

 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Jackie Lipiec 

 
NUMBER OF STAFF 

3.6 FTEs, 4 people 

 

The purpose of the Director General’s Secretariat is to:  

• Manage the administration of the Office of the Director General; 

• Provide executive and secretarial support to the Director General; 

• Coordinate and track all Ministerial correspondence to and from the 

Department and its agencies; 

• Provide training and advice on Ministerial formats and protocols to relevant 

staff of the Department and its agencies; 

• Monitor performance across the portfolio against Ministerial due dates and 

provide regular reports to the agencies on their efficiency; 

• Provide administrative support to Corporate Affairs; 

• Provide administrative support to Organisational Development; and 

• Provide administrative support to Planning and Policy. 

 

Ministerial Services Effectiveness Indicator 2002-2003 

 

 2001-2002 2002-2003

Number of Ministerials administered by the 
Department 1785 1809

Number of Ministerials requiring a written 
response by the Minister 494 714

Percentage responded to within 7 days 70% 81%

Percentage less than 5 days overdue 22% 17%

Percentage more than 5 days 8% 3%
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2. PLANNING & POLICY 

 
DIRECTOR 

Ellis Griffiths 

 
NUMBER OF STAFF 

8.5 FTEs, 11 people 

 

The Planning and Policy Division works towards the Department’s vision and mission 

and cooperates on a range of projects and long-term initiatives.   

 

The Division primarily provides policy, research and strategic support to the Director 

General and the Minister for Culture and the Arts.   In addition the Division works with 

the arts and culture sector through policy development and strategic projects and 

promoting the value of the arts initiatives.  It develops strategic and sustainable 

partnerships across State Government agencies and undertakes coordination work 

across the portfolio agencies and provides policy and project management 

consultancy services when requested. 

 

Planning and Policy has four key objectives:  

1. Ministerial Support – to provide effective and efficient support to the Minister 

for Culture and the Arts; 

2. Policy Advice and Development – to provide policy advice to the Director 

General and to coordinate the development of policy with portfolio-wide 

implications.  To ensure that policy is developed consistent with the strategic 

objectives of the Department and Government.  To ensure policy advice takes 

account of the views and interests of stakeholders; 

3. Planning & Coordination – To provide advice to the Director General on the 

capital works of the portfolio and to coordinate portfolio-wide capital works 

programs and projects; and 

4. Project Management and Art and Cultural Policy Advocacy – to undertake 

relevant project management and the promotion, advocacy and 

implementation of policy. 
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MINISTERIAL SUPPORT (KEY OBJECTIVE 1) 

Planning and Policy Division supports Western Australia’s participation in the Cultural 

Ministers Council (CMC), the CMC Standing Committee and its working parties.  The 

Council met in Tasmania in February 2003 and the following issues were on the 

agenda: 

 
Key issues that were discussed 

• Inquiry into the Contemporary Visual Arts and Craft Sector – Myer Report 

(Commonwealth) 

• Implementation of Recommendations of the Major Performing Arts Inquiry 

(Commonwealth) 

• Public Art in Australia:  Future Directions (Queensland) 
 

CMC Initiatives Progress Reports 

• National Collections Advisory Forum (Commonwealth) – Presentation 

• Council of Australian Government Framework to Advance Reconciliation – 

Implementation plan and budget (New South Wales) 

• Redevelopment of Australian Museums and Galleries Online Website (AMOL) 

(Commonwealth) 

• Statistics Working Group – Budget proposals (Western Australia) 

• Implementation of the Report to Ministers on the Small to Medium Performing 

Arts Sector (Western Australia) 

• Return of Indigenous Cultural Property Program (Commonwealth) 

• CMC Financial Report and Budget (Commonwealth) 

 
POLICY ADVICE AND DEVELOPMENT (KEY OBJECTIVE 2) 

Planning and Policy Division is responsible for the coordination of policy advice in 

key areas.  All of the policy development work is underpinned by the following 

principles: 

• Access and equity; 

• Participation for all people; 

• Creativity and innovation; 

• Artistic excellence; 

• Cultural diversity; 

• Preservation and development of Indigenous cultures; 

• The preservation, development and expression of Western Australia’s unique 

identity; and 
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• Capacity building. 

 

Cultural Signposts – Directions for Arts and Culture in Regional Western 
Australia. 
Planning and Policy Division has undertaken extensive consultation to develop a 

policy that aims to improve access for arts and culture in regional, rural and remote 

Western Australian communities.  The policy is entitled Cultural Signposts – 

Directions for Arts and Culture in Regional Western Australia. 

 

A survey was undertaken in February 2002 of people who lived in the regions and 

were involved in arts and culture.  The results informed the development of a draft 

policy statement, which was widely circulated for public comment in November 2002.  

72 written submissions were received and the comments and suggestions contained 

therein were carefully considered in revising the policy.   

 

Cultural Signposts builds upon the Government’s principles and commitments 

documented in its election policies and reflects both community and Government 

aspirations for the future.   

 

The policy outlines strategies and new initiatives across four key areas: 

• Sustainability and Engagement – ensuring access to a rich cultural 

environment; 

• Developing the Individual – ensuring access to skills development; 

• Buildings, People and Technology – expanding and improving infrastructure; 

and, 

• Coordination, Networks and Partnerships – developing a coordinated arts and 

cultural sector. 

 

An Action Plan has been developed to guide implementation of nine priority 

strategies.  Implementation of all strategies will be undertaken by the portfolio 

agencies as part of core business and through the establishment of partnerships and 

liaison with other sectors.  Progress will be reported by the Planning and Policy 

Division at regular intervals.   

 

The Minister for Culture and the Arts will launch the policy at the State Regional Arts 

Conference in Karratha on 25 July 2003. 
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Local and Independent Museum Policy 
The Minister for Culture and the Arts announced the appointment of a Museum 

Policy Reference Group in May 2003.  The Reference Group will examine support 

and development issues for local and independent museums, art galleries and 

Indigenous keeping places and explore their role in maintaining the distributed 

national material heritage.   

 

The Museum Policy Reference Group will provide advice on: 

• The significance and distinctiveness of the distributed collections in 

museums, galleries and keeping places; 

• The level and nature of access to and usage of museums, galleries and 

keeping places to the general community; 

• How equitable and representative of the diversity of the Australian community 

are the policies, collections and operations of the State’s museums, galleries 

and keeping places; 

• The resources available to museums, galleries and keeping places to 

maintain, collect and exhibit their collections; 

• The role which museums and their collections play in interpretation, identity, 

social and economic development and tourism; 

• Best practice and sustainable models, programs standards and 

benchmarking which can assist in raising the standards, and extending the 

activities of museums, galleries and keeping places in Western Australia both 

within and beyond the confines of their buildings; and 

• Partnership opportunities for museums in Western Australia. 

 
The Museum Policy Reference Group is scheduled to meet in August, and will be 

chaired by the Member for Albany, Mr Peter Watson MLA.  Its members are:  

• Ms Anne Brake, President, Museums Australia (WA);  

• Mr Bill Bunbury, independent historian/broadcaster;  

• Mr John Dell, Scientist, Department of Environmental Protection;  

• Ms Lyn Diepeveen, Country Museums;  

• Mr Ellis Griffiths, Department of Culture and the Arts;  

• Ms Kandy Jane Henderson, Archivist, John Curtin Memorial Library;  

• Dr Lenore Layman, Senior Lecturer, Murdoch University;  

• Mr Craig Somerville, indigenous issues; 

• Mr Greg Wallace, Western Australian Museum; and 
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• a representative of local government, (yet to be nominated) by the Western 

Australian Local Government Association. 

 
Sustainability Policy 
The Planning and Policy Division has coordinated, researched and written the culture 

and arts portfolio-wide response, Cultural Capital, to the Government’s sustainability 

strategy Focus on the Future-The Western Australian State Sustainability Strategy. 

 
Can Perth Be More Creative? – Planning Policy 
The Planning and Policy Division has worked closely with the Department for 

Planning and Infrastructure (DPI) and its Greater Perth planning team in responding 

to its working paper Can Perth Be More Creative? (commissioned from international 

culture and city specialist, Charles Landry of Commedia in the UK) and in the 

preparation of a major discussion paper which will inform the large-scale consultation 

with the Western Australian community entitled Dialogue with the City.  The Division 

coordinated, researched and wrote the culture and arts portfolio submission, 

convened four of the groups and assisted DPI in editing the final report. 

 
Capital Works Policy 
A major component of the Rebuilding the Arts policy was a capital works program to 

redress long-standing problems associated with below standard or non-existent 

infrastructure.  A Capital Works Policy has been developed to identify specific needs 

and priorities and includes an implementation plan for a 10-year rollout of works.  

 

Key elements of the policy include: 

• The refurbishment of the Subiaco Theatre Centre in partnership with the City 

of Subiaco; 

• Consultation, planning and development of a new performing arts centre for 

Perth; 

• Improvements to the Blue Room Theatre; 

• A new multipurpose performance space in Broome in partnership with the 

Shire of Broome; 

• The relocation of the West Australian Symphony Orchestra (WASO) to new 

rehearsal and office facilities; and 

• The revitalisation of the Perth Cultural Centre. 
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These and other projects are underpinned by a venues usage policy, which is 

currently being developed and will be released late in 2003.  This policy aims to 

ensure decisions on new facilities and improvements to existing ones result in a 

complimentary set of resources. 

 
Contemporary Music Policy 
The four-year, $5million Contemporary Music strategy (as recommended by the 

Contemporary Music Ministerial Taskforce) is well into the implementation phase. 

The majority of the Contemporary Music programs are under the management of 

ArtsWA.  The Planning and Policy Division retains responsibility for three programs 

designed to raise local awareness of the Western Australian music industry.  These 

programs are: 

• A History of Western Australian music touring exhibition; 

• A music education pack to assist teachers in incorporating local music 

examples in music education programs; and 

• A ‘music-on-hold’ project to encourage Government agencies to use local 

music for their telephone on hold services.  

 

These programs are all underway.  It is anticipated that all of the policy’s programs 

will be evaluated in late 2004. 

 
Creative Connections - Arts in Education Policy 
The Department of Culture and the Arts has entered into a partnership agreement 

with the Department of Education and Training to develop an Arts in Education 

Policy.  The policy will articulate the Government’s commitment to promoting 

excellence and access in arts learning and will support arts organisations to develop 

quality arts learning programs and publications.   

 

The policy aims to have a direct effect on the arts and English learning areas of the 

State’s Curriculum Framework, as well as demonstrate the contribution arts and 

culture can make to the other six learning areas.  It will affect teaching and learning in 

Government schools from kindergarten to year 12. 

 

The Planning and Policy Division has undertaken a mapping of the education 

services provided by portfolio agencies and major arts organisations and conducted 

a review of relevant literature.  In March 2003, the Department of Culture and the 

Arts and the Department of Education and Training jointly released Creative 
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Connections: An Arts in Education Policy Consultation Paper.  50 written 

submissions have been received and more than 80 people attended consultation 

forums in Perth, Kalgoorlie and Narrogin.  A report on the outcomes of consultation 

will be made available and a draft of the policy released in July/August 2003.  It is 

anticipated that the Creative Connections policy will be finalised by December 2003. 

 

The key to successful implementation of this policy will be in broadening and 

strengthening the current partnership that has developed between our respective 

Departments through the existing ArtsEdge program. 

 
Whole of Government Statement on Arts and Culture 
Work has commenced on a major policy document, which promotes the value of arts 

and culture to a broad audience.  The document will package the research and policy 

work undertaken by the portfolio over the last 24 months and will be finished in 

February 2004.  A highlight of this report will be how State Government departments 

have used the arts and culture to deliver their core functions. 

 
Indigenous Action Plan and Statement of Principles 
A portfolio-wide reference group has been established to direct the work on this 

initiative.  In late 2002 an Indigenous officer was seconded to the Planning and Policy 

Division to assist in formulating directions and conducting consultations.  The 

Statement of Principles has been drafted and the Action Plan developed.  The Plan 

will be finalised in late 2003. 

 
Cultural Tourism Strategy 
The strategic partnership between the Department and the Western Australian 

Tourism Commission (WATC) continued in 2002-2003.  The aim of the partnership is 

to develop and implement a cultural tourism strategy and foster relationships in order 

to better integrate the arts, culture and tourism industries.  

 

Activities and achievements during the year include:  

• The development of a discussion paper titled Journey Further; A Cultural 

Tourism Strategy for Western Australia 2003-2007. This paper articulates a 

coordinated approach to the marketing of Western Australian culture and will 

be released for public comment in 2003; 

• The formation of a Cultural Tourism Partnership Reference Group, 

established to provide advice on the development of a cultural tourism 
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strategy, integrate networks and foster ownership of projects and strategies. 

The groups' membership is drawn from WATC, DCA, ArtsWA, Perth 

International Arts Festival, Art Gallery of Western Australia, Western 

Australian Museum, the State Library of Western Australia, Ogden IFC 

(Perth) Pty Ltd and the Western Australian Maritime Museum; 

• Working with the Perth International Arts Festival and the WATC to captialise 

on tourism opportunites associated with the 2003 festival.  This included 

promoting and packaging Wagner’s Twilight of the Gods opera event to the 

German market, assisting with international and national media, and working 

to retain the Antony Gormley’s sculptural installation on the salt plains of Lake 

Ballard as a permanent cultural and tourism icon for Western Australia; 

• Coordinating an arts/tourism breakfast in November 2002 in conjunction with 

the Western Australian chapter of the Pacific Asian Travel Association PATA 

(WA) and the Perth Convention Bureau. Guest speakers were Sean Doran, 

Artistic Director of PIAF 2003 and Alan Dodge, Director of the Art Gallery of 

Western Australia; 

• Sourcing cultural/arts product for specific tourism delegations; 

• Working to establish a visual database of the State’s cultural features and 

attractions within the WATC; 

• Familiarising WATC staff with key Western Australian arts and cultutral 

agencies, organisations and product; and 

• Commissioning the Bureau of Tourism Research, via the Cultural Minister’s 

Council Statistics Working Group, to undertake a report on the national value 

of Cultural Tourism.  

 

PLANNING & COORDINATION (KEY OBJECTIVE 3) 

Under the framework of the Capital Works Policy, major infrastructure projects are 

being planned and coordinated by the Division.  The policy emphasises partnerships 

in the planning and development of the various projects.  Important partners include 

the City of Perth, the City of Subiaco, the Shire of Broome, the theatre community 

and the West Australian Symphony Orchestra (WASO). 
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Capital Works 
 

Refurbishments of Performing Arts Venues 

The 10-year Capital Works Investment plan is the vehicle for the progressive 

revitalisation and improvement of Perth’s key metropolitan Performing Arts Venues.  

Commencing with the Blue Room Theatre in Northbridge and the Subiaco Theatre 

Centre in Subiaco, the plan includes works on PICA and the Rechabite Hall in 

Northbridge, His Majesty’s Theatre and the Regal Theatre. 

 

As step one, architects have been commissioned to design the refurbishment of the 

heritage listed Blue Room. The sketch plans have been conditionally approved by the 

Heritage Commission and it is expected that construction will commence in January 

2004 and completed in July 2004.  

 

A joint funding agreement is being drawn up between the City of Subiaco and the 

Department on the refurbishment of the Subiaco Theatre Centre, which will be known 

as the Subiaco Arts Centre.  An engineering study on the structural integrity of the 

building will be completed in November 2003 and construction will start in June 2004 

and completed in April 2005.  

 

Work on the remaining four venues will roll out over the remainder of the 10-year 

plan.  

 
Additionally $1.8million has recently been spent on improving disability access to a 

range of cultural venues. 

 
Broome Arts Centre 
The Department is supporting the Shire of Broome in the creation of a multi-purpose 

arts venue to serve Broome and the Kimberley Region. This project is being 

managed by the Shire with a $5million grant from the State Government. To date the 

Shire has completed a thorough community consultation involving Indigenous and 

non-Indigenous communities.  

 

The Department will commence work with the Shire on the development of an 

architect’s brief in July 2003. This is in preparation for the engagement of a project 

team to design and document the Arts Centre. 
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Bunbury Regional History Museum 
The Government has allocated $1million to the City of Bunbury in the creation of a 

Regional History Museum to serve Bunbury and the South West Region.  The City of 

Bunbury is currently conducting feasibility plans. 

 

Western Australian Symphony Orchestra Relocation Project 
The Department, in collaboration with the City of Perth, has continued to work with 

the Western Australian Symphony Orchestra on its relocation from the old ABC site 

on Adelaide Terrace. $8million has been allocated to this project, with the initial step 

being an interim relocation to the Perth Concert Hall from early 2005.  

 

Cultural Centre Stakeholders Group 
The Cultural Centre Stakeholders Group is comprised of those arts and cultural 

institutions that are based in the Perth Cultural Centre.  It is coordinated by the 

Planning and Policy Division and chaired by the Director General of the Department 

of Culture and the Arts, Mr Alastair Bryant.  The Group met on a regular basis 

throughout 2002-2003 to share areas of common concern.  Major issues it 

considered were community safety, security, young people in the city and the 

enlivenment of the Perth Cultural Centre through programmed outdoor arts events.   

The following outcomes were achieved in 2002-2003: 

• Maintenance upgrade; 

• Installation of outdoor lighting; 

• Accessible seating; 

• YMCA bus; and 

• Sponsorship for extended time with the Noongar Patrol within Northbridge. 

 
Percent for Art Scheme Review 
The Department of Culture and the Arts continued to work in partnership with the 

Department of Housing and Works to advocate, develop, implement and deliver the 

Percent for Art Scheme.  The allocation of a percentage for art component, up to one 

percent, is encouraged in all State Government capital works projects. 

 

A number of new Percent for Art Scheme projects were completed or commenced in 

2002-2003, expanding the Scheme and developing new opportunities for a range of 

Western Australian artists. 
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The Department of Culture and the Arts commenced a review of the objectives of the 

Scheme during the first half of 2002.  A range of research and consultation strategies 

were undertaken in 2002-2003 to ensure all stakeholders, including the visual arts 

sector, artists, client departments, building users, fabricators, contract managers and 

art coordinators, were consulted.  The Planning and Policy Division has coordinated 

the process, with support from the Department of Housing and Works. 

 

In August 2002, a background paper on the Percent for Art Scheme was widely 

distributed to stakeholders and made available on the Department’s website.  An 

independent facilitator, Ms Margaret Moore, was appointed to facilitate focus and 

discussion groups, with 70 participants in total.  In addition, the Department called for 

public comment and received 56 written submissions about the Scheme.  A number 

of follow-up interviews were conducted.   

 

Information from the consultation process has been combined with data collected 

from administrative records to produce a report entitled Integrating Views – A Review 

of the State Government’s Percent for Art Scheme.  The report examines the 

success of the Scheme against its objectives, makes a range of recommendations to 

address challenges in realising the potential of the Scheme, and proposes a plan for 

the development of the Scheme into the future.  Integrating Views will be released in 

the second half of 2003. 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ART AND CULTURAL POLICY ADVOCACY (KEY 

OBJECTIVE 4) 

ArtsEdge 
ArtsEdge is a partnership between the Department of Culture and the Arts and the 

Department of Education and Training.  ArtsEdge seeks to assist schools to deliver 

cultural and arts education that is engaging, accessible, excellent, applicable and 

economic. It encourages and facilitates teachers and students to develop and 

express their creativity, creates partnerships between schools, artists and arts 

organisations, and develops curriculum resources for the Arts learning area. 

 

In 2002, The Planning and Policy Division established a reference group comprised 

of arts teachers, representatives of arts organisations, government representatives 

and high profile arts academics to: 

• provide advice on the review and future directions for ArtsEdge; 

• assist ArtsEdge to develop a long-term strategic vision for the project; and 
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• act in an advisory capacity to the ArtsEdge project. 

 

The review of ArtsEdge was completed in December 2002 and endorsed by the 

reference group.  A Strategic Plan has been developed to guide ArtsEdge activities 

for the 2003-2006 period.   

 

The Strategic Plan identifies four key service areas: 

• Delivery of workshops that provide training for artists and arts organisations 

working in schools; 

• Communication with artists, arts organisations and schools via a calendar of 

arts events, an email group and a website; 

• Brokerage services whereby District Education Offices and/or schools are 

linked with teaching artists and arts organisations; and 

• Production of support material such as the ArtsEdge Calendar and teaching 

programs that link to the Curriculum Framework and the Arts Learning Area 

Student Outcomes Framework. 

 
Education Arts Partnership Initiative Research Grant 
In May 2002, the Australia Council announced its Education and the Arts Partnership 

Initiative (EAPI).  The aim of the EAPI is to enhance knowledge and practice in the 

area of education and the arts, develop new strategic and ongoing 

alliances/networks, and work towards developing a body of education and arts 

research relating to contemporary Australia. 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts, in partnership with the Department of 

Education and Training and the University of Western Australia, submitted an EAPI 

research project proposal, which was one of four successful applications Australia-

wide.   

 

The exploratory study will map, through a range of research methods, how arts 

education programs establish the foundations for long-term motivation and 

engagement with overall learning experiences.  It will seek to contribute to evidence 

documenting how the arts connect with those students who may otherwise not be 

reached in other areas of the education framework or styles of teaching. The study 

will complement discrete arts and education initiatives and research into creative and 

critical thinking currently being conducted by the partners, and provide a foundation 
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for a long-term arts and education research and development with an Australian 

focus.  

 

A call for expressions of interest has been circulated to schools to identify eight 

metropolitan and four regional schools to participate in the project.  The schools 

selected will present a mix of those that do, and those that do not, have professional 

artists involved in the teaching delivery of the arts.  The research project will be 

completed by June 2004. 

 

Arts and Culture Research Monitor 
In February 2003, the Planning and Policy Division coordinated the annual arts and 

culture research monitor.  This is the second year that this monitor has been 

conducted.  Surveying 500 people throughout Western Australia, the monitor 

provides information on attendance at arts events, amount spent on arts and culture 

and attitudes towards the arts.  A copy of the full report is available on the 

Department’s web site at www.dca.wa.gov.au. 

Cultural Advocacy 
The Division has organised two cultural advocacy seminars to promote the value of 

the arts as part of its contribution to the Celestial City Seminar Program during the 

2003 Perth International Arts Festival.  The first seminar of Contemporary Art 

Originals - Collecting on the West Coast was designed to encourage the community 

to collect Western Australian art and involved presentations by Gary Dufour, Deputy 

Director of the Art Gallery of Western Australia; Helen Morgan, Director of the Church 

Gallery; John Stringer, Curator of the Kerry Stokes Collection; Norah Ohrt, Managing 

Director of Perth Galleries and Sotheby’s agent; Michelle Glaser, practicing artist; 

Marcus Canning, Artistic Director of Artrage Festival; and Diana Warnock, individual 

collector.  

 

The second, Transforming Creativity: New Ways of Working in a Networked Culture, 

involved presentations by Dr Gail Phillips, of Murdoch University; Ross Hutchins, 

filmmaker; Megan Salmon, fashion designer; Paul Bodlovich, Western Australian 

Contemporary Music Association; and Michelle Glaser, multi-media specialist. 

 
Perth International Arts Festival Liaison 
Once again, the Planning and Policy Division coordinated the arts and culture 

portfolio liaison with the 2002 Perth International Arts Festival.  This included:  

• the Celestial City activities in the Perth Cultural Centre; and 
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• the Writers Festival and Writers Festival bookshop hosted in the State 

Library, Art Gallery of Western Australia, Perth Institute of Contemporary Art 

and the Western Australian Museum, including coordinating the lighting 

project, which saw all Cultural Centre buildings permanently lit in coloured 

light, contributing $12,000 to the inaugural Perth International Writers Festival 

to secure the bookshop rights, coordinating the development of the 

sponsorship proposal and working with the portfolio agencies to deliver a 

superb Writers Festival bookshop. 

 
Government Art And Cultural Heritage Collection Data Base 

This collection database was first introduced in 1998 as a result of a Cabinet 

approved decision in 1997.  This was documented in Cabinet Minute 4.4 – “Cabinet 

endorses the Department of Culture and the Arts (then ArtsWA) to document all 

artworks currently owned by the Western Australian Government to establish the 

Western Australian Government Art Collection”.  These artworks and heritage items 

are housed in various government agencies throughout the State.  The scope of this 

database is wide and currently records over 1000 items from over 20 State agencies 

including Westrail, Fremantle Port Authority, West Australian State Parliament and 

Department of Indigenous Affairs. 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts is responsible for liaising with agencies to 

ensure that all database records pertaining to the Western Australian Government 

Art Collection are checked regularly, kept up to date, and accurate, therefore meeting 

the Auditor General’s requirements. 

 

By June 2003, the first of these database audits had been completed.  The current 

total value of the Collection is now $138,949.  Other Government agencies’ collection 

records are currently being re-valued and undergoing audit checks. 

 
Indian Ocean Territories Service Delivery Arrangement 
A Service Delivery Arrangement (SDA) was finalised in May 2003 between the 

Department of Culture and the Arts and the Department of Territories and Regional 

Services – Perth, for the provision of arts and cultural services to the Indian Ocean 

Territories (IOTs), including Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Islands.   

 

The SDA aims to provide arts and cultural services to the Indian Ocean Territory 

communities to a level comparative with that provided to remote Western Australian 
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communities.  The Commonwealth Government will pay all grants approved under 

State programs from Commonwealth funds, reimburse the State for all service costs 

and indemnify the State for all services delivered via the SDA. 

 

The SDA will operate for a three-year period ending 30 June 2006.  The Planning 

and Policy Division will manage the SDA and key providers will be ArtsWA, 

Community Arts Network WA, Country Arts WA and the Western Australian Museum.  

Library services will continue to be provided via a pre-existing SDA signed by the 

State Library of Western Australia. 

 
Disability Services Committee 
The Disability Services Committee is convened by the Planning and Policy Division 

and has representatives from the business support units, and the portfolio agencies, 

ArtsWA, ScreenWest, Western Australian Museum, State Library of Western 

Australia and the Art Gallery of Western Australia.  Additional representatives include 

Disability in the Arts Disadvantage in the Arts Australia (WA) Inc, Disability Services 

Commission and two customer representatives who have a disability or impairment. 

 

The Department was recognised as achieving excellence in access improvements 

and initiatives across the portfolio, receiving an Action on Access Award in the Large 

State Government Agency Category. 

 

Regional Services Committee 
The Planning and Policy Division convenes the Regional Services Committee (RSC) 

for the purpose of coordinating the Department’s services to regional areas.  The 

RSC has representation from all agencies of the arts and culture portfolio and from 

arts organisations that manage funding programs on behalf of the State.  

Represented are:  

• Planning and Policy Division;  

• ArtsWA; 

• Western Australian Museum;  

• Art Gallery of Western Australia; 

• State Library of the Western Australia; 

• State Records Office; 

• Art on the Move;  

• Community Arts Network WA; and 

• Country Arts WA. 
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During 2002-2003, contact with the RSC was via direct correspondence in relation to 

the development of the Cultural Signposts policy for arts and culture in the regions.  

During this period, the Regional Roundtable convened by ArtsWA provided a forum 

for coordination of regional services.  Following the launch of Cultural Signposts in 

July 2003, the RSC will recommence regular meetings to encourage collaboration 

amongst members and provide advice and assistance on implementing the Cultural 

Signposts policy. 

 
International Arts Development Coordinating Committee (IADCC) 
Planning and Policy Division convenes the International Arts Development 

Coordinating Committee (IADCC), which meets quarterly.  The IADCC brings 

together a number of State and Commonwealth Government departments involved in 

overseas trade and promotion.   

 

Represented are:  

• Planning and Policy Division;  

• ArtsWA;  

• Department of Industry and Resources;  

• Western Australian Tourism Commission;  

• Austrade; and  

• Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade. 

 

Sister-State Relationships 
The Department of Culture and the Arts participates from time to time in cultural 

exchange projects linked to Western Australia's sister-state relationships.  Western 

Australia has Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) with East Java in Indonesia, 

Hyogo Prefecture in Japan, Zhejiang Province in the People's Republic of China and 

the Tuscany region of Italy. 

 

2002 marked the 15th anniversary of sister-state relations with Zhejiang Province 

and this landmark was celebrated with a visual arts exchange. An exhibition entitled 

Female Vision - Exhibition of Chinese Female Artists was presented at the Western 

Australian Museum's Hellenic Gallery in October 2002.  The exhibition was opened 

on Chinese National Day (October 1) by the Western Australian Premier, in the 

presence of the First Vice Governor of Zhejiang Provincial People's Government.  

Eight of the participating Chinese artists visited Perth for the exhibition.  A reciprocal 
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exhibition featuring some of Western Australia's finest artists travelled to Hangzhou in 

the Zhejiang Province in December 2002.  The exhibition, entitled Connections II, 

was developed by Ms Joy Scott and Mr Mike O'Ferrall and was supported through 

ArtsWA. 
 

The Planning and Policy Division represents the Department on the Tuscany 

Working Group, which is convened by the Department of Industry and Resources to 

further the aims of the MOU between Tuscany and Western Australia.  In March 

2003, The Planning and Policy Division assisted the Toscany Association of WA to 

present an international exhibition on migration from Tuscany, entitled Gente di 

Toscana, at the Maritime Museum in Fremantle.  The Toscany Association 

supplemented the exhibition with members’ photographs of migration experiences 

and a display of traditional linen. 

 

Information and Resource Centre 
The Information and Resource Centre has provided a library and reference service 

for the professional staff of the Department, members of arts agencies and the wider 

arts community.  Research for 2002-2003 has included: 

• references for a bibliography for the Arts in Education Research Bibliography; 

2003 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/images/alldocuments/planandpolicy/cc%20bibliogr

aphy.pdf; 

• research material and background information for the papers published by the 

Department including Creative Connections; An Arts in Education Policy 

Consultation Paper February 2003, 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/images/alldocuments/planandpolicy/summary.pdf 

• Findings & Recommendations of the Ministerial Taskforce into Contemporary 

Music Synopsis, September 2002 

http://www.dca.wa.gov.au/images/alldocuments/planandpolicy/cmreportsynop

sis.pdf; and 

• the Museum Policy, which is still a work in progress. 

 

Research for the ArtsWA’s Arts Development Policy 2003-2005 Draft June 2003 

included references to the current arts and cultural statistical papers. 

 

The Information and Resource Centre retains a collection of books, videos, CD 

ROMs, reports and journals pertaining to arts policy and arts policy development, 
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cultural statistics, annual reports, information about Federal and state arts 

departments and agencies, newsletters and related materials from the West 

Australian community publications and leaflets. 

 

The new Articles Database, listing papers, articles and reports, is proving a useful 

resource of reference material.  A valuable new resource is The New Grants Register 

2004: the complete guide to postgraduate funding worldwide which lists 3,300 

awards from 47 countries.  Additional directories of grants, awards and scholarships 

for artists can be read in the Department. 
 

The Competition and Festivals Booklet, with contact details and awards for all the 

major art prizes and festivals throughout Western Australia; the quarterly Arts 

Conferences and Seminars; and a useful list of Departmental publications held in the 

Resource centre are currently available on the website http://www.dca.wa.gov.au. 
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3. CORPORATE AFFAIRS 

 

DIRECTOR 

Margaret Butcher 

 

NUMBER OF STAFF 

3 FTEs, 3 people 

 

Corporate Affairs provides strategic communications planning, counsel and advice 

across the Department of Culture and the Arts, including the portfolio agencies. 

 

Corporate Affairs is responsible for all media enquiries, and throughout 2002-2003, 

has managed media liaison on behalf of the Department with local, State and 

national media organisations.   

 

Corporate Affairs has also worked with business support units and the portfolio 

agencies in the development of media strategies for specific projects and initiatives. 

 

Over the past 12 months, the work of Corporate Affairs has addressed three priority 

areas: Strategy and Communications; Promoting the Value of the Arts; and Business 

and the Arts. 

 

STRATEGY AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
Communications Advice and Counsel 
Corporate Affairs provided the Director General, Minister’s office, business support 

units and portfolio agencies with strategic communications advice and counsel on a 

broad range of strategies, initiatives and issues during 2002-2003. 

 

Corporate Affairs has been involved in: 

• The implementation of the Machinery of Government Taskforce 

recommendations; 

• The communication strategy of the outcome of the review of statutory 

authorities; 

• Providing communications advice and strategy to Financial Services on all 

aspects of the budget process; 
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• The development of issues management and communications strategies for 

the opening of the new Maritime Museum in Fremantle; 

• The development of issues management and communications strategies for 

the relocation of the functions of the Francis Street building of the Western 

Australian Museum; 

• The development and implementation of issues management and 

communications strategies associated with the purchase and exhibition of 

items from the Freycinet collection, in association with the State Library of 

Western Australia; 

• The development of communications strategies to increase awareness of the 

role and responsibilities of the State Records Office; and 

• The development of issues management and communications strategies for 

the Swan Bells.  

 
Issues Management and Media Training 
In March 2003, senior management of the portfolio attended a one-day workshop on 

issues management and media training.  The workshop was initiated by Corporate 

Affairs to provide valuable skills, training and advice to assist management to identify 

emerging issues, develop appropriate messages and responses, and effectively 

communicate with the media and other stakeholders. The workshop was delivered by 

international experts in the field of risk management, Lynch Strategy and 

Communications. 

 

Internet 
An enhanced website for the Department was launched in October 2002.  Corporate 

Affairs was responsible for the development of the site, which utilises a content 

management system to allow all staff in the Department the ability to create and 

maintain information. 

 

The enhanced website includes three separate sites with distinct URLs: 

1. www.dca.wa.gov.au was developed to provide information about the business 

of the Department and its portfolio agencies.  It provides information about the 

structure of the Department, the policies, initiatives and projects being 

developed, and allows people to apply for current vacancies online. 

2. www.artswa.wa.gov.au was a new site for ArtsWA and provided information 

on ArtsWA’s business, including grants and industry development.   
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3. www.cultureandarts.wa.gov.au was developed as a  “shopfront” for people 

wanting information about arts and culture in Western Australia and featured 

information about specific artforms, information on arts education and a 

“what’s on” section and news stories.   

 

Corporate Affairs chairs the Content Management Group, which consists of 

representatives from the Planning and Policy Division, Information Services, Human 

Resources, Corporate Affairs and ArtsWA.  The group meets on a monthly basis and 

is responsible for the ongoing management of the websites.  

 

In April 2003, the Content Management Group decided to consolidate the information 

from the culture and arts site to the Department site to provide visitors with easier 

access to information and avoid duplication of information across the sites.   

 

The Content Management Group will review the decision to remove the culture and 

arts site at the end of 2003. 

 

From 18 October 2002 to 30 June 2003, there was a total of 2,742,111 hits across 

the three sites. 

 
Intranet 
Corporate Affairs, together with the Chief Information Officer, has been investigating 

the development of a portfolio-wide intranet following the approval of the Information 

Services (IS) Steering Committee of a business case, developed by an Intranet 

Working Party chaired by Corporate Affairs in 2002. 

 

Information Services and Corporate Affairs are investigating appropriate software for 

the development of the intranet.  It is anticipated the intranet will be online in the 

second half of 2003. 

 

PROMOTING THE VALUE OF THE ARTS 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts is committed to making all West Australians 

aware of the importance of arts and culture. 

 

The Director, Corporate Affairs has been working with the Director, Art Gallery, the 

Director, ArtsWA and the Director, Planning and Policy to develop a portfolio-wide 
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strategy to promote the value of the arts.  The strategy is expected to be finalised, for 

approval by PVOT, by the end of 2003.  

 

Corporate Affairs has implemented a number of strategies developed to assist in 

raising awareness of the value of the arts. 

 
Journalists Program 
Corporate Affairs has managed the development and implementation of a Journalists 

Program since 1999. 

 

The 2003 program was held on 4 June 2003 and included eight journalists from The 

West Australian and two journalists from WA Business News.  Journalists from The 

Sunday Times, ABC (radio and television), Community Newspaper Group and Radio 

6PR were also invited to attend, but declined to participate. 

 

The objectives of the program were: 

• To facilitate long-term, effective relationships between journalists, the 

Department of Culture and the Arts and the arts and cultural sector; 

• To encourage journalists to develop an awareness, interest in and 

appreciation of, art and culture in Western Australia; and 

• To encourage and facilitate increased coverage and debate of arts and 

culture in West Australian print and electronic media. 

 

32 arts and cultural organisations provided information for inclusion in a reference 

book provided to the journalists who participated in the program.  13 arts 

organisations were directly involved in tours, programs and interviews on 4 June 

2003. 

 

The feedback from the participating journalists indicated that they found the program 

to be one of the most interesting industry sessions they had attended, and increased 

their knowledge of arts and culture in Western Australia. 

 

There is evidence of the long-term effectiveness of the program.  A number of 

journalists who have participated in the program since 1999 have established on-

going relationships with the Department of Culture and the Arts and the arts and 

cultural sector, and have written arts related stories. 
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Corporate Affairs is committed to encouraging greater relationships between the arts 

and cultural sector and the media and will be implementing further strategies to 

achieve this over the next twelve months. 

 
Australia Council Arts-Media Workshops 
Corporate Affairs assisted the Australia Council with the coordination of arts-media 

workshops in Western Australia as part of the Australia Council’s Promoting the 

Value of the Arts strategy. 

 

The workshops were held in Bunbury on 4 and 5 November 2002 and in Perth on 7 

and 8 November 2002.  Local arts and cultural organisations (and organisations with 

an interest or involvement in arts and culture) were invited to participate, with more 

than 25 people registering for the workshops. 

 

A “Meet the Media” session was held in Perth and Bunbury, with more than 60 

members of the arts and cultural sector hearing from a panel of leading media 

professionals on working with the media. 

 

BUSINESS AND THE ARTS 

 

Corporate Affairs is responsible for a business-arts strategy, centred around the 

State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards. 

 
2002 State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards and Dinner 
The 2002 State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards were presented at the Business 

and Arts dinner on 12 November 2002, at the Burswood Resort. 

 

The 2002 Awards attracted a record number of 180 nominations worth in excess of 

$5.3million in cash and in-kind support of arts and culture in Western Australia.   

 

The 2002 Awards were the first to be presented since the end of a long-term financial 

arrangement with Australian Capital Equity (ACE) to host the dinner.  

 

For the first time, the presentation dinner was a ticketed event.  Extensive 

consultation was undertaken with both the business and arts communities to 

determine an appropriate ticket price that would be equitable amongst the 

organisations. 
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Australian Capital Equity (ACE), through its company Westrac, and Wesfarmers were 

major sponsors of the presentation dinner.  A number of other organisations also 

provided sponsorship through the purchase of corporate table packages and the 

provision of product and services. 

 

Event partners and sponsors for the 2002 Awards were:  

• Burswood International Resort Casino, the venue partner, who also provided 

in-kind support towards the event’s technical requirements, in partnership with 

Staging Connections; 

• WA Business News, the exclusive print media partner; 

• Vasse Felix, Swan Brewery and Coca Cola Amatil, beverage partners; and 

• Alcoa World Alumina, BHP Billiton, Cox Howlett Bailey Woodland and Rio 

Tinto, corporate table sponsors.  

 

The Awards were judged by Mr Mark Pownall from WA Business News, Ms Sue 

Quinn from Burswood International Resort Casino and Ms Sheryl Fewster from the 

Western Australian Tourism Commission. 

 

The winners of the Prestige Awards were: 

• Best New Sponsor  – Insurance Commission of Western Australia for 

sponsorship of Barking Gecko Theatre Company. 

• Best Cross-Promotional Initiative – Aubergine for sponsorship of deckchair 

theatre. 

• Most Innovative Sponsorship – Mediterranean Shipping Company for 

sponsorship of deckchair theatre. 

• Outstanding Long-term Partnership with the Arts – Woodside Australian 

Energy for sponsorship of Western Australian Youth Orchestra Association. 

• Best Media Partnership – The West Australian for sponsorship of Barking 

Gecko Theatre Company. 

• Outstanding Commitment to Regional Arts and Culture – Alcoa World 

Alumina Australia for sponsorship of Fremantle Arts Centre. 

• Best Sponsorship by a Medium-sized Business – The Sebel Perth for 

sponsorship of Perth Theatre Company.  

• Best Sponsorship by a Small Business – Animation Works for sponsorship of  

Film and Television Institute. 

• Arts Sponsor Leadership – Judges’ Award – Insurance Commission of 

Western Australia for sponsorship of Barking Gecko Theatre Company. 
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2003 State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards 
Comprehensive research was undertaken by Corporate Affairs following the 2002 

Awards to evaluate the effectiveness of the Awards scheme and the presentation 

dinner.  The research will inform the development of a business-arts strategy, which 

will be developed over the next twelve months.  

 

The 2003 State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards will celebrate the 10th anniversary 

of the scheme.  This year’s Awards were launched by the Minister for Culture and the 

Arts on 23 June 2003 at a function attended by more than 100 business and arts 

professionals.  

 

The 2003 Awards include the introduction of new award categories, a change of 

format for the awards presentation dinner and the appointment of West Australian 

born and trained actor Marcus Graham, as keynote speaker at the awards ceremony.  

Nominations for the 2003 Awards close on 11 August 2003.  The Awards will be 

presented in November 2003. 
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4. ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

ACTING DIRECTOR 

Phil D’Adamo 

 
NUMBER OF STAFF 

3 FTEs, 3 people 

 

The purpose of the Organisational Performance Unit is to manage the 

implementation of machinery of government reforms across the Culture and the Arts 

portfolio, and continually improve the management systems within the Department 

and across the portfolio.    

 

Its functions are: 

• Organisational Development – review and enhancement of corporate governance 

structures and systems; and 

• Audit and Risk Management – review of internal systems and controls to ensure 

compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements and implementation of 

effective audit and risk management systems across the portfolio. 

 

The goals for 2002-2003 were: 

• Complete the machinery of government review of statutory authorities; 

• Commence a review of CEO positions across the Culture and the Arts 

portfolio; 

• Ensure that the agencies of the Culture and the Arts portfolio met the 

requirements of the Functional Review Taskforce in relation to the whole-of-

government review of corporate services and procurement; 

• Commence a strategic review of processes relating to all agencies of the 

Culture and the Arts portfolio aimed at achieving better ways of working and 

delivering services; and 

• Establish an Internal Audit and Risk Management section. 
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Achievements 

 
Complete the machinery of government review of statutory authorities 
This goal was achieved.   On 21 October 2002, Cabinet approved the retention of the 

Art Gallery of Western Australia, Library Board of Western Australia and the Western 

Australian Museum as statutory authorities.   Cabinet also approved the 

establishment of the ScreenWest Board, currently an Incorporated Association, as a 

statutory authority.  On 30 June 2003, Cabinet approved the abolition of the Perth 

Theatre Trust and the transfer of its functions and assets to the Department of 

Culture and the Arts.    

 

The completion of the review of statutory authorities provides much greater certainty 

and clarity to the structure of the Culture and the Arts portfolio and the working 

relationships between the agencies.  The decision also confirms the leadership and 

advocacy function of the Department for the portfolio and sets the scene for a much 

more strategic focus for culture and the arts in Western Australia and greater 

accountability for the delivery of government priorities.  Moreover, it is consistent with 

the guiding principles relating to the structure of the Department set at the 

commencement of the review, which were: 

• Unifying the portfolio; 

• Respecting the independence, uniqueness and heritage of portfolio agencies; 

• Acknowledging interdependencies; and 

• Allowing people to grow and develop to their full potential. 

 
Commence a review of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) positions across the 
Culture and the Arts portfolio 
This goal stems from Recommendation 31 of the Machinery of Government 

Taskforce Report, which aimed at achieving consistency in the processes for 

recruitment and salary determination for CEO positions in the agencies of the Culture 

and the Arts portfolio.  A further aim was to clarify the lines of responsibility and 

accountability of CEOs in relation to the Director General of the Department of 

Culture and the Arts. 

 

Consultant Maxinne Sclanders was engaged in March 2003 to review and update the 

Job Description Forms of all CEO positions, incorporating updates provided through 

the Department of the Premier and Cabinet and a set of portfolio duties and 

responsibilities as well as a performance assessment mechanism enabling the 
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Director General to assess the performance of a statutory authority CEO and vice 

versa. 

 

It is expected the review will be completed by the end of August 2003. 

 

Ensure that the agencies of the Culture and the Arts portfolio met the 
requirements of the Functional Review Taskforce in relation to the whole of 
government review of corporate services and procurement 
In July 2002, the Functional Review Taskforce launched a major information 

gathering project aimed at identifying the functions and activities of government 

agencies; the cost of those functions and activities and the connection of those 

functions and activities with government priorities.  The project was coordinated 

across the portfolio through the Organisational Performance Unit. 

 

The information was delivered on time and according to the specifications.    

 

The Functional Review Taskforce provided its report to the Government in December 

2002.  The report was considered and endorsed in part by Cabinet, including a 

recommendation that the Department of Culture and the Arts identify savings of 

$500,000 in 2003-2004 and $1million per annum thereafter from operating costs, and 

that the Department manages this process internally.  A strategic review of 

processes aimed at improving ways of working and delivering services will 

commence in August 2003. 

 

In May 2003, the Department was asked to coordinate the provision of corporate 

services and procurement information to the Functional Review Implementation 

Team.  The project was coordinated across the portfolio through the Organisational 

Performance Unit.  The information was completed and provided in June 2003.  This 

information will be used to establish a whole of government solution to the provision 

of corporate services and procurement. 

 

Commence a strategic review of processes relating to all agencies of the 
Culture and the Arts portfolio aimed at achieving better ways of working and 
delivering services 
This goal arose from the report of the Functional Review Taskforce which 

recommended the Department of Culture and the Arts identify savings of $500,000 in 
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2003-2004 and $1million per annum thereafter from operating costs, and manage 

this process internally.    

 

Quotations were sought in June 2003 from consultants to facilitate the review.   The 

contract was awarded to Stamfords.  The strategic review aimed at better ways of 

working and delivering services will commence in August 2003 and be completed by 

the end of December 2003. 

 

Establish an Internal Audit and Risk Management section 
Brandon Walker was appointed to the position of Manager, Audit and Risk 

Management in May 2003.  Assisted by a Senior Audit Officer, the Audit and Risk 

Management section developed a draft audit and risk management plan for the 

Department and help establish or improve audit committees and audit plans across 

the agencies of the portfolio.  The focus in the short term is to ensure that all systems 

and controls are compliant with legislative and regulatory requirements. 
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SHARED SERVICES UNITS 

1. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
DIRECTOR 

Eric Isailovic 

 

NUMBER OF STAFF 

13 FTEs, 12 people 

 

Strategic Planning 
Human Resources (HR) has continued the transformation of its strategic role from a 

traditional compliance orientated and transactional focused function to a strategic 

business partnership within the portfolio. 

 

The HR structure has been fully aligned with the new strategic business partnership 

role.  This structure is underpinned by: 

• A centralised shared services function which provides a service centre for 

transaction based services and a centre of technical expertise to managers 

across the Department; and  

• The out-placement of HR generalist experts to provide dedicated agency 

specific support.   

The latter initiative recognises the uniqueness and diversity of the portfolio agencies 

and is seen as a key driver in understanding business HR needs and the 

establishment and maintenance of value adding relationships with line management.  

 

Employee Relations 
The Department continued the implementation of the Government’s industrial reform 

agenda across all portfolio agencies throughout the reporting year.  This primarily 

involved the negotiation and introduction of Enterprise Bargaining Agreements 

(EBAs) to operate in conjunction with the industrial Awards used by the Department. 

 

EBAs have been the vehicle for delivering wage parity across occupational groups 

and a standardisation of nominated terms and conditions of employment in 

accordance with Government policy.  In conjunction with the Department of 

Consumer and Employment Protection (DOCEP), the Department implemented new 

EBA arrangements associated with five of the six industrial Awards operating within 
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the organisation.  Substantial progress was also achieved in respect of the one 

outstanding occupational group. 

 

The year also saw the proclamation of the Labour Relations Reform Act 2002 that 

necessitated a review of the Department’s employee relations policies to ensure 

compliance with the new legislation.  This review resulted in the alignment of the 

organisation’s policy base with the current legislative framework and also facilitated 

longer-term planning for modernisation of Awards to update them and make them 

more relevant. 

 

Workforce Planning and Management 
In 2002, HR received funding approval for the purchase of a fully integrated, web-

based human resource information management system that offers full HR and 

payroll functionality, employee self-service and workflow and strategic reporting 

capabilities.  In accordance with the Department of Industry and Technology 

Common Use Contract for the provision of human resource management systems, 

the Department selected a software solution called Concept for implementation. 

 

In 2003, a Departmental project team and steering committee were established and 

commenced the implementation of the Concept system.  Implementation is 

scheduled to conclude in November/December 2003 and will provide line managers 

and staff with web-based access to HR information, systems and procedures.  This 

facility will require education and training for all staff and will be a priority during the 

2004. 

 

Recruitment 
During 2002-2003, HR continued to develop strategic partnerships with line 

managers to develop innovative and strategic recruitment plans to reflect their 

individual agency needs.  This process was well facilitated through the out-placed HR 

Officers.  One notable example of this successful partnership was a Western 

Australian Museum strategy to fill a number of Visitor Services Officer’s positions at 

the Maritime Museum with Indigenous employees.  The strategy recognises the 

significant Indigenous component of displays at the Maritime Museum and 

recruitment drives have strongly encouraged Indigenous applicants to apply. It is 

hoped the advertised positions will be filled in August/September 2003. 
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The Department has continued to monitor its recruitment practices to ensure 

compliance with the Government’s Modes of Employment policy.  HR is currently 

compiling statistics identifying the level of casual employment across the portfolio in 

order to develop appropriate long-term Departmental strategies for recruitment and 

selection. In the interim, the usage of fixed-term contracts and casual engagements 

rather than permanent or on-going employment now requires a higher level of 

justification and approval. 

 
Workforce Demographics  
Workforce demographics at the Department of Culture and the Arts as at 30 June 

2003. 

 

Employment Type  Total  Women  Men  

Permanent Full-time  421 244 177 

Permanent Part-time  166 136 30 

Fixed Term Full-time  79 42 37 

Fixed Term Part-time  27 21 6 

Casual paid on 30 June  116 82 34 

Other  0 0 0 

Trainee  4 4 0 

Total  813 529 284 
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2. FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 

DIRECTOR 

Alan Ferris – A/Chief Financial Officer 

 

NUMBER OF STAFF 

21 FTEs, 21 people 

 

Role 
The unit is responsible for providing financial services to the portfolio agencies of the 

Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 
These services include: 

• Financial Compliance and Reporting; 

• Budgeting; 

• Processing Services; 

• Policy and Analysis; and 

• High Level Consultancy and Advice. 

 

The unit also provides processing services to three external clients being Pilbara 

Development Commission, Industrial Relation Commission and the Swan Bells 

Foundation Incorporated. 

 

Achievements for 2002-2003 

 

During the year, the unit continued to work at a high level, supporting agencies in the 

delivery of their outcomes.  This unit has undergone a number of changes during 

2002-2003, which has improved the level of service provided to clients.   

 

Some of the major initiatives during 2002-2003 were: 

• The development of a shared service model for the delivery of financial 

services has resulted in improvements to the quality of financial services.  

The introduction of operational finance plans during 2003-2004 for each 

agency will facilitate further improvements; 

• Developing systems and financial policies across the portfolio that are 

consistent, and in accordance, with the appropriate standards.  A review of 
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the banking and receipting procedures across the Department was conducted 

during 2002-2003 as part of this initiative; 

• The development of a quality assurance program, with internal audit, for the 

annual financial statements.  This has involved developing best practice 

working papers, and a review of the statements by internal audit prior to 

submission to the Auditor General; 

• Planning for the stabilisation of the Financial Management Information 

System was done during 2002-2003.  The current financial system is being 

transferred onto a supported platform, pending the release of proposed 

models by the Functional Review Implementation Team.  This project will be 

completed by August 2003; and 

• The internal audit branch also conducted a review of the Financial 

Management Information System in June 2003. 
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3. INFORMATION SERVICES 

 

CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER 

Graham Hilton 

 

NUMBER OF STAFF 

11 FTEs, 11 people 

 

In response to the Machinery of Government recommendations, the Department of 

Culture and the Arts established a new Information Services Unit on 1 July 2002. The 

purpose of this function is to deliver information technology and information 

management services to the agencies in the Culture and the Arts portfolio.  

 

Prior to 1 July 2002, agencies in the portfolio were responsible for providing their own 

information services, resulting in a variety of different systems, networks and 

technologies.  The Information Services Division has commenced the process of 

rationalising these disparate systems with the aim of reducing costs and streamlining 

the delivery of information services to portfolio agencies.  

 

The focus during the first year has been on establishing the new structure and 

developing a resourcing strategy and service delivery model.  Several key positions 

have been filled as the Department extends the delivery of information services to the 

larger portfolio agencies.  

 

All portfolio agencies now share a single portfolio network with one secure Internet 

connection, resulting in reduced costs, greater security and improved Internet 

performance for all agencies.  This shared infrastructure will be a strategic platform 

enabling the development of new portfolio-wide information services during future 

years.  

 

The Information Services Division has worked with portfolio agencies to facilitate the 

development of record keeping plans as required by the State Records Act 2000.  

Agencies in the portfolio are well advanced with the development of these plans, with 

most agencies having submitted draft plans to the State Records Office. 
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4. PROCUREMENT & FACILITIES MANAGEMENT  

 

MANAGER 

Joe Marino (Acting Manager) 

 

NUMBER OF STAFF 

8 FTEs, 8 people 

 

The unit is responsible for providing purchasing, tendering and contracting services 

to the portfolio agencies of the Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 

The unit also manages the Perth Cultural Centre, Perth Institute of Contemporary 

Arts and Arts House in Northbridge, the King Street Arts Centre, Old Customs House 

and Spare Parts Puppet Theatre in Fremantle.  It is also responsible for the Law 

Chambers building tenancy. 

 

The unit is currently reviewing its role and structure so that it can continue to provide 

the high level of service required by the portfolio agencies and central office.  The 

unit will continue to provide direction and support to out-placed Purchasing Officers. 

 

During the year, the unit continued provided procurement services to the portfolio 

agencies and central office.  In particular, as demand increased, the unit provided 

assistance in competitive tendering and contracting activities, by coordinating the 

procurement process subject to State Supply Commission policies and guidelines 

and the Department’s partial exemption.  This activity was supported by upgrading 

the Department’s procurement policies and procedures, with assistance from the 

State Supply Commission.  This is an area under continuous review and 

improvement, with dissemination to the portfolio agencies and central office staff. 

 

Four contracts, with the Director General as Principal, were awarded during the year 

under the Department’s partial exemption as a result of the open tender process.  

Three other open tender processes were terminated during the year by declining all 

offers.   

 

The terminations resulted from: 

(a) Government direction,  

(b) Incorrect Principal to any ensuing contract, and  
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(c) Revision of RFT document with a change of Principal.  One complaint 

was received and reviewed by the Department and State Supply 

Commission through their process review panel.  The complaint has 

been resolved to the satisfaction of the State Supply Commission with 

no change in the original contract-award decision.  

 

As at 30 June 2003, there were three open tender processes still in progress within 

the service agencies. 

 

In addition the unit continues to provide administrative support to staff working in the 

central office and is responsible for Freedom of Information requests. 
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT WRITTEN LAWS AND PUBLIC SECTOR 

POLICIES 

 

Legislation 

The Department of Culture and the Arts was established on 20 May 1997 under 

Section 35 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994. 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts, which includes ArtsWA and the State 

Records Office, services the Minister for Culture and the Arts and forms part of the 

coalition of agencies in the Culture and the Arts portfolio.  The other members are the 

Art Gallery of Western Australia, Western Australian Museum, State Library of 

Western Australia, ScreenWest Inc and the Perth Theatre Trust.   The efforts of each 

agency contribute to the effectiveness of the Department and will help the 

Department achieve its vision for the arts, in all its forms, to be universally recognised 

and respected as an essential element in creating our society. 

 

The Department of Culture and the Arts operates under the provisions of the Public 

Sector Management Act 1994.  In the performance of its functions, the Department 

complies with the following relevant written laws: 

 

Disability Services Act 1993 

Equal Opportunity Act 1984-1992 

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 

Freedom of Information Act 1992 

Industrial Relations Act 1979 

Lotteries Commission Act 1990 

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993 

Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984 

State Records Act 2000 

State Supply Commission Act 1991 

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation Amendment act (No.2) 1992 

Workplace Agreements Act 1993 

 

The Minister for Culture and the Arts also administers the following Acts relating to 

the statutory authorities within the Culture and the Arts portfolio: the Art Gallery Act 

1959; the Perth Theatre Trust Act 1979-1981; The Library Board of Western Australia 

Act 1951; the State Records Act 2000 and the Museum Act 1969-1984. 
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The Department complied with the requirements of the law, including the Financial 

Administration and Audit Act 1985, and exercised controls to provide reasonable 

assurance that the receipt and expenditure of moneys, the acquisition and disposal 

of public property, and incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative 

provisions. 

 

There were no circumstances that render the particulars included in this statement 

misleading or inaccurate. 

 

The 2002-2003 annual report incorporates a full financial report for the appropriation 

under Division 69 of the 2002-2003 State Budget. 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity 
In 2002-2003 the portfolio collaborated to further developed and finalise its Equity 

and Diversity Plan.  The plan was prepared by a reference group chaired by Planning 

and Policy Division, with representatives from each of the portfolio agencies and 

Human Resources Division.   

 

The portfolio has also actively pursued policies, partnerships, programmes and 

initiatives that deliver services to its customers which develop and promote equity 

and diversity, as well as achieved significant results and/or improvements in 

workplace diversity in the areas of young people, people with disabilities, and 

Indigenous Australians. 

 

Equity and diversity achievements are a reflection of the unique character of the arts 

and cultural sector, which is one of inclusion, where difference is celebrated, 

inclusivity is encouraged and innovation is inherent. 

 

Examples of equity and diversity achievements in 2002-2003 include: 

• Demonstrated leadership and commitment to the employment of people with 

disabilities and venue accessibility, with achievements being recognised by 

the Disabilities Services Commission, with the awarding of the 2002 Action on 

Access Award in the category of State Government Agency – Large.  His 

Majesty’s Theatre received the Small Government Award for improved 

access to Downstairs at the Maj, with the installation of an accessible lift and 

signage. 
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• The Art Gallery of Western Australia establishing innovative partnerships 

involving the private sector.  In 2003, the Art Gallery of Western Australia 

appointed an Indigenous Trainee Education Officer, for three years, with 

support from AngloGold Australia Limited and Carey Mining.   

• The West Australian Museum undertook an innovative recruitment process in 

2003 to improve its representation of Indigenous employees and deliver 

improved visitor services to the community.  A recruitment strategy was 

developed for two part-time Visitor Services Officers at the Maritime Museum 

by the Western Australian Museums’ Human Resources Consultant, in 

consultation with the Director of Visitor Services and Business Support 

Manager at the Maritime Museum and the Office of Public Sector Standards 

Commission.  These positions are mainstream positions with an opportunity 

for the appointees to take a more active role in assisting visitors to enjoy the 

Indigenous components of the exhibitions and enhancing Indigenous 

participation with the Museum.   

• In 2003 the Department completed an access audit and renovation of the 

Department’s cultural venues.  This included the completion of a number of 

access modifications and improvements at the Art Gallery of Western 

Australia, Perth Institute of Contemporary Art, ArtsHouse, Spare Parts Puppet 

Theatre and Customs House.  The Department’s cultural venues such as the 

new Maritime Museum, the Western Australian Museum, the State Library of 

Western Australia, the Perth Concert Hall and His Majesty’s Theatre work to 

improve, and continue to meet, disability access requirements, legislation and 

changing building codes. 

 
Disability Services 
The Department of Culture and the Arts is committed to improving access and equity 

for all its customer groups and ensuring that people who have a disability or 

impairment are included and participate in, shaping the range of services and 

objectives the Department delivers.   

 

To achieve this commitment the Department has a Disability Services plan 

encompassing ArtsWA, Organisational Development, Procurement Services and 

Facilities Management, Finance, Information Services, Human Resources, Planning 

and Policy and Corporate Affairs.   
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The Art Gallery of Western Australia, Perth Theatre Trust, the State Library of 

Western Australia and the Western Australian Museum are statutory authorities, 

each implementing their own Disability Services plan. 

 

To develop, evaluate and implement its plan the Department established a Disability 

Services Planning committee in 1998.  The committee continued to meet quarterly in 

the reporting period 2002-2003 to evaluate, improve and implement the Disability 

Services Plan.   

 

The Disability Services committee has representatives from the business support 

divisions, and the portfolio agencies, ArtsWA, ScreenWest, the Western Australian 

Museum, the State Library of Western Australia and the Art Gallery of Western 

Australia.  Additional representatives include, Disability in the Arts Disadvantage in 

the Arts Australia (WA) Inc., the Disability Services Commission and two customer 

representatives who have a disability or impairment. 

 

The Department will continue to be proactive and adaptable in raising the awareness 

of potential, and actual, barriers experienced by Western Australians who have a 

disability or impairment.  The inclusion and participation of people who have a 

disability in arts and cultural activities is a priority.  

 

During 2002-2003 the Department continued to deliver services within the framework 

of the Disability Services Plan, achieving key outcomes. 

 

Following the commissioned access audit report by Brian J Kidd Pty Ltd and Heritage 

Conservation Professionals, and as part of the Department’s 2002-2003 Capital 

Works Program, improvements to access continue to be implemented at four of the 

department’s cultural venues.  

 

The maintenance and works budget allocated is approximately $1.76million.  All 

works have been commissioned through the Department of Housing and Works. 

Access improvements have been achieved at three venues: Spare Parts Theatre, 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Art and Customs House.  Stage 2 is complete at 

ArtsHouse with Stage 3 (incorporating lift access) is underway. 
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The Department continued to support the inclusion and participation of people who 

have a disability or impairment in decision–making processes by conducting all 

community consultations at accessible venues.   

 

Two Disability Awareness Training Sessions were conducted and made available to 

portfolio employees. The sessions were co-facilitated by people with a disability.  

Four key areas underpin the content of all Disability Awareness Training sessions: 

• Education and Training; 

• Arts Industry Awareness; 

• Improved Way Finding Navigation and Signage in buildings; and 

• Access to Services. 

 

The Department was recognised as achieving excellence in access improvements 

and initiatives across the portfolio, receiving an Action on Access Award in the Large 

State Government Agency Category. 

 

The Department's Resource Library continued to expand, and make available, 

disability related information and resources documenting the achievements and 

inclusion of people with disabilities in the arts.  This information is accessible to 

funded arts organisations and the community.  

 

Youth – Action: A State Government Plan for Young People 2002-2003 
The Department continued its involvement in this whole of government plan.  The 

Department’s commitments in this area and its achievements are included in the 

activities report of ArtsWA. 

 

Cultural Diversity and Language Services 
The Department of Culture and the Arts is committed to the principles of social 

justice, ensuring that language is not a barrier in accessing departmental programs 

initiatives, information and services. 

 

Customers of the Department who are non-English speaking, or who have limited 

English skills are entitled to assistance.  The Department recognises that these 

customers have the right to access a professional interpreter or language services to 

facilitate participation and decision-making in arts and cultural activities.  
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A customer can arrange to access an interpreter or language services with the 

Department.  An interpreter or appropriate language services will be organised by the 

Department, within the constraints of existing resources.  Interpreter and language 

services are customer driven, that is a customer must contact the department to 

arrange an interpreter or language services to assist them with accessing specific 

information or services. 

 

Information is also available to staff located at the Law Chambers building regarding 

the provision of interpreter and language services.  

 

Freedom of Information 
The Department supports Freedom of Information (FOI) services to all aspects of the 

community, including the public, the media and Members of Parliament.  Four FOI 

applications were received during 2002-2003.  The information was provided as 

requested.  There is one outstanding FOI request. 

 

Employee Assistance Program 
The Department’s Employee Assistance Program is provided to employees at all 

metropolitan and regional sites.  

 

The provider Occupational Services offers: 

• Brief therapy counselling for employees and immediate family members; 

• Consultation available for managers and supervisors to discuss job-related 

situations; 

• 24 hour, seven days per week critical incident stress debriefing and crisis 

counselling; and  

• Workplace mediation. 

 

The utilisation rate for the Department has increased from previous years to 5.3%, 

based on 830 employees.  

Occupational Safety Health 
Management of the agencies located in the Law Chambers building are committed to 

ensuring that all employees are safe from injuries and risks to their health while they 

are at work. 

 

The Law Chambers Occupational Safety Health (OSH) Committee continues to 

coordinate the implementation of safety and health aspects of the Risk Management 
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plan.  A comprehensive OSH Policy and Procedure Manual available on the intranet 

has been updated and provides assistance to employees and managers in meeting 

their OSH obligations.  

 

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation 
 1999-2000 2000 -2001 2001 -2002 2002 - 2003

Frequency rate 0 5.82 0 10.31 

LTI*/Disease Claims 17 11.64 0 1.8 

Estimated cost of claims 
/$100 wage roll 

$1.42 $0.08 $0.00 $1.34 

Contribution (premium 
rate) 

1.09 2.11 1.51 0.44 

Rehabilitation Success 
Rate 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

(*LTI – Lost Time Injuries) 

 

There has been a continual improvement in workers’ compensation performance in 

specific areas of injury management although there was an increase in the frequency 

rate to 10.4.  The LTI/Disease Claims has shown a downward trend from 17 in 1999-

2000 to 1.8 in 2002-2003.  There has been a corresponding downward trend in the 

estimated cost of claims/$100 of wage roll from $12.38 in 1998-1999 to $1.34 in 

2002-2003.  The following has influenced these results: 

• Strong commitment to the injury management process from managers and 

employees; and 

• Commitment to workers safety from managers and employees.  

 

Law Chamber’s agencies have also provided work placement opportunities for 

employees from a number of external agencies participating in vocational 

rehabilitation programs. 

Interests of Senior Officers 
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 903 on the disclosure of interests of senior 

officers, senior officers have confirmed that they have no interest in any contracts 

made or proposed with the Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 

Risk Identification and Management 
Risk Management has been supported by a policy and procedures document for 

those agencies of the Department located within the Law Chambers building.  A risk 

management coordination committee has identified and rated risk activities and 
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developed a risk register.  Risk action plans have been developed and implemented 

where appropriate. 

 

Waste Paper Recycling 
The Department continues to recycle waste paper used in its activities.  All staff are 

encouraged to recycle paper. 

 

Evaluations 

Contemporary Music Taskforce 

The Contemporary Music Taskforce, convened by the Minister for Culture and the 

Arts, Sheila McHale, to make recommendations in relation to the State Government’s 

provision of $5million for the development of contemporary music, delivered its report 

in September 2002.  Recommendations included the implementation of an Industry 

Development Grant Program by ArtsWA.  More information about the report is 

included in the reports of ArtsWA and the Planning and Policy Division. 

 

Percent for Art Scheme 

The Department commenced a review of the objectives of the Percent for Art 

Scheme in August 2002.   A report entitled Integrating Views – A Review of the State 

Government’s Percent for Art Scheme will be released in the second half of 2003.  

More information about the review is detailed in the report of the Planning and Policy 

Division.   

 

Machinery of Government Reforms 

The Department continued with the implementation of the Machinery of Government 

reforms arising from The Machinery of Government Taskforce Report released in 

June 2001.   

In particular, the review of statutory authorities (Recommendation 9 of The Machinery 

of Government Taskforce Report) was completed with Cabinet decisions on 21 

October 2002 and 30 June 2003 in relation to the review.  The outcome of the review 

is that the Art Gallery of Western Australia, Library Board of WA and the Western 

Australian Museum will be retained as statutory authorities.  ScreenWest shall be 

established as a statutory authority and cease operating as an Incorporated 

Association once legislation has been enacted.  The Perth Theatre Trust is to be 

abolished and its functions and assets transferred to the Department.    
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In March 2003, in implementing Recommendation 31 of The Machinery of 

Government Taskforce Report, the Department commenced a review of the 

executive level positions in entities comprising the Culture and the Arts portfolio with 

a view to achieving consistency in the processes for recruitment and salary 

determination for Chief Executive Officer positions.  It is expected the review will be 

completed by the end of August 2003. 

 

Work continued on the sharing of corporate support services (Recommendation 23 of 

The Machinery of Government Taskforce Report) with the further integration of 

Information Services across the agencies of the Culture and the Arts portfolio and the 

refining of the corporate services business model, including the outplacement of 

senior officers to provide strategic finance and human resources services to the Art 

Gallery of Western Australia, the State Library of Western Australia and the Western 

Australian Museum. 

 

The State Records Office was introduced as an output of the Department in the 

2002-2003 budget papers and financial responsibility transferred from the State 

Library of Western Australia (Recommendation 32 of The Machinery of Government 

Taskforce Report). 

 

Functional Review 

In June 2002, the Premier Dr Geoff Gallop announced the formation of a Taskforce 

to undertake a Review into the Effective Delivery of Government Priorities 

(Functional Review).  This followed the earlier Machinery of Government Review.  

The Taskforce provided its report to the Government on 9 December 2002.  The 

report was considered and endorsed by Cabinet at that time.  Subsequent to this, 

Cabinet has endorsed the majority of the 89 recommendations contained within the 

report, including that the Department of Culture and the Arts identify savings of 

$500,000 in 2003-2004 and $1million per annum thereafter from operating costs, and 

the Department manages this process internally.  A strategic review of processes, 

aimed at establishing better ways of working and delivering services, will commence 

in August 2003. 

 

The Department has also participated in the whole-of-government review of 

corporate services and procurement aimed at optimising the quality and cost 

effectiveness of corporate services and procurement. 
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Advertising and Sponsorship 

Treasurer's Instruction 903    
 Dept of Culture and the Arts  2002-2003    

Expenditure related to Advertising and Market Research Organisations 
 In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 expenditure by the Department of 
 Culture and the Arts on advertising and related costs is listed below. 
a) Advertising Agencies Nil  
b) Market research organisations $      10,230.00 Patterson Market Research 
c) Polling organisations Nil  
d) Direct mail organisations Nil  
e) Media advertising organisations   

 Job vacancies  $      11,626.31 Marketforce Productions 
   $        2,500.00 Beilby Corp 
   $        8,749.80 Spherion 
  $        2,455.10 Southside Personnel 
  $        2,327.56 Dept of Premier and Cabinet 
 Total - Job Vacancies $      27,658.77   
 Other $      18,287.60 Media Decisions 
  $             75.00 Chamber of Commerce and Industry
  $           156.00 Artists Foundation 

  $        7,202.50 Marketforce Productions 

  $           425.00 Teal Corporate Design 

  $        1,227.00 YMO Photographers 

  $           259.09 WA Local Govt Association 

  $        1,150.00 Black in Business P/L 

  $        1,420.00 Husen Pty Ltd 

  $           450.00 Philip Rowe 

  $        1,295.00 Josie Mitchell 

  $           500.00 Brad Coleman 

  $        1,495.00 C&G Advertising Services 

  $           509.09 Groove magazine 

  $           368.00 National Pages 

  $           150.00 Forrest Studios 

  $           380.00 Aust Advocate Bus. Directory 

 Total - Other $      35,349.28   
 Total Media Advertising  $      73,238.05   
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Energy Smart Government Policy 
The energy policy is being addressed on a portfolio basis, i.e. the Department is 

coordinating the implementation of the policy across all the agencies of the Culture 

and the Arts portfolio. 

 

The focus on energy efficiency commenced well before the commencement of the 

Energy Smart Program with the State Library of Western Australia already having 

achieved efficiencies in the order of 20 per cent.   

 

These achievements were notified to the Sustainable Energy Development Office 

who has granted the portfolio a credit for past achievements of 2.9 per cent towards 

the five-year target of 12 per cent under the program. 

 

Energy Smart Government 
program 

Baseline 
Data 

2002-2003 
Actuals 

Variation 
% 

Energy Consumption (MJ) 83,240,078 78,311,628 -5.92
Energy Cost ($) 2,073,484 1,753,177 -15.45
Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
(tonnes of CO2) 

16,031 14,855 -7.34

Performance indicators 
• MJ/sqm 
• MJ/FTE 

1,144
6,290

 
985 

6,037 
-13.90

-4.02
 

As the table above demonstrates, in 2002-2003, the portfolio achieved a reduction in 

energy consumption of 5.92 per cent.  Combined with the credit of 2.9 per cent, the 

portfolio has achieved energy consumption savings of 8.82 per cent against the 

program targets, well in excess of the five per cent target for the year. 

 

In addition to the above, the following initiatives were undertaken: 

• Appointment of an Energy Executive – Joe Marino; 

• Establishment of an Energy Management Committee; 

• Establishment of a Staff Awareness Program; and 

• Preparation for the application of an energy audit grant. 

 

Statement of Compliance with Public Sector Standards 

Human Resources provides services to each of the following:  

• The Library and Information Service of Western Australia; 

• Western Australian Museum; 

• Art Gallery of Western Australia; 
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• ScreenWest; 

• ArtsWA; 

• Perth Theatre Trust; 

• State Records Office; and, 

• Department of Culture and the Arts Portfolio Management Units and Shared 

Services Units.  

 

Specific advice on compliance with the Standards is provided for recruitment, 

transfer, secondment, redeployment, termination, discipline, temporary deployment 

and grievance resolution.  Compliance checks and controls are performed regularly 

by Human Resources and where it appears that there has not been compliance with 

the standards, the situation is investigated and action taken as appropriate to the 

circumstances.  

 

In the administration of the Department of Culture and the Arts, including ArtsWA and 

the State Records Office, I have complied with Public Sector Standards in Human 

Resource Management, the Public Sector Code of Ethics and the organisation’s 

Code of Conduct.  Procedures have been put in place to ensure such compliance 

and internal checks have been conducted to satisfy me that the statement above is 

correct.  

 

There were no breaches of Public Sector Standards in Human Resource 

Management during 2002-2003.  

 



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 111 

Other agencies of the Department – the Art Gallery of Western Australia, The Library 

Board of Western Australia, Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western 

Australian Museum – have reported their level of compliance in their 2002-2003 

annual reports, in accordance with the Public Sector Management Act 1994 and their 

existing legislation or instruments. 
 

 
 

Alastair Bryant 
Director General 



2002-2003 ANNUAL REPORT 112 

PUBLICATIONS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

2002-2003 
Arts Grants Handbook Western Australia 2003 - Perth, WA: ArtsWA, 2003. 
 

Contemporary Music Grants Handbook Western Australia 2003 - Perth, WA: ArtsWA, 

2003. 
 

Artsline, ArtWA's Magazine, Issue No 15 Winter 2003. 
 

ArtsWA's Arts Development Policy 2003-2005, Draft June 2003 - Perth, WA: ArtsWA, 

June 2003. 
 

Arts in Education Research Bibliography/Department of Culture and the Arts - Perth, 

WA: Department of Culture and the Arts, 2003. 
 

Creative Connections: An Arts in Education Policy Consultation Paper/Department of 

Culture and the Arts; Department of Education and Training - Perth, WA: Department 

of Culture and the Arts, 2003. 
 

Cultural Signposts: Directions for Arts and Culture in Regional Western Australia 

Draft Policy - November 2002/Department of Culture and the Arts - Perth, WA: 

Department of Culture and the Arts, 2002.  
 

Cultural Signposts: Directions for Arts and Culture in Regional Western Australia 

Draft Policy -Summary -November 2002/Department of Culture and the Arts - Perth, 

WA: Department of Culture and the Arts, 2002. 
 

Making Music: Findings & Recommendations of the Ministerial Taskforce into 

Contemporary Music/Contemporary Music Ministerial Taskforce - Perth, WA: 

Department of Culture and the Arts, 2002. 
 

Annual Report 2001-2002/Department of Culture and the Arts – Perth, WA: 

Department of Culture and the Arts, 2002. 
 

2001-2002 
Arts Development Discussion Paper Western Australia 2002, ArtsWA, Department of 

Culture and the Arts, May 2002. 
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A response by the Department of Culture and the Arts to the Future Perth Working 

paper No 12 - Can Perth be more Creative? Planning and Policy Division, 

Department of Culture and the Arts, March 2002. 
 

Cultural Capital: a response from the Department of Culture and the Arts to focus on 

the Future; Opportunities for sustainability in Western Australia, Planning and Policy 

Division, Department of Culture and the Arts, March 2002. 
 

A review of the Percent for Art Scheme Background Paper, The Department for 

Culture and the Arts, July 2002. 
 

Annual Report 2000-2001/Department of Culture and the Arts – Perth, WA: 

Department of Culture and the Arts, 2001. 
 

2000-2001 
Vital Statistics: Western Australian Cultural Statistics - June 2001 A report produced 

by the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) for the Western Australian Ministry for 

Culture & the Arts, June 2001 

http://www.cultureandarts.wa.gov.au/ministry/pdfs/vitals2001.pdf.
 

Vital Statistics: Western Australian Cultural Statistics 1999 No. 2 Australian Bureau of 

Statistics for the Ministry for Culture & the Arts, August 1999. 
 

The above publications and brochures can also be obtained by contacting the 

Department’s librarian by telephone 08 9224 7300, facsimile 08 9224 7301 or at 

email kathb@artswa.dca.wa.gov.au.
 

Publications are available in alternative formats upon request.  
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS – OPINION OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 

 

CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 

 

I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are 
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Department of Culture and 
the Arts performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Department for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2003. 

 

 
 

Alastair Bryant 
Director General 
 
15 August 2003 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2002-2003 
 

Outcome: A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of 
innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 

 

Description 

This outcome preserves and provides access to Western Australia's natural and social 

heritage, supports our artistic development and provides a link to information and culture 

nationally and internationally. This outcome is provided by the Department of Culture and the 

Arts, the Art Gallery of Western Australia, the State Library of Western Australia, the Perth 

Theatre Trust, ScreenWest Inc and the Western Australian Museum. 

 

Effectiveness Indicators 2002-2003 

These performance indicators address the effectiveness with which the Department of 

Culture and the Arts undertakes work associated in achieving its Outcome as approved by 

the Government. The performance indicators have been designed to reflect the achievement 

of the Outcome statement. 

 

Key effectiveness indicator (1):  The extent to which the Department of Culture and the 
Arts is perceived to be effective in achieving its outcome. 

 

Rationale 

Following on from the November 2001 survey by the then Hides Consulting Group Pty Ltd, 

the Department of Culture and the Arts again commissioned a survey from Patterson Market 

Research covering a number of areas relevant to culture and the arts, including perceptions 

of the effectiveness of the Department in achieving its outcome. 

 

A total of 402 interviews, drawn randomly from the population of WA (1.9m), were undertaken 

in March 2003.  302 interviews completed with respondents in the Perth metropolitan area 

and the remaining 100 conducted with respondents from regional areas in Western Australia. 

Respondents interviewed were aged 16 years or over and were randomly selected within 
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each household by using the “closest birthday” method.  A gender quota of 50% males and 

50% females was imposed.  The final response rate for the survey was 25%.   

The data was post-weighted by the Australian Bureau of Statistics gender and age census 

figures to ensure it accurately reflected the population of WA.  The maximum statistical error 

for the survey is +/- 5% at the 95% confidence level.  

Effectiveness of the Department in delivering its outcome
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Survey respondents were asked “How effective do you think the Department of Culture and 

the Arts is in achieving its outcome of a community that is informed of, and has access to, a 

diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and culture experiences”.  84% of respondents 

felt that the Department had been effective to some degree in achieving its aims. This graph 

reflects an overall increase in effectiveness from the previous year of 10%.  

 

Key effectiveness indicator (2): The extent to which the ArtsWA Division of the 
Department of Culture and the Arts is perceived to be effective at developing, funding 
and promoting the arts. 

 

Rationale 

The arts grants and development programs contribute significantly to the development of 

Western Australian artists and arts organisations.  The Department relies on the artists and 

the arts organisations to provide access to arts experiences and activities enabling the 

community to engage in the arts.   Without subsidy through ArtsWA, it would be difficult for 

artists and arts organisations to operate.  The consequences would be a reduction in the 

quality and range of innovative ideas and creative experiences available to the Western 

Australian community. 
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Effectivess of ArtsWA in developing, funding and promoting the arts
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Survey respondents were asked, “How effective do you think ArtsWA is at developing, 

funding and promoting the arts?”  71% of respondents perceived ArtsWA to be at least 

somewhat effective in developing funding and promoting the Arts.  This graph reflects an 

overall increase in effectiveness from the previous year of 7%.  

 

Key effectiveness indicator (3):  The diversity of arts events funded through the 
ArtsWA division of the Department of Culture and the Arts. 

 

Rationale 

This performance indicator reports on the diversity of the arts projects events that are made 

possible through the ArtsWA grants process.  Fluctuations or variations from year to year are 

dependent on the number of applications made to ArtsWA and those granted funding in the 

different artforms and programs.  The funding of arts projects links directly to the outcome of 

the Department:  A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of 

innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 

 

Through the funding programs, a diverse range of art forms are supported, including music, 

dance, literature, visual arts, theatre, multi-arts, young people and the arts, aboriginal arts, 

creative development and contemporary music.  Through this process, diversity in the range 

of ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences is provided to the community. 
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ArtsWA also acts as a role model to the West Australian arts and cultural sector through the 

organisations it supports.  Contracts for arts organisations who receive support through 

grants are required to endorse, demonstrate and apply the principles of access and 

participation, EEO and cultural diversity. 

 

Measures of Diversity in the Arts
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The graph illustrates the continued diversity of the projects funded. 

 

Note that the Contemporary Music projects have been shown separately from 2002-2003 due 

to the commencement of the Government's new Contemporary Music funding initiative.  The 

first grants awarded from this initiative were in the 2002-2003 financial year and stem from 

the Contemporary Music Taskforce, convened by the Minister for Culture and the Arts, Sheila 

McHale. 

 

Efficiency Indicators 2002-2003 

 

Efficiency indicator (1):  The efficiency with which the Department for Culture and the 
Arts undertakes Arts Industry Support 

 

This performance measure addresses the efficiency with which the Department for Culture 

and the Arts, through ArtsWA, undertakes work associated in providing Arts Industry Support, 

which consists primarily of development, funding and promotion of the arts industry. 
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Efficiency indicator Actual 

2001-2002

Target 

2002-2003 

Actual 

2002-2003

Cost per arts project and organisation supported $52,652 $46,500 $50,866 

Cost per industry development initiative $19,600 $16,197 $22,804 

Average cost of grant application processed $333 $303 $309 

Average cost per industry interaction $124 $194 $47* 

*The substantial decrease in cost per industry interaction is attributable to the enhancement 
of the ArtsWA website in October 2002, resulting in increased functionality, information and 
responsiveness. 

 

The actual for 2001-2002 has been reclassified to reflect the changes made to the method of 

allocating shared services costs in 2002-2003.  

 

Efficiency indicator (2):  The efficiency with which the Department for Culture and the 
Arts, through the State Records Office, delivers its recordkeeping and archival 
services to government agencies and the community. 

 

This performance measure addresses the efficiency with which the Department for Culture & 

the Arts, through the State Records Office, delivers its recordkeeping and archival services to 

government agencies and the community. 

 

Efficiency Indicator Target 

2002-2003 

Actual 

2002-2003 

Average cost per policy, standard, guidelines $23,314.00 $24,757.14 

Average cost per hour of training and consultancy provid $163.20 $211.08 

Average cost per access provided to State Archives $22.85 $21.92 

 

Note:  Reporting responsibility for the State Records Office transferred from The Library 
Board of Western Australia to the Department for Culture and the Arts in July 2002 and 
consequently this is the first reporting year for Output 7. 
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OUTPUT BASED MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

(2002-2003) 

 

Introduction 
A summary of the Output Based Management (OBM) measures is reported here for 

the Department of Culture and the Arts and the agencies in the portfolio as they 

appear in the 2001-2002 Budget Statements.  The Performance Measures listed 

below are not audited. 

 

Outcome: A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse 
range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences. 
 

Description 
This outcome preserves and provides access to Western Australia’s natural and 

social heritage, supports our artistic development and provides a link to information 

and culture nationally and internationally.  This outcome is common to the 

Department of Culture and the Arts, the Art Gallery of Western Australia, State 

Library of Western Australia, the Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western 

Australian Museum. 

 

Outputs 
As previously indicated, the Department of Culture and the Arts and the statutory 

authorities associated with it receive their annual appropriation from the Parliament 

for the purpose of a single outcome and all of the activities are organised into the 

following seven output groups. 

 

Output 1: Art Gallery of Western Australia - Art Gallery services. 

Output 2: State Library of Western Australia - Library, archival and information 

services. 

Output 3: Western Australian Museum - Museum services. 

Output 4: Department of Culture and the Arts (ArtsWA Division) - Arts industry 

support. 

Output 5: ScreenWest Inc. - Screen production industry support. 

Output 6: Perth Theatre Trust - Venue management services. 

Output 7: Department of Culture and the Arts (State Records Office Division) – 

Recordkeeping and Archival Services. 
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Although each of the above outputs are listed in the budget papers for the 

Department of Culture and the Arts, the Art Gallery of Western Australia, the Perth 

Theatre Trust, ScreenWest, The Library Board of Western Australia and the Western 

Australian Museum produce their own output based performance measures and 

publish them in their respective annual reports. This report and these performance 

indicators relate only to the ArtsWA and State Records Office divisions of the 

Department under output four and seven respectively. 

 

It should be noted that Output 7 relating to the State Records Office was introduced 

in the 2002-2003 budget papers after the State Records Office became an operating 

division of the Department in November 2001 (transferred from the State Library of 

Western Australia) after the proclamation of the State Records Act 2000.    

 
Output 4: Arts industry support 

Description: Development, funding and promotion of the arts industry 

Performance Measures 2001-2002 
Actual 

2002-2003
Target 

2002-2003 
Actual 

2003-2004 
Target 

Quantity  
Grants applications processed  675 800 736 850
Arts projects and organisations 
supported ..............................  381 465 399 450

Industry development initiatives
..............................................  23 30 20 30

Industry interactions (internet hits, 
meetings and consultation) ...  14,509 10,000 38,540 10,000

Quality  
Client satisfaction with services

..............................................  86% 90% 80% 90%
Grant applications processed..  100% 100% 100% 100%
Grant contracts met.................  65% 80% 58% 80%
Industry development contracts met

..............................................  80% 80% 70% 80%
Industry meetings and events 
represented ...........................  70% 70% 59% 70%

Timeliness  
Hours that the public has access to 
advisory and development services
..............................................  40 40 40 40

Days between processing of grant 
application and notification of 
outcome.................................  65 75 28 75

Grant payments made within 28 
days of receipt of signed contract
..............................................  100% 100% 100% 100%
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Performance Measures 2001-2002 
Actual 

2002-2003
Target 

2002-2003 
Actual 

2003-2004 
Target 

Cost (Efficiency)  
Average cost of grant application 
processed..............................  $334.12 $304 $310 $233.73

Average cost per project and 
organisation supported..........  $52,682 $46,500 $53,550 $39,292.51

Average cost per industry 
development initiative............  $19,611.30 $16,197 $22,804 $13,244.67

Average cost per industry interaction
..............................................  $124.35 $194 $47 $158.94

  
Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) 25 27 24 29
  
 

Output 7: Recordkeeping and Archival Services 

Description: Delivery of recordkeeping services to State and Local Government 

agencies, improving the quality of current record management 

systems and provision of access to State Archives Collections by 

government agencies and the community. 
 

Performance Measures 2001-2002 
Actual 

2002-2003 
Target 

2002-2003 
Actual 

2003-2004
Target 

Quantity  
Recordkeeping plans developed 
and evaluated  400

Policies, standards and guidelines 
produced ...............................  7 7 7 3

Hours of training and consultancies 
provided.................................  3,000 3,000 2,460 500

Access provided to Sate Archives 
Collections.............................  42,340 42,850 47,433 42,850

Quality  
Client satisfaction with services

..............................................  95% 95% 95% 95%
Proportion of the State Archives 
Collection that is catalogued .  97% 97% 97% 97%

Timeliness  
Hours per week public has access 
to the collection in the search room
..............................................  35 35 35 35
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Performance Measures 2001-2002 
Actual 

2002-2003 
Target 

2002-2003 
Actual 

2003-2004
Target 

Cost (Efficiency)  
Average cost per Recordkeeping 
plan submitted  $1,431

Policies, standards, guidelines 
produced ...............................  $16,171.43 $23,314.00 $24,757.14 $23,850

Hours of training and consultancies 
provided.................................  $113.20 $163.20 $211.08 $143.10

Access provided to State Archives
..............................................  $16.04 $22.85 $21.92 $16.70

  
Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) 25 21 25 26
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 

 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Culture and the Arts 

have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration 

and Audit Act 1985 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 

transactions for the period 1 July 2002 to 30 June 2003 and the financial position as 

at 30 June 2003. 

 

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render 

the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

 

 

 
ALASTAIR BRYANT    ALAN FERRIS 

DIRECTOR GENERAL   PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
15 AUGUST 2003    15 AUGUST 2003 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS    
Statement of Financial Performance    
for year ended 30 June 2003    
    
       
 Note 2003 2002
    $000 $000
COST OF SERVICES    
Expenses from ordinary activities    
  Employee expenses 4 33,828 31,863
  Supplies and services 5 1,195 1,141
  Depreciation expense 6 665 690
  Administration expenses 7 479 397
  Accommodation expenses 8 622 520
  Grants, subsidies and sponsorship 9 17,522 19,308
  Capital user charge 10 28,375 753
  Appropriation transferred 11 26,307 51,134
  Net revaluation decrement 17 & 21 2,349 0
  Other expenses from ordinary activities  7 71
Total cost of services   111,349 105,877
    
Revenues from ordinary activities    
Revenue from operating activities    
  User charges and fees 12 402 326
  Sale of Goods  26 0
  Grants and subsidies  70 171
Revenue from non-operating activities    
  Other revenues from ordinary activities  626 497
Total revenues from ordinary activities   1,124 994
NET COST OF SERVICES   110,225 104,883
REVENUES FROM GOVERNMENT    
  Output Appropriation  107,252 99,825
  Liability assumed by the Treasurer  612 1,069
  Assets assumed / (transferred)  413 9,143
  Initial recognition of assets not previously recognised  134 0
  Resources received free of charge  99 86
Total revenues from Government 13 108,510 110,123
Change in net assets resulting from operations   (1,715) 5,240
Net increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation reserve   (170) 313
Total revenues, expenses and valuation 
adjustments recognised directly in equity  (170) 313
TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN 
THOSE RESULTING FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH 
WA STATE GOVERNMENT AS OWNERS   (1,885) 5,553
    
The Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS  
Statement of Financial Position  
for year ended 30 June 2003  
  

    
 Note 2003 2002
  $000 $000
Current Assets  
  Cash assets 1,447 900
  Restricted cash assets 14 2,953 2,771
  Receivables 15 1,855 1,624
  Amount receivable for outputs 16 292 0
  Prepayments 56 32

Total Current Assets 6,603 5,327
Non-Current Assets  
  Amounts receivable for outputs 16 738 490
  Property, plant and equipment 17 20,334 21,355
  Works of art 139 4

Total Non-Current Assets 21,211 21,849
TOTAL ASSETS 27,814 27,176
Current Liabilities  
  Payables 261 237
  Accrued salaries 806 676
  Provisions 19 3,782 3,187
  Grants payable 20 14,393 14,065
  Other liabilities 36 0

Total Current Liabilities 19,278 18,165
Non-Current Liabilities  
  Provisions 19 2,834 2,768

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,834 2,768
Total Liabilities 22,112 20,933
Equity  
  Contributed equity 3,907 2,563
  Reserves 1,520 1,690
  Accumulated surplus / (deficiency) 275 1,990

Total Equity 21 5,702 6,243
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 27,814 27,176

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS  
Statement of Cashflows   
for year ended 30 June 2003  
  

      
 Note 2003 2002
  $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT  
  Output appropriations 94,479 87,337
  Capital contributions 7,502 14,250
  Holding account drawdowns 7,704 0

Net Cash provided by State Government 109,685 101,587
  
Utilised as follows:  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Payments  
  Employee costs (32,544) (29,961)
  Supplies and services (2,095) (1,856)
  Grants, subsidies and sponsorship (17,250) (17,361)
  Capital User Charge (28,375) (753)
  Appropriation transferred (27,939) (50,905)
  GST payments on purchases (2,019) (1,877)
  GST payments to taxation authority 0 0
  Other payments (6) 0
Receipts  
  Sale of goods and services 21 0
  User charges and fees 314 162
  Grants and subsidies 70 171
  GST receipts on sales 41 51
  GST receipts from taxation authority 2,081 1,473
  Other receipts 473 491

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 22 (107,228) (100,365)
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVTIES  
  Purchase of non-current physical assets (1,728) (423)

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (1,728) (423)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held 729 799
Cash assets at the beginning of the financial year 3,671 2,872

CASH ASSETS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 14 4,400 3,671

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS      
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUE 
ESTIMATES    
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003       
 2003 2003 2003 2003 2002  

Variance Variance  Estimate Actual 
Over/ 

(Under) 

Actual Actual 
Over/ 

(Under)
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
PURCHASE OF OUTPUTS       
  
Item 108 - Net amount appropriated to purchase 
outputs 

78,316 72,972 (5,344) 72,972 41,202 31,770

Item 109 Art Gallery of Western Australia 3,623 3,623 0 3,623 12,717 (9,094)
Item 110 Library Board of Western Australia 14,839 14,989 150 14,989 22,922 (7,933)
Item 111 Perth Theatre Trust 1,227 1,312 85 1,312 3,794 (2,482)
Item 112 Western Australian Museum 4,437 4,437 0 4,437 9,773 (5,336)
Amount Authorised by Other Statutes  
- Lotteries Commission Act 1990 9,000 9,381 381 9,381 8,845 536
- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 538 538 0 538 490 48
   
Total appropriations provided to purchase 
outputs 

111,980 107,252 (4,728) 107,252 99,743 7,509

   
CAPITAL  
Item 174 - Capital Contribution 3,144 1,344 (1,800) 1,344 2,588 (1,244)
Item 175 Art Gallery of Western Australia 910 910 0 910 910 0
Item 176 Library Board of Western Australia 3,548 3,548 0 3,548 9,452 (5,904)
Item 177 Perth Theatre Trust 500 500 0 500 500 0
Item 178 Western Australian Museum 2,500 1,200 (1,300) 1,200 800 400
Total appropriations provided as capital 
contributions 

10,602 7,502 (3,100) 7,502 14,250 (6,748)

  
GRAND TOTAL OF APPROPRIATIONS 122,582 114,754 (7,828) 114,754 113,993 761
  
Details Of Expenses by Outputs  
  
Outputs:  
Art Gallery Services 17,059 16,971 (88) 16,971 16,573 398
Library and Information Services 38,157 37,293 (864) 37,293 36,326 967
Museum Services 21,854 21,759 (95) 21,759 20,084 1,675
Arts Industry Support 24,357 20,721 (3,636) 20,721 17,641 3,080
Screen Production Industry Support 2,594 2,588 (6) 2,588 2,623 (35)
Venue Management Services 6,415 6,379 (36) 6,379 6,578 (199)
Recordkeeping and Archival Services 1,544 1,541 (3) 1,541 0 1,541
Total appropriations provided to purchase 
outputs 

111,980 107,252 (4,728) 107,252 99,825 7,427

  
Capital Expenditure  
Purchase of non-current physical assets 10,602 7,502 (3,100) 7,502 14,250 (6,748)
Capital Contribution (appropriation) 10,602 7,502 (3,100) 7,502 14,250 (6,748)
  
DETAILS OF REVENUE ESTIMATES  
Revenues  9,000 9,381 381 9,381 8,845 536
Total Revenue Estimates 9,000 9,381 381 9,381 8,845 536
  

Notes       
The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations, Variance to Budget and Actual should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes, set out in Note 26. 
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DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE AND THE ARTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003 
  

 

1. Department mission, funding and name 

The Department’s mission is to provide leadership, support and services to 
ensure that current and future Western Australians are informed and have 
access to a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural 
experiences. 

 
The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriations.  
The financial statements encompass all funds through which the 
Department controls resources to carry out its functions. 
 
In the process of reporting on the Department as a single entity, all intra-
entity transactions and balances have been eliminated. 
 

 2. Significant accounting policies 

 The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of 
the financial statements.  Unless otherwise stated these policies are 
consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

 
 General Statement

The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report, 
which has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and Urgent 
Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views as applied by the Treasurer's 
Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to 
vary application, disclosure, format and wording.  The Financial 
Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer's Instructions are legislative 
provisions governing the preparation of financial statements and take 
precedence over Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting 
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board, and UIG Consensus Views.  The 
modifications are intended to fulfil the requirements of general application to 
the public sector together with the need for greater disclosure and also to 
satisfy accountability requirements.   
 
If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon 
the reported results, details of that modification and where practicable, the 
resulting financial effect, are disclosed in individual notes to these financial 
statements. 
 
Basis of accounting 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standard AAS 29.  
 
The statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 
using the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and liabilities, 
which, as noted are measured at fair value. 
 
Administered assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues are not integral to 
the Department in carrying out its functions and are disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements, forming part of the general purpose financial 
report of the Department.  The administered items are disclosed on the 
same basis as is described above for the financial statements of the 
Department.  The administered assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues 
are those which the Government requires the Department to administer on 
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its behalf.  The assets do not render any service potential or future 
economic benefits to the Department, the liabilities do not require the future 
sacrifice of service potential or future economic benefits of the Department, 
and the expenses and revenues are not attributable to the Department. 
 
As the administered assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues are not 
recognised in the principal financial statements of the Department, the 
disclosure requirements of Australian Accounting Standard AAS 33, 
Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments, are not applied to 
administered transactions. 
 
(a) Output Appropriations        
 
Output Appropriations are recognised as revenue in the period in which the 
Department gains control of the appropriated funds.  The Department gains 
control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited into the 
Department’s bank account or credited to the holding account held at the 
Department of Treasury and Finance. Refer to Note 13 for further 
commentary on output appropriations. 
     
The Department receives funding from the Lotteries Commission under the 
provisions of Section 22 of the Lotteries Commission Act (1990).  This 
provides for receipts based on five per cent of the net lotteries and games 
subscriptions  received by the Lotteries Commission.  Accordingly, funds are 
received in arrears, and at 30 June the portion relating to lotteries turnover 
for June remained outstanding.   This amount is recognised as an asset in 
the Statement of Financial Position, and as Appropriations in the Statement 
of Financial Performance. 
 
Operating bank account 

 
Amounts appropriated are deposited into the Department’s bank account 
and any revenues, which are the subject of net appropriation 
determinations, are also deposited into the account.  Revenues not subject 
to net appropriation determinations are credited to the Consolidated Fund.  
All payments of the Department are made from the operating bank account. 

(b) Contributed Equity  

Under UIG 38 “Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 
Sector Entities” transfers in the nature of equity contributions must be 
designated by the Government (owners) as contributions by owners (at the 
time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as 
equity contributions in the financial statements. Capital contributions 
(appropriations) have been designated as contributions by owners and have 
been credited directly to Contributed Equity in the Statement of Financial 
Position.  Capital appropriation, which are repayable to the Treasurer, are 
recognised as liabilities.  Refer to Note 21 for further commentary on the 
application of UIG 38 and TI 955. 

(c) Net Appropriation Determination   

Pursuant to Section 23A of the Financial Administration and Audit Act, the 
net appropriation determination by the Treasurer provides for retention of 
the following moneys received by the Department: 
• proceeds from fees and charges;  
•      Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions; and 
•      other Departmental revenue. 
 
In accordance with the determination, the Department retained $1,124m in 
2003 ($994m in 2002).  Retained revenues may only be applied to the 
outputs specified in the 2002-2003 Budget Statements. 
 
(d) Grants and Other Contributions 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are 
recognised as revenue when the Department obtains control over the 
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assets comprising the contributions.  Control is normally obtained upon their 
receipt. 
 
Contributions are recognised at their fair value.  Contributions of  services 
are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the 
services would be purchased if not donated. 
 
 
(e) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets and the 
rendering of services is recognised when the Department has passed 
control of the goods or other assets or delivery of the service to the 
customer. 

(f) Acquisition of assets 

The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisition of assets.  Cost is 
measured as the fair value of the assets given up or liabilities undertaken at 
the date of acquisition plus incidental costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, are initially 
recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

(g) Depreciation of non-current assets 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically 
depreciated over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption 
of their future economic benefits. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are 
reviewed annually.  Expected useful lives of each class of depreciable 
assets are: 
 
Buildings/Improvements   40  years 
Plant and equipment         4 to 10  years 
Computer hardware and software    4  years 
 
Works of art controlled by the Department are classified as heritage assets.  
They are anticipated to have very long and indeterminate useful lives.  Their 
service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the 
reporting period.  As such, no amount for depreciation has been recognised 
in respect of them. 

  
(h) Revaluation of Land, Buildings and Infrastructure   

The Department has a policy of valuing land, buildings and infrastructure at 
fair value.  The annual revaluations of the Department 's land and buildings 
undertaken by the Valuer General's Office are recognised in the financial 
statements.  Infrastructure assets are being progressively revalued to fair 
value under the transitional provisions in AASB 1041 (8.12)(b) (see notes 17 
and 18).   

 (i) Leases 

The Department has entered into a number of operating lease arrangements 
for the rent of the office building and motor vehicles where the lessor 
effectively retains all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the 
items held under the operating leases. Rent for office accommodation is 
paid to the Department of Housing and Works and motor vehicles to 
LeasePlan through the Department of Treasury and Finance. Equal 
instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of Financial 
Performance over the lease term, as this is representative of the pattern of 
benefits to be derived from the leased property. 
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(j) Cash 
 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash assets 
and restricted cash assets. 
 
(k) Accrued Salaries 

The accrued salaries suspense account consists of amounts paid annually 
into a suspense account over a period of 10 financial years to meet the 
additional cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur in 
that year instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account. 
 
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of 
the financial year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year 
does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  Accrued salaries are 
settled within a few days of the financial year end. The Department 
considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to the 
net fair value.   
 
(l) Receivables 

Receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable, as they are due for 
settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition. 
 
Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Debts, which 
are known to be uncollectable, are written off.  A provision for doubtful 
debts is raised where some doubts as to collection exists and in any event 
where the debt is more than 60 days overdue. 
 
(m) Licences 
 
Licences held by the Department are valued at cost, and they are 
depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life. 
 
(n) Software 
 
Significant software costs associated with the acquisition or development of 
computer software are capitalised and depreciated on a straight line basis 
over the periods of the expected benefit, which is 4 years. 
 
(o) Web site costs 
  
Costs in relation to web sites controlled by the Department are charged as 
expenses in the period in which they are incurred unless they relate to the 
acquisition of an asset, in which case they are capitalised and amortised 
over the period of expected benefit.  Generally, costs in relation to feasibility 
studies during the planning phase of a web site, and ongoing costs of 
maintenance during the operating phase are considered to be expenses.  
Costs incurred in building or enhancing a web site, to the extent that they 
represent probable future economic benefits controlled by the Department 
that can be reliably measured, are capitalised as an asset and amortised 
over the period of the expected benefits which vary from three to five years. 
 
(p) Payables 
 
Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the 
Department becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a 
purchase of assets or services. Payables are generally settled within 30 
days. 
 
(q) Employee Benefits  
 
Annual Leave 
 
This benefit is recognised at the reporting date in respect to employees' 
services up to that date and is measured at the nominal amounts expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
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Long Service Leave  
  
Leave benefits are calculated at remuneration rates expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled.  An actuarial assessment of long service 
leave undertaken by PriceWaterHouseCoopers Actuaries in 2002 
determined that the liability measured using the short hand method was not 
materially different from the liability measured using the present value of 
expected future payments. 

 
This method of measurement of the liability is consistent with the 
requirements of Accounting Standard AASB 1028 “Employee Benefits”. 

 
Superannuation 
 
Staff may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefits pension 
scheme now closed to new members, or to the Gold State Superannuation 
Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme now also closed to new 
members.  All staff who do not contribute to either of these schemes 
become non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation 
Scheme, an accumulation fund complying with the Commonwealth 
Government's Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  All of 
these schemes are administered by the Government Employees 
Superannuation Board (GESB). 
 
 
The superannuation expense comprises the following elements: 
 
(i) change in the unfunded employer's liability in respect of current 
employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current 
employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold 
State Superannuation Scheme: and  
 
(ii) employer contributions paid to Gold State Superannuation Scheme and 
the West State Superannuation Scheme. 
 
The superannuation expense, with exception of the WA Museum, does not 
include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of 
the cost of services provided by the Department in the current year. 
 
A revenue “Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer” equivalent to (i) is 
recognised under Revenues from Government in the Statement of Financial 
Performance as the unfunded liabilities is assumed by the Treasurer.  The 
GESB makes the benefit payments and is recouped by the Treasurer. 
 
The Department is funded for employer contributions in respect of the Gold 
State Superannuation Scheme and the West State Superannuation 
Scheme. These contributions were paid to the GESB during the year.  The 
GESB subsequently paid the employer contributions in respect of the Gold 
State Superannuation Scheme to the Consolidated Fund.   
 

 
(r) Employee benefit on-costs 

 
Employee benefit on-costs, are recognised and included in employee 
benefit liabilities and costs when the employee benefits to which they 
relate are recognised as liabilities and expenses.  (See notes 4 and 19). 

 
(s) Resources Received Free of Charge or For Nominal Value 
 
Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be 
reliably measured are recognised as revenues and as assets or expenses 
as appropriate at fair value. 

 
(t) Comparative Figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be 
comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year. 
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(u) Rounding of amounts 
 
Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar. 
 
 
 
 
 
3. Outputs of the Department 

Information about the Department’s outputs and, the expenses and 
revenues which are reliably attributable to those outputs is set out in the 
Output Schedule.  Information about expenses, revenues, assets and 
liabilities administered by the Department are given in note 33. 
 
Output 7 was created from 2003, as a result of the State Records Office 
being proclaimed as a separate division of the Department of Culture and 
the Arts under the State Records Act, in 2001/02. 
 
The Department’s Outcome and 7 Outputs are: 
 
Outcome: A community that is informed of, and has access to, a 

diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge and 
cultural experiences. 

 
Output 1: Art Gallery Services. 
 
Description: Delivery of the State Art Collection and access to art gallery 

services and programs through visual arts advocacy, 
collection development, facilities and services.  Services 
ensure that primary access to art, heritage and ideas locally, 
regionally and internationally are preserved and displayed 
for future generations. 

 
Output 2 Library and Information Services. 
 
Description: Delivery of library and information services through the 

Internet, the Alexander Library Building and the Public 
Library system.  Support Local Authorities and associated 
bodies with leadership, resources, information and other 
services.  Services ensure that Western Australia’s 
documentary heritage is collected, organised and preserved 
for access by future generations. 

 
Output 3 Museum Services. 
 
Description: Delivery and promotion of museum services through 

collection development and management, research, 
education and visitor services. 

 
Output 4: Arts Industry support. 
 
Description: Development, funding and promotion of the arts industry. 
 
Output 5 Screen Production Industry Support. 
 
Description: Delivery of strategic support and funding to advance the 

development of the screen production industry in Western 
Australia. 

 
Output 6 Venue Management Services. 
 
Description: Management and promotion of performing arts venues. 
 
Output 7 Recordkeeping and Archival Services 
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Description : Delivery of recordkeeping services to state and local 
government agencies, improving the quality of current 
record management systems and provision of access to 
State Archives Collections by government agencies and the 
community. 

 
 
 
 
 

 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
4.  Employee expenses   
   
Wages and salaries 29,105 26,942 
Superannuation expense 3,269 2,986 
Superannuation (notional expense – liability 
assumed by Treasurer) 612 1,069 
Worker’s compensation premium 72 88 
Employee entitlements 611 625 
Other related expenses 159 153 
 33,828 31,863 
   
5.  Supplies and services   
   
Consultants and contractors 250 210 
Printing 63 41 
Legal fees 10 30 
Travel 107 67 
Insurance 151 83 
Electricity and gas 20 17 
Temporary staff services 100 244 
Other 494 449 
 1,195 1,141 
   
6.  Depreciation expense   
   
Buildings 384 381 
Leasehold improvements 160 180 
Plant, equipment, computer hardware and 
software 

121 129 

 665 690 
   
7.  Administration expenses   
   
Communication 192 144 
Maintenance – plant and equipment 106 118 
Consumables 106 92 
Lease – equipment and vehicles 75 43 
 479 397 
   
8.  Accommodation expenses   
   
Rent 249 217 
Repairs & maintenance 281 232 
Facilities management and other accommodation 69 51 
Cleaning 23 20 
 622 520 
   
9.  Grants,  subsidies & sponsorship   
   
Recurrent   
Arts Agency & panels 17,365 19,136 
Grant payment to Swan Bells Foundation 0 50 
Other 157 122 
 17,522 19,308 
   
10.  Capital User Charge 
 28,375 753 
 
A capital user charge rate of 8% has been set by the Government and represents the 
opportunity cost of capital invested in the net assets of the Department and the culture 
and art portfolio agencies, which are used in the provision of outputs.  The charge is 
calculated on the net assets adjusted to take account of exempt assets.  Payments are 
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made to the Department of Treasury and Finance on a quarterly basis. 
 
In 2002, the funding for the Capital User Charge was appropriated directly to the 
respective culture and art portfolio agencies.  From 2003, the funding for the whole 
portfolio’s  Capital User Charge was appropriated direct to the Department. 
 
The above shift in funding to the Department resulted in an overall reduction in 
appropriation transferred to agencies as shown in note 11. 
   
   
   
 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
11.  Appropriation transferred to Agencies   
   
Library Board of WA 14,989 22,922 
Western Australian Museum 4,437 9,773 
Art Gallery of WA 3,623 12,717 
Perth Theatre Trust 1,312 3,794 
Screen West (Inc.) 1,806 1,928 
Swan Bells Foundation 140 0 
 26,307 51,134 
12.  User charges and fees 
   
Rent 186 170 
Recoup of costs 63 69 
Other 153 87 
 402 326 
   
13.  Revenues from State Government   
   
Appropriation revenue received during the year:   
Output appropriations (I) 113,105 101,266 
Less Appropriation returned to Consolidated Fund (5,853) (1,441) 
 107,252 99,825 
   
The following liabilities have been assumed by the 
Treasurer during the financial year:  

  

- superannuation (II) 612 1,069 
Total liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 612 1,069 
   
The following assets have been assumed from / 
(transferred to) other government agencies during 
the financial year: (III)   
- land and buildings  360 9,143 
- plant and equipment 53  
Total assets assumed / (transferred) 413 9,143 
   
Initial recognition of assets not previously 
recognised in the financial statements: (III)   
- Works of Art 134 0 
Total assets not previously recognised 134 0 
   
Resources received free of charge  (IV)   
Determined on the basis of the following estimates 
provided by agencies: 

  

Office of the Auditor General – audit services 53 48 
Education Department of Western Australia – staff 
secondments 46 38 
 99 86 
   
 108,510 110,123 
   
(I)  Output appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the full cost of outputs 

delivered. The appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable 
(asset).  The receivable (holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for 
the year and any agreed increase in leave liability during the year. 

(II)   The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is only a notional 
revenue to offset the notional superannuation expense reported in respect of current 
employees who are members of the pension scheme and current employees who 
have a transfer benefit entitlement under the Gold State scheme. 

(III)  Where assets have been discovered or have not been previously recognised in the 
financial statements, the Department recognises the corresponding credit as 
revenue. 
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(V) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal 
consideration, the Department recognises revenues (except where the contributions 
of assets or services are in the nature of contributions by owners in which case the 
Department shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of 
the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and 
which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be 
recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable. 

  
   
   
   
   
   
 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
14.  Restricted cash assets   
   
Current   
Capital cash balance 2,099 2,349 
   
Non-current   
Accrued salaries suspense account (I) 854 422 
 2,953 2,771 
   
(I) Amount held in suspense account is only to be used for the purpose of meeting the 

27th pay in a financial year that occurs every 11 years. 
   
15.  Receivables   
   
Amount receivable from the Lotteries Commission 971 968 
Trade debtors 335 112 
Provision for doubtful debts (26) (29) 
GST receivable 575 573 
 1,855 1,624 
   
16.  Amounts receivable for outputs   
   
Current 292 0 
Non-current 738 490 
 1,030 490 
 
This asset represents the non-cash component of output appropriations.  It is restricted 
in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability. 
 
17.  Property, plant and equipment  
   
Land   
At fair value (I) 6,440 5,720 
 6,440 5,720 
   
Buildings   
At fair value (I) 13,076 10,949 
Accumulated depreciation (0) (218) 
 13,076 10,731 
   
At cost 260 4,788 
Works in progress 95 214 
Accumulated depreciation (0) (506) 
 355 4,496 
   
   
Leasehold improvements   
At cost                    928 928 
Accumulated depreciation   (897) (737) 
 31 191 
   
Plant, Equipment, Computer hardware and 
software 

  

At cost 1,288                  917 
Accumulated depreciation (858) (700) 
 430 217 
   
Furniture and Fittings   
At cost                        6                     1 
Accumulated depreciation (4) (1) 
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                         2 0 
   
Total property, plant and equipment  20,334 21,355 
   
 
The revaluation of land and buildings was performed in June 2003 in accordance with an 
independent valuation by the Valuer General's Office (VGO).  Fair value of land has been 
determined on the basis of current use or current market buying values as appropriate. 
The fair value of buildings has been determined by reference to the market values or 
current depreciated replacement costs where the buildings are specialised and no 
market evidence of value is available.  The valuations were made in accordance with a 
regular policy of annual revaluation.  Similar valuation was also performed in 2002 by the 
Valuer General's Office as a result of the initial application of AASB 1041 (AAS 38). 
 
In 2002, the King Street Art Centre was reported at cost value of $4.147m.  The building 
has been valued at $1.35m for 2003, under the market value basis.  The take up of the 
valuation amount had resulted in a significant revaluation decrement, of which $2.349m 
had been expensed in the Statement of Financial Performance.  The Department 
however, is of the view that it would still cost in excess of $4m to replace a building of 
such size and nature. 
   
Reconciliations   
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the 
beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below. 
 

 Land Buildings Leasehold 
improvements 

Plant, 
Equipment, 
Computer 
hardware 

and software 

Furniture 
and 

Fittings 

Total 

2003 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
       
Carrying amount at start of 
year 

5,720 15,227 191 217 0 21,355 

Additions/Transfers in      320 1,507 0 334 2 2,163 
Disposals/Transfers out       
Revaluation 
increments/(decrement) 

     400 (2,919) 0 0 0 (2,519) 

Depreciation 0 (384) (160) (121) 0 (665) 
Write-off of assets       
Carrying amount at end of 
year 

6,440 13,431 31 430 2 20,334 

 
   
 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
18.  Works of Art   
   
At fair value 105 0 
At cost   34 4 
 139 4 
   
19.  Provisions   
   
Current   
Annual leave (I) 1,581 1,406 
Deferred leave 48/52 11 0 
Long service leave (I) 2,190 1,781 
 3,782 3,187 
Non-current   
Long service leave (I) 2,834 2,768 
 2,834 2,768 
   
(I) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the 

payment of employment on-costs including superannuation and workers 
compensation premiums. The liability for such on-costs is included in the above 
provisions.   

 
The Department considers the carrying amount of employee benefits to 
approximate the net fair value. 

 
Employee Benefit Entitlements   
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and included in the financial 
statements is as follows: 
Provision for employee entitlements:   
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Current 3,782 3,187 
Non-current 2,834 2,768 
 6,616 5,955 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
20.  Grants payable & commitments   
  
Grants contract issued but not paid 
Contractual commitments made with Department 
clients prior to June 30 

 

Grant liabilities 14,393 14,065 
   
Commitments   
Commitments in respect of triennially funded arts 
agencies where contracts have been let at 30 June:  
These have not been brought to account as liabilities 
as they do not meet the recognition criteria AAS 29. 

 
 
 

10,432 

 
 
 

12,566 
   
21.  Equity   
   
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Department.  The 
Government hold the equity interest in the Department on behalf of the community.  
The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of equity resulting from the 
revaluation of non-current assets.  
Contributed equity   
Opening balance 2,563 0 
Capital contributions (I) 1,344 2,588 
Less:  transfer to Screen West (Inc.) (0) (25) 
Closing balance 3,907 2,563 
    
I) Capital Contributions have been designated as contributions by owners and are 
credited directly to equity in the Statement of Financial Position. 
   
Asset revaluation reserve (I)   
Opening balance 1,690 1,377 
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):   
Land 400 (130) 
Buildings (570) 443 
Closing balance 1,520 1,690 
   
(I) The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on 
the revaluation of non-current assets, as described in accounting policy note 2(h). 
   
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency)   
Opening balance 1,990 (3,250) 
Change in net assets resulting from operations (1,715) 5,240 
Closing balance 275 1,990 
   
 5,702 6,243 
 
22.  Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 
   
(a) Reconciliation of cash   
   
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash at bank, 
amounts in suspense and restricted cash.  Cash at the end of the financial year as 
shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the 
Statement of Financial Position as follows: 
 
Cash assets 1,447 899 
Restricted cash assets (refer to Note 14) 2,953 2,772 
 4,400 3,671 
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 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
(b)  Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash 
flows provided by/(used in) operating activities 
   
Net cost of services (110,225) (104,883) 
   
Non-cash items:   
Depreciation expense 665 686 
Doubtful debts expense (3) 5 
Superannuation (Liability assumed by Treasurer) 612 1,069 
Resources received free of charge 99 86 
Appropriation transferred (1,632) 281 
Net revaluation decrement 2,349 0 
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment 4 1 
Other 3 30 
   
(Increase)/decrease in assets:   
Receivables (II) (226) (53) 
Prepayments (24) (4) 
   
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:   
Payables (II)                24 139 
Capital amount included in payables (27) 24 
Grants payable 328 1,905 
Accrued salaries 130 75 
Provisions 661 625 
Other 36 0 
   
Change in GST receivables/payables (I) (2) (355) 
 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (107,228) (100,365) 
   
(I)   This reverses out the GST in accounts receivable and payable. 
(II) Note that ATO receivable/payable in respect of GST and receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase 

of non-current assets are not included in these items as they are not reconciling items. 
 
23.  Resources provided free of charge 
     
During the year the following resources were provided to other agencies free of charge.  The amounts shown 
represent the payment of salaries, capital user charge and superannuation paid by the Department on behalf 
of the following agencies: 
 
   
Library and Information Service of WA 20,540 11,340 
Western Australian Museum 16,546 8,983 
Art Gallery of WA 12,430 2,862 
ScreenWest 1,015 2,368 
Perth Theatre Trust 3,961 1,936 
 54,492 27,489 
   
24.  Commitments for expenditure 
   
(a)  Operating Lease commitments   
The Department has operating leases for motor vehicles and office accommodation.  
These are cancellable leases in terms of Australian Accounting Standard AAS 17 
“Accounting for Leases”.   
 
Within 1 year 390 345 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 230 2 
 620 347 
   
25.  Events Occurring After Reporting Date     
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On the 30 June 2003, Cabinet approved the abolition of the Perth Theatre Trust and the transfer of its 
functions, assets and liabilities to the Department of Culture and the Arts.  Implementation of this decision will 
require the Perth Theatre Trust Act 1979 to be repealed, which is expected to be achieved by the end of 
2003.    
 
Whilst the abolition will have minimal costing/financial implications, since the operations will remain relatively 
unchanged, budgets and financial reporting for the Department will be amended to accommodate the 
reporting of Perth Theatre Trust’s transactions, assets and liabilities. 
 
 
 
26.  Explanatory Statement  
 
The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and Revenue Estimates discloses appropriations and 
other statutes expenditure estimates, the actual expenditures made and revenue estimates and payments 
into the Consolidated Fund.  Appropriations are now on an accrual basis.   
 
The following explanations are provided in accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 945. 
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $ 500,000. 
 
(i) Significant variances between estimate and actual – Total appropriation to purchase outputs:  
    
 2003 2003  
 Estimate Actual Variation 
 $000 $000 $000 
CAPITAL    
Capital Contribution    
The variance in this item relates to the deferral of 
funding for the Broome Cultural Centre project 
($1.9M) and transfer of funding from recurrent for the 
WA Symphony Orchestra relocation project ($0.1M). 
 

3,144 1,344 (1,800) 

Western Australian Museum    
The variance in this item relates to the deferral of 
funding for the Bunbury Heritage Museum ($1M) and 
feasibility studies for the WA Museum relocation 
($0.3M). 

2,500 1,200 (1,300) 

    
 2003 2003  
 Estimate Actual Variation 
 $000 $000 $000 
OUTPUTS    
Art Industry Support    
The variance is mainly due to the deferral of  funding 
for the WA Symphony Orchestra relocation project 
($3.9M), offset by increased Lotterywest funding 
($0.378M). 

24,357 20,721 (3,636) 

 
(ii) Significant variances between actual and prior year actual – Total appropriation to purchase 
outputs. 
In the interests of concise reporting, variations between this year and last year that have already been 
explained in the previous notes have not been repeated in this section 
    
RECURRENT  
 
The significant variances between the actuals in 2001/02 and 2002/03 mainly relate to the transfer of 
appropriation for Capital User Charge of $23M from the individual output agencies to the Department, and 
increases in the Capital User Charge due to overall increased net asset position.   
    
 2003 2002  
 Actual Actual Variation 
 $000 $000 $000 
    
Amount provided to fund outputs  72,972 41,202 31,770 
    
Art Gallery of Western Australia 3,623 12,717 (9,094) 
    
Library Board of Western Australian 14,989 22,922 (7,933) 
    
Perth Theatre Trust 1,312 3,794 (2,482) 
    
Western Australian Museum 4,437 9,773 (5,336) 
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CAPITAL    
Capital Contribution  1,344 2,588 (1,244) 
The variance in this item mainly relates to additional 
funding provided for the Cultural Centre 
redevelopment and building maintenance projects. 
 

   

Library Board of Western Australian 3,548 9,452 (5,904) 
The variance in this item relates mainly to funds 
being drawn down from the holding account in 2003 
instead of being appropriated directly to the Library 
Board of Western Australia ($7.7M) offset by 
additional books funding ($1M) and deferral of 2002 
books funding in 2003 ($0.9M).  

   

    
 2003 2002  
 Actual Actual Variation 
 $000 $000 $000 
Western Australian Museum                    1,200 800 400 
The variance in this item relates mainly to additional 
funding drawn down for the Bunbury Heritage 
Museum project.  
 

   

 
OUTPUTS 
Recurrent Output Expenditure    
    
Art Industry Support 
The variance in this item relates mainly to the 
deferral of ArtsWA grant expenditure ($1.350M) in 
2002, and additional Lotterywest funding of $0.378M 
in 2003. 

20,721 17,641 3,080 

    
Recordkeeping and Archival Services 
This is a new output created in 2003, as a result of 
the State Records Office being proclaimed during 
2001/02 as a separate division of the Department of 
Culture and the Arts. 

1,541 0 1,541 

     
     
27.  Financial Instruments     
     
(a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure     
     
The following table details the Department's exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting date: 
    

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity 
  

 Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

Variable 
Interest 

Rate 

Less 
than 1 
Year 

1 to 5 
Years 

More 
than 5 
Years 

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing 

Total 

2003 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
        
Financial Assets        
Cash assets      1,447 1,447 
Restricted cash assets      2,953 2,953 
Receivables       1,855 1,855 
        
Total Financial Assets      6,255 6,255 
        
Financial Liabilities        
Accounts Payables      261 261 
Provisions      6,616 6,616 
Grants Payable      14,393 14,393 
        
Total Financial Liabiities      21,270 21,270 
        

2002        
Financial assets      5,237 5,237 
Financial liabilities      20,932 20,932 
        
(b) Credit Risk Exposure 
The Department has limited credit risk exposure.  The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial 
statements, other than debt receivables, represents the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk. The 
majority of the Department’s debtors are amounts owing by other government agencies.  These debts are 
guaranteed and therefore no credit risk exists in respect of these amounts. 
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(c) Net Fair Values 
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements are not 
materially different from their net fair values, determined in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in 
note 2 to the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
28.  Remuneration of Senior Officers 
   
Remuneration   
The number of senior officers, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation  and 
other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

$   
             1 – 10,000 0 0 
    20,001 – 30,000 1 0 
    60,001 – 70,000 1 0 
    70,001 – 80,000 0 3 
    80,001 – 90,000 4 3 
  90,001 – 100,000 2 1 
100,001 – 110,000 1 1 
110,001 – 120,000 1 0 
170,001 – 180,000 0 0 
180,001 – 190,000 0 1 
190,001 – 200,000 1 0 

 11 9 
   
The Department deems its Divisional Heads and the Directors responsible for the provision of shared corporate 
services across the art and culture portfolio as its Senior Officers.  They are the Director General, Directors for 
ArtsWA, State Records Office, Policy and Planning, Organisational Performance, Marketing, Facilities & Contract 
Management, Financial Services, Human Resources and Information Services  These officers hold positions in the 
band of Level 8 and above.    
   
   
 2003 2002 
 $000 $000 
   
The total remuneration of senior officers is: 1,039 883 
   
The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Department in 
respect of senior officers. 
 
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 
     
29.  Related Bodies     
     
The Department has no related bodies. 
     
 
30.  Affiliated Bodies   
   
An affiliated body is a body which receives more than half its funding and resources from a department but is not
subject to operational control by that department. 
 
The Department provides grants to non-government affiliated bodies for administrative support.  In accordance
with Treasurer's Instruction 951, the details of financial assistance provided to the non-government affiliated
bodies are shown in the table below.  A full list showing details of all grants provided to non-government bodies
has been included in the grants lists attached to and forming part of the annual report. 
 
     
Affiliated Body 2003 2002   
           $           $   
     
Art on the Move 344,400    
Artists’ Foundation of WA 303,260 258,908   
Community Arts Network 460,525 437,786   
Country Arts WA  925,000   
Festival Fringe Society  178,000   
Perth Theatre Company  354,200   
PICA 464,800 423,163   
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WA Ballet Company     1,659,151   
WA Opera Company  1,419,053   
     
31.  Trust Accounts     
     
Private Trust Account     
     
Arts Lotteries Account     
     
This Trust Account was established to account for funds received from the Lotteries Commission pursuant to
sections 22(2)(d) of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990.  Payments are made in such proportion and among such
bodies engaged in the conduct of cultural activities, and persons engaged in cultural activities in the State, as the
Minister for the Arts thinks fit. 
     
     
 2003 2002   
 $000 $000   
Arts Lotteries Account     
     
Opening balance at 1 July 200 1,566   
Receipts     
Refunds of Grants     
Funding under the Lotteries Commission Act 
1990 

9,381 8,845   

TOTAL RECEIPTS 9,381 8,845   
TOTAL FUNDS 9,581 10,411   
     
Payments     
Grants and Projects for Cultural Activities 9,399 10,211   
TOTAL PAYMENTS 9,399 10,211   
     
CLOSING BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 182 200   
     
The closing balance forms part of the Department’s bank account held at the Commonwealth Bank.   
     
32.  Supplementary Information   
   
Write-Offs   
 
During the 2002/03 financial year, $85 was written off by the Department as a bad debt. 
 2003 2002   
                   $                    $   
   
The Accountable Officer 85 0 
The Minister 0 0 
Executive Council 0 0 
 85 0 
   
 2003 2002   
 $000 $000   
     
No amounts were written off the Department’s 
Asset Register. 

0 0   

 
Losses through theft, defaults  
and other causes 

1 0   

 
There were no gifts of public property provided 
by the Department. 

0 0 

 
33.  Service Delivery Arrangement- Commonwealth Grant 
 
The Department of Culture and the Arts and the Commonwealth Government have a Service Delivery 
Arrangement, commencing in 2002/03, for the provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories (Christmas and 
Cocos (Keeling) Islands).  The Commonwealth Government recoups the Department the costs associated with 
these services, as detailed below: 
 2003    
 $000    
Opening balance of funds                    0    
     
Recoups received from the Commonwealth 
Government 

                  87    

Cost of providing services    (87)    
     
Balance on hand             0     
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34.  Administered Assets and Liabilities 
 
Administered assets and liabilities are not controlled by the Department but are administered by it on behalf of 
the Government. 
 
The items shown in these statements relate to payments to the Western Australian Museum Foundation. 
 
The Government committed $3 million to the Western Australian Museum Foundation on a $ for $ basis to 
match moneys raised by the Foundation through fund raising activities.  $414,577 was raised by the WA 
Museum Foundation in 2001/02.  The balance of $226,109 is expected to be raised by the Foundation in 
2003/04. 
 
 2003 2002
     $000 $000
Administered Assets and Liabilities     
        
Current Assets       
Cash     226 640 
Total Administered Assets    226 640
        
Current Liabilities       
Grants Payable    226 640 
Total Administered Liabilities   226 640 
        
        

 
 


